
ESS 
Electronic Services System – Coordinating Committee Meeting 

Agenda 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 
May 9, 2019 

10:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. 

ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda – Updated May 3, 2019 

 Welcome and Introductions

 February 7, 2019 – ESS Coordinating Committee Meeting Summary – Approval

 Financial Reports
o BOA 2019 1st Quarter and YTD Report
o Fund 255 FY 2019 3nd Quarter Report
o CY 2018 Audit, 990 Return Status

 ESS Budgets
o Revenue Trends – Discussion
o Fund 255 FY 2019 Final Budget Amendment – Approval
o Fund 255 FY 2020 Budget – Approval
o BOA CY 2019 Budget Amendment - Approval

 Contracts and Agreements
o Local Service Provider Maintenance Agreement Renewals – Approval
o External Submitter Agreement Renewals – Approval
o Brick Gentry – FY 2019 Retainer – Approval
o Professional Solutions Contract Amendment – Approval
o Content Management and Web Development Agreement – Approval
o ILR Staff Compensation Adjustments – Discussion
o Enterprise Iowa Contract and MOU Amendment – Discussion
o FY 2019 Maintenance Invoices – Discussion

 Policies and Procedures
o Reserve Fund Policies (1.7(6)) – Approval
o Financial Procedure Policies – Approval
o Remote Notarization – Discussion
o Groundwater Hazard Best Practices – Discussion
o Document Retention Policy – Discussion
o Certified Copies Best Practices – Discussion

  Key Project Updates
o E-Submission 2.0 Recorders’ Interface – Testing and Production – Approval

 Other Project Updates
o CRM and 2019 Campaign Status

 County Recorder E-Submission Campaign
 February Webinar Campaign & SLSI and Drake Law Campaign

o IRS Safeguard Update
o Legislative Update – Bob Rafferty

 PRIA Update
o Document Rejections
o PRIA Strategic Planning Update

 Adjourn - Next Regular Meeting August 8, 2019

1



Electronic Services System 
Coordinating Committee  

Meeting Summary  
February 7, 2019 

Participants  
Kathy Jurries, Calhoun County Recorder  Chuck Hendricks, Iowa State Bar Assn.   
Julie Haggerty, Polk County Recorder   John McKinney, Community Bankers of Iowa  

Bob Rafferty, Rafferty Group   Phil Dunshee, Iowa Land Records  
Lisa Long, Iowa Land Records   Kati Ross, Iowa Land Records 
Leah Champion, Iowa Land Records 

Committee Members Participating Via Teleconference  
Janelle Schneider, Adair County Recorder   Travis Case, Grundy County Recorder 
Diane Swoboda Peterson, Woodbury County Recorder  Eric Sloan, ICIT 
Lindsay Laufersweiler, Webster County Recorder  Nancy Booten, Lee County Recorder   
Melissa Bahnsen, Cedar County Recorder   Dave Rubow, ILTA 
Deb Roberts, Floyd County Recorder 

Welcome  
The meeting of the ESS Coordinating Committee was held at the Iowa Land Records office and via 
teleconference. The meeting was called to order by Travis Case and introductions were made.  

Meeting Summary 
The November 8, 2018 Meeting Summary was reviewed. Nancy Booten made a motion to approve the 
Meeting Summary pending a correction to the meeting calendar. Janelle Schneider seconded, and the 
motion was approved.  

ESS Election of Officers 
The Committee was presented with a nomination for the Communications Subcommittee to replace Lisa 
Schreiner as the District 5 representative. A motion was made by Deb Roberts to approve the 
appointment. It was seconded by Lindsay Laufersweiler. The motion was approved. 

Nancy Booten moved to nominate Kathy Jurries as Chair of the ESS Coordinating Committee. The motion 
was seconded by Julie Haggerty. The motion was approved. 

A motion was made to nominate Julie Haggerty as Vice‐Chair of the ESS Coordinating Committee by 
Travis Case, and it was seconded by Melissa Bahnsen. The motion was approved. 

A motion was made by Julie Haggerty to nominate Deb Roberts as Secretary/Treasurer of the 
Coordinating Committee. The motion was seconded by Melissa Bahnsen. The motion was approved. 

Financial Reports  
BOA 2018 4th Quarter Report and the Fund 255 FY 2019 2nd Quarter Report 
The Committee reviewed the BOA 2018 Fourth Quarter Report and the Fund 255 FY 2019 Second 
Quarter Report. Julie Haggerty made a motion to approve the BOA and Fund 255 Financial Reports. 
Diane Swoboda Peterson seconded, and the motion was approved. 

2



 
Assignment of Credits for E‐Submission 
The Project Manager provided the Subcommittee with a memo and ratio tables relating to the Calendar 
Year 2019 Maintenance Credits for all counties. The Committee discussed options for proceeding with 
the cost sharing amounts for 2019. A motion was made to establish a policy continuing the current cost‐
sharing percentages with a one‐time provision in 2019 ensuring that no County would receive less than 
it received in 2018. Julie Haggerty made the motion, and Nancy Booten seconded. The motion was 
approved. 
 
Revenue Trends 
Overall recording activity declined in the final months of 2018, causing revenues for Fund 255 and the 
Bank of America account to fall below projections. The Project Manager reported that the revenue 
trends will be closely monitored, and any necessary adjustments will be made as a part of the normal 
budget amendment process in May. 
 
Contracts & Agreements  
FY 2019 Maintenance Agreements 
The Project Manager presented a new draft of the maintenance agreement to further clarify 
responsibilities of local service providers working with ESS. The Committee discussed the agreement and 
concurred with plans to move forward with negotiations.  
 
POS Update and County Affiliate Update 
The Committee received information about the possible use of the Point of Sale system by other County 
offices. The Committee discussed the option and determined they were not interested in the idea at this 
time. 
 
Online Payment Development 
The Committee was updated on the timeline for integrating the new payment gateway with the E‐
Submission application.  
 
Professional Services Engagements 
Denman – CY 2018 Audit 
The Project Manager made a recommendation to the ESS Coordinating Committee to continue the 
engagement with Denman & Company for the CY 2018 Audit. A motion was made by John McKinney to 
approve contracting with Denman for the 2018 calendar‐year audit. Julie Haggerty seconded the motion 
and the motion was approved. 
 
Policies and Procedures 
Chapter 1 Amendment – POS PIN Bypass Policy  
The Project Manager presented the Committee with an amendment to the Policies and Procedures 

relating to the point of sale system and the process of bypassing the entry of a PIN number. This action 

is necessary to ensure that a surcharge is collected from the customer. Lindsay Laufersweiler made a 

motion to approve the amendment and Julie Haggerty seconded the motion. The motion was approved. 

Remote Notarization 
The Committee received an update on legislation regarding remote notarization.  
 
 

3



Reserve Fund Policy 
The Project Manager identified a need to amend Section 1.7 of Policies and Procedures with respect to 
the BOA Reserve Fund which was established in 2017. The Committee discussed the current reserve 
policies and directed the issue to the Standards Subcommittee for further review. 
 
Section 5.x – Electronic Document Rejection Update 
The Committee received an update on the status of the PRIA project to reduce the volume of document 
rejections. A draft paper and best practices document is currently being edited, and preparations are 
being made to present a report at an upcoming PRIA conference.  
 
Key Project Updates 
E‐Submission 2.0 Submitter’s Focus Groups  
The Committee was updated on efforts to gather data and feedback regarding improvements to the 
Iowa Land Records E‐Submission interface from the customer’s perspective. 
 
E‐Submission 2.0 Recorder’s Interface  
The Iowa Land Records team discussed modifications being made to the E‐Submission 2.0 Recorders’ 
interface to allow Recorders to download and print documents on local systems, except for surveys and 
plats.  
  
Content Management and Web Development 
The Committee received an update on plans for selecting a vendor to assist with the development of a 
new content management system for the ILR web site.  
 
Other Project Updates 
County Recorder E‐Submission Campaign 
The Director of Marketing and Communications provided an update on campaigns in progress.  
 
IRS Safeguard Update 
The Project Manager reported that the ILR Team continues to work on final items included in the 2016 
IRS Safeguard report. The IRS will be visiting the Iowa Land Records office for an audit or our systems 
again in August, 2019. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:00 PM.   
 

4



Jan - Mar 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Reserve Expenses Spent 5,788.71

E-Recording Fee 128,565.80

Interest 3,812.04

Total Income 138,166.55

Expense
Administration

Business Analysis & QA 6,270.00

Communications 9,187.50

Accounting 625.00

Administrative Assistant 3,850.00

Computer Equipment 21.19

ESS Meetings
ESS Meeting Expenses 148.91

Total ESS Meetings 148.91

Legal Fees 3,000.00

Legal Fees - Govt. Relations 2,500.00

Professional Fees
Aureon 780.00

Total Professional Fees 780.00

Project Management 16,250.00

Total Administration 42,632.60

Customer Support
Account Manager 17,963.52

Total Customer Support 17,963.52

Education and Outreach
MISMO Meetings 1,024.82

CBI Membership 775.00

IMA Membership 200.00

Misc. Color Printing 216.69

Online Educational Tools
Salesforce-Exact Target -292.05

Online Educational Tools - Other 315.12

Total Online Educational Tools 23.07

PRIA Meetings 2,435.87

Promotional Items 95.38

Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit
Exhibit Registration 1,075.00

Total Tradeshow - Meeting Exhibit 1,075.00

Workshops
Facility Rental 200.00

Total Workshops 200.00

Total Education and Outreach 6,045.83

Hosting
Bandwidth 13,079.70

11:34 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

04/22/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2019

Page 1
5



Jan - Mar 19

Software
FTP Software 181.44

Jira/Confluence 90.72

Cloud Storage 500.80

Total Software 772.96

Total Hosting 13,852.66

ILR External Develo-Programming
Redaction Services

Back File Redaction 5,788.71

Forward File Redaction 10,178.48

Total Redaction Services 15,967.19

Total ILR External Develo-Programming 15,967.19

ILR Internal Develo-Programming
Technical Lead 32,168.68

Total ILR Internal Develo-Programming 32,168.68

Miscellaneous -100.00

Office Operations
B&W copying-printing 103.76

Office Space Lease 7,500.00

Office Supplies 33.62

Official Publication Expense 158.40

Teleconference 670.71

Telephone/Internet 1,440.00

Office Tech Support 1,620.54

Total Office Operations 11,527.03

Total Expense 140,057.51

Net Ordinary Income -1,890.96

Net Income -1,890.96

11:34 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

04/22/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2019

Page 2
6



Mar 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
State Treasurer

Unrestricted Operating Reserve 107,118.09

Equipment Replacement Fund 350,000.00

Restricted Operating Reserve 100,000.00

Redaction Reserve Account 38,292.03

State Treasurer - Other 105,265.46

Total State Treasurer 700,675.58

Total Checking/Savings 700,675.58

Total Current Assets 700,675.58

TOTAL ASSETS 700,675.58

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Opening Bal Equity 433,569.23

Retained Earnings 1,016,049.98

Reserved Retained Earnings -756,575.50

Net Income 7,631.87

Total Equity 700,675.58

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 700,675.58

11:31 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

04/22/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2019

Page 1
7



J
a
n

 -
 M

a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e
/E

x
p

e
n

s
e

In
c
o

m
e

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 S

p
e
n

t
5
,7

8
8
.7

1

E
-R

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 F

e
e

1
2
8
,5

6
5
.8

0
1
4
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
-1

3
,9

3
4
.2

0

In
te

re
s
t

3
,8

1
2
.0

4
1
,9

5
0
.0

0
1
,8

6
2
.0

4

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

1
3
8
,1

6
6
.5

5
1
4
4
,4

5
0
.0

0
-6

,2
8
3
.4

5

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 &
 Q

A
6
,2

7
0
.0

0
6
,3

0
0
.0

0
-3

0
.0

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
9
,1

8
7
.5

0
9
,7

5
0
.0

0
-5

6
2
.5

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
6
2
5
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
2
5
.0

0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
3
,8

5
0
.0

0
4
,5

0
0
.0

0
-6

5
0
.0

0

B
a
n

k
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
2
1
.1

9
0
.0

0
2
1
.1

9

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
E

S
S

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

1
4
8
.9

1

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-1

,2
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

S
S

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
1
4
8
.9

1
1
,2

0
0
.0

0
-1

,0
5
1
.0

9

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s
 -

 G
o

v
t.

 R
e
la

ti
o

n
s

2
,5

0
0
.0

0
2
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

A
u

re
o

n
7
8
0
.0

0
9
1
0
.0

0
-1

3
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

7
8
0
.0

0
9
1
0
.0

0
-1

3
0
.0

0

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
1
6
,2

5
0
.0

0
1
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
-2

5
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

4
2
,6

3
2
.6

0
4
4
,6

6
0
.0

0
-2

,0
2
7
.4

0

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

R
e
m

o
te

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
p

.
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

1
7
,9

6
3
.5

2
2
0
,6

9
8
.8

4
-2

,7
3
5
.3

2

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

&
 Q

A
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
7
,9

6
3
.5

2
2
0
,6

9
8
.8

4
-2

,7
3
5
.3

2

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

M
IS

M
O

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
1
,0

2
4
.8

2

C
B

I 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

7
7
5
.0

0

IM
A

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

2
0
0
.0

0

M
is

c
. 
C

o
lo

r 
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
2
1
6
.6

9

1
2
:2

1
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 1

8



J
a
n

 -
 M

a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
S

a
le

s
fo

rc
e
-E

x
a
c
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

-2
9
2
.0

5

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
 -

 O
th

e
r

3
1
5
.1

2

T
o

ta
l 
O

n
li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
2
3
.0

7

P
R

IA
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
2
,4

3
5
.8

7

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
It

e
m

s
9
5
.3

8

T
ra

d
e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

E
x
h

ib
it

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

1
,0

7
5
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
d

e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

1
,0

7
5
.0

0

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
F

a
c
il
it

y
 R

e
n

ta
l

2
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
2
0
0
.0

0

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 -
 O

th
e
r

0
.0

0
1
1
,3

4
0
.0

0
-1

1
,3

4
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

6
,0

4
5
.8

3
1
1
,3

4
0
.0

0
-5

,2
9
4
.1

7

H
o

s
ti

n
g

B
a
n

d
w

id
th

1
3
,0

7
9
.7

0
9
,3

0
0
.0

0
3
,7

7
9
.7

0

D
o

m
a
in

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

0
.0

0
1
5
.0

0
-1

5
.0

0

S
o

ft
w

a
re

F
T

P
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

1
8
1
.4

4
2
8
5
.0

0
-1

0
3
.5

6

J
ir

a
/C

o
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

9
0
.7

2
9
0
.0

0
0
.7

2

C
lo

u
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
5
0
0
.8

0
6
5
0
.0

0
-1

4
9
.2

0

G
e
o

IP
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
it

y
 S

ta
te

 Z
ip

 d
a
ta

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

7
7
2
.9

6
1
,0

2
5
.0

0
-2

5
2
.0

4

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
s
ti

n
g

1
3
,8

5
2
.6

6
1
0
,3

4
0
.0

0
3
,5

1
2
.6

6

IL
R

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
k
 F

il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

5
,7

8
8
.7

1

F
o

rw
a
rd

 F
il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

1
0
,1

7
8
.4

8
0
.0

0
1
0
,1

7
8
.4

8

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
1
7
,2

5
0
.0

0
-1

7
,2

5
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
5
,9

6
7
.1

9
1
7
,2

5
0
.0

0
-1

,2
8
2
.8

1

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

1
5
,9

6
7
.1

9
1
7
,2

5
0
.0

0
-1

,2
8
2
.8

1

IL
R

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
L

e
a
d

3
2
,1

6
8
.6

8
3
7
,4

4
6
.9

6
-5

,2
7
8
.2

8

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

3
2
,1

6
8
.6

8
3
7
,4

4
6
.9

6
-5

,2
7
8
.2

8

1
2
:2

1
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 2

9



J
a
n

 -
 M

a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

-1
0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

B
&

W
 c

o
p

y
in

g
-p

ri
n

ti
n

g
1
0
3
.7

6
1
5
0
.0

0
-4

6
.2

4

O
ff

ic
e
 S

p
a
c
e
 L

e
a
s
e

7
,5

0
0
.0

0
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 S

u
p

p
li
e
s

3
3
.6

2
1
0
0
.0

0
-6

6
.3

8

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e

1
5
8
.4

0
1
0
5
.0

0
5
3
.4

0

P
a
rk

in
g

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
o

s
ta

g
e

0
.0

0
5
0
.0

0
-5

0
.0

0

T
e
le

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

6
7
0
.7

1
4
5
0
.0

0
2
2
0
.7

1

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
/I
n

te
rn

e
t

1
,4

4
0
.0

0
1
,4

4
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 T

e
c
h

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
,6

2
0
.5

4
1
,7

2
5
.0

0
-1

0
4
.4

6

T
o

ta
l 
O

ff
ic

e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

1
1
,5

2
7
.0

3
1
1
,5

2
0
.0

0
7
.0

3

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

1
4
0
,0

5
7
.5

1
1
5
3
,2

5
5
.8

0
-1

3
,1

9
8
.2

9

N
e
t 

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e

-1
,8

9
0
.9

6
-8

,8
0
5
.8

0
6
,9

1
4
.8

4

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,8

9
0
.9

6
-8

,8
0
5
.8

0
6
,9

1
4
.8

4

1
2
:2

1
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
a
n

u
a
ry

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 3

10



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 M
a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e
/E

x
p

e
n

s
e

In
c
o

m
e

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 S

p
e
n

t
2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3
0
.0

0
2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3

E
-R

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 F

e
e

4
3
3
,4

6
9
.4

2
4
5
2
,0

7
2
.5

2
-1

8
,6

0
3
.1

0

In
te

re
s
t

1
0
,1

2
1
.0

1
7
,2

4
9
.1

5
2
,8

7
1
.8

6

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

4
6
9
,0

1
6
.3

6
4
5
9
,3

2
1
.6

7
9
,6

9
4
.6

9

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 &
 Q

A
1
8
,1

7
7
.5

0
1
8
,2

1
7
.5

0
-4

0
.0

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
2
7
,8

3
3
.7

5
2
8
,3

4
6
.2

5
-5

1
2
.5

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
5
,5

7
5
.0

0
5
,5

7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
7
,5

8
0
.0

0
9
,2

5
0
.0

0
-1

,6
7
0
.0

0

B
a
n

k
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
2
1
.1

9
0
.0

0
2
1
.1

9

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
E

S
S

 T
ra

v
e
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

9
8
0
.1

6

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

8
4
2
.6

4

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
3
,6

0
0
.0

0
-3

,6
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

S
S

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
1
,8

2
2
.8

0
3
,6

0
0
.0

0
-1

,7
7
7
.2

0

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

E
rr

o
rs

 a
n

d
 O

m
is

s
io

n
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
ia

b
il
it

y
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

-1
5
.0

0

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

ia
b

il
it

y
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
-1

5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

-1
5
.0

0
-1

5
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s

9
,0

0
0
.0

0
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s
 -

 G
o

v
t.

 R
e
la

ti
o

n
s

6
,5

0
0
.0

0
6
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

A
u

re
o

n
2
,4

7
0
.0

0
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
-1

3
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

2
,4

7
0
.0

0
2
,6

0
0
.0

0
-1

3
0
.0

0

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
4
9
,2

1
2
.5

0
4
9
,4

6
2
.5

0
-2

5
0
.0

0

A
d

m
in

 A
s
s
t 

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

1
2
8
,1

7
7
.7

4
1
3
2
,5

3
6
.2

5
-4

,3
5
8
.5

1

1
2
:2

5
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 1

11



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 A
p

r 
1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e
/E

x
p

e
n

s
e

In
c
o

m
e

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 S

p
e
n

t
2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3
0
.0

0
2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3

E
-R

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 F

e
e

4
6
5
,2

7
9
.4

5
4
9
9
,5

7
2
.5

2
-3

4
,2

9
3
.0

7

In
te

re
s
t

1
1
,5

3
9
.4

5
7
,8

9
9
.1

5
3
,6

4
0
.3

0

T
o

ta
l 
In

c
o

m
e

5
0
2
,2

4
4
.8

3
5
0
7
,4

7
1
.6

7
-5

,2
2
6
.8

4

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 &
 Q

A
2
0
,2

6
7
.5

0
2
0
,3

1
7
.5

0
-5

0
.0

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
3
1
,4

1
5
.0

0
3
1
,5

9
6
.2

5
-1

8
1
.2

5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
5
,5

7
5
.0

0
5
,5

7
5
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n

t
8
,9

1
0
.0

0
1
0
,7

5
0
.0

0
-1

,8
4
0
.0

0

B
a
n

k
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
2
1
.1

9
0
.0

0
2
1
.1

9

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
E

S
S

 T
ra

v
e
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

9
8
0
.1

6

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

8
5
8
.6

4

E
S

S
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
3
,6

0
0
.0

0
-3

,6
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
E

S
S

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
1
,8

3
8
.8

0
3
,6

0
0
.0

0
-1

,7
6
1
.2

0

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

D
ir

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

E
rr

o
rs

 a
n

d
 O

m
is

s
io

n
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
ia

b
il
it

y
 I
n

s
u

ra
n

c
e

-1
5
.0

0

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

n
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

ia
b

il
it

y
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
-1

5
.0

0
1
5
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

-1
5
.0

0
-1

5
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s

1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

L
e
g

a
l 
F

e
e
s
 -

 G
o

v
t.

 R
e
la

ti
o

n
s

7
,5

0
0
.0

0
7
,5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

A
u

re
o

n
2
,8

6
0
.0

0
2
,8

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

e
e
s

2
,8

6
0
.0

0
2
,8

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
5
4
,7

1
2
.5

0
5
4
,9

6
2
.5

0
-2

5
0
.0

0

A
d

m
in

 A
s
s
t 

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
e
rs

o
n

n
e
l 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti

o
n

1
4
3
,0

8
4
.9

9
1
4
7
,1

4
6
.2

5
-4

,0
6
1
.2

6

1
2
:2

7
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 1

12



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 A
p

r 
1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

R
e
m

o
te

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
p

.
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

6
4
,2

4
5
.4

4
6
4
,2

9
0
.6

4
-4

5
.2

0

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

&
 Q

A
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

6
4
,2

4
5
.4

4
6
4
,2

9
0
.6

4
-4

5
.2

0

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

P
o

s
ta

g
e

5
0
.7

6

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t
9
9
.2

8

IC
R

A
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
3
9
9
.8

7

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 E

-S
u

b
 P

ro
m

o
 C

o
n

te
n

t
7
0
0
.0

0

M
IS

M
O

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
2
,2

9
0
.9

1

M
IS

M
O

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

2
,5

0
0
.0

0

C
B

I 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

7
7
5
.0

0

P
ri

n
te

d
 E

-S
u

b
 P

ro
m

o
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

2
5
4
.2

5

IC
R

A
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
2
8
.2

3

IM
A

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

2
0
0
.0

0

M
is

c
. 
C

o
lo

r 
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
9
0
2
.9

6

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
S

u
rv

e
y

 M
o

n
k
e
y

7
4
1
.2

1

A
d

o
b

e
 C

o
n

n
e
c
t

1
,0

0
0
.0

0

S
a
le

s
fo

rc
e
-E

x
a
c
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

6
,6

0
7
.1

1

S
a
le

s
fo

rc
e
-C

R
M

2
,7

0
0
.0

0

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
 -

 O
th

e
r

1
,0

4
2
.1

6

T
o

ta
l 
O

n
li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
1
2
,0

9
0
.4

8

P
R

IA
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
5
,0

5
7
.9

7

P
R

IA
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

6
7
5
.0

0

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
It

e
m

s
9
5
.3

8

T
ra

d
e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

E
x
h

ib
it

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

2
,3

7
5
.0

0

E
x
h

ib
it

 D
ra

w
in

g
1
,1

6
2
.3

0

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
d

e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

3
,5

3
7
.3

0

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
F

a
c
il
it

y
 R

e
n

ta
l

3
2
5
.0

0

L
o

d
g

in
g

1
9
9
.3

6

T
ra

v
e
l

M
e
a
l 
R

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
3
7
.1

8

m
il
e
a
g

e
 r

e
im

b
u

rs
e
m

e
n

t
2
5
5
.7

0

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
v

e
l

2
9
2
.8

8

T
o

ta
l 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
8
1
7
.2

4

1
2
:2

7
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 2

13



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 A
p

r 
1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 -
 O

th
e
r

0
.0

0
3
6
,9

3
8
.8

5
-3

6
,9

3
8
.8

5

T
o

ta
l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

3
0
,5

7
4
.6

3
3
6
,9

3
8
.8

5
-6

,3
6
4
.2

2

H
o

s
ti

n
g

B
a
n

d
w

id
th

3
8
,2

9
5
.9

0
3
0
,8

6
4
.5

0
7
,4

3
1
.4

0

D
o

m
a
in

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

7
5
5
.1

0
7
7
1
.6

8
-1

6
.5

8

S
o

ft
w

a
re

J
e
t 

B
ra

in
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

N
e
s
s
u

s
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
u

s
o

ft
-P

ri
z
m

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

D
B

 2
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

F
T

P
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

8
1
6
.4

8
9
3
2
.8

8
-1

1
6
.4

0

J
ir

a
/C

o
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

2
7
2
.1

6
2
7
6
.0

0
-3

.8
4

C
lo

u
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
6
8
6
.9

4
1
,0

4
9
.2

4
-3

6
2
.3

0

G
e
o

IP
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
it

y
 S

ta
te

 Z
ip

 d
a
ta

2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

V
M

W
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

1
,9

7
5
.5

8
2
,4

5
8
.1

2
-4

8
2
.5

4

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
s
ti

n
g

4
1
,0

2
6
.5

8
3
4
,0

9
4
.3

0
6
,9

3
2
.2

8

IL
R

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
k
 F

il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3

F
o

rw
a
rd

 F
il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

5
5
,5

7
8
.4

9
0
.0

0
5
5
,5

7
8
.4

9

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
5
9
,1

6
8
.7

8
-5

9
,1

6
8
.7

8

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

8
1
,0

0
4
.4

2
5
9
,1

6
8
.7

8
2
1
,8

3
5
.6

4

S
o

ft
w

a
re

-S
y

s
te

m
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

S
y

s
A

d
m

n
-D

B
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

8
1
,0

0
4
.4

2
5
9
,1

6
8
.7

8
2
1
,8

3
5
.6

4

IL
R

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
L

e
a
d

1
1
6
,4

5
3
.2

5
1
1
6
,6

2
6
.9

3
-1

7
3
.6

8

T
ra

in
in

g
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

1
1
6
,4

5
3
.2

5
1
1
6
,6

2
6
.9

3
-1

7
3
.6

8

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

4
0
.3

0

1
2
:2

7
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 3

14



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 A
p

r 
1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

O
ff

ic
e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

B
&

W
 c

o
p

y
in

g
-p

ri
n

ti
n

g
3
6
7
.6

7
4
3
7
.9

1
-7

0
.2

4

O
ff

ic
e
 S

p
a
c
e
 L

e
a
s
e

2
4
,8

0
0
.0

0
2
4
,8

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 S

u
p

p
li
e
s

6
7
.1

4
2
1
5
.1

5
-1

4
8
.0

1

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e

3
9
1
.2

1
3
6
8
.6

6
2
2
.5

5

P
a
rk

in
g

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
o

s
ta

g
e

2
4
8
.8

4
3
4
2
.1

3
-9

3
.2

9

T
e
le

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

2
,5

4
8
.0

8
2
,0

5
1
.4

6
4
9
6
.6

2

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
/I
n

te
rn

e
t

4
,8

0
0
.0

0
4
,8

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 T

e
c
h

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

5
,4

0
1
.8

0
5
,5

7
5
.9

0
-1

7
4
.1

0

T
o

ta
l 
O

ff
ic

e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

3
8
,6

2
4
.7

4
3
8
,5

9
1
.2

1
3
3
.5

3

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

5
1
5
,0

5
4
.3

5
4
9
6
,8

5
6
.9

6
1
8
,1

9
7
.3

9

N
e
t 

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e

-1
2
,8

0
9
.5

2
1
0
,6

1
4
.7

1
-2

3
,4

2
4
.2

3

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

-1
2
,8

0
9
.5

2
1
0
,6

1
4
.7

1
-2

3
,4

2
4
.2

3

1
2
:2

7
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 4

15



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 M
a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

R
e
m

o
te

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
p

.
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

5
5
,6

4
0
.4

6
5
8
,3

6
5
.6

4
-2

,7
2
5
.1

8

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

&
 Q

A
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

5
5
,6

4
0
.4

6
5
8
,3

6
5
.6

4
-2

,7
2
5
.1

8

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

P
o

s
ta

g
e

5
0
.7

6

S
ta

k
e
h

o
ld

e
r 

E
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t
9
9
.2

8

IC
R

A
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
3
7
9
.8

7

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 E

-S
u

b
 P

ro
m

o
 C

o
n

te
n

t
7
0
0
.0

0

M
IS

M
O

 M
e
e
ti

n
g

s
2
,2

9
0
.9

1

M
IS

M
O

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

2
,5

0
0
.0

0

C
B

I 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

7
7
5
.0

0

P
ri

n
te

d
 E

-S
u

b
 P

ro
m

o
 M

a
te

ri
a
ls

2
5
4
.2

5

IM
A

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

2
0
0
.0

0

M
is

c
. 
C

o
lo

r 
P

ri
n

ti
n

g
5
7
6
.5

0

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
S

u
rv

e
y

 M
o

n
k
e
y

7
4
1
.2

1

A
d

o
b

e
 C

o
n

n
e
c
t

1
,0

0
0
.0

0

S
a
le

s
fo

rc
e
-E

x
a
c
t 

T
a
rg

e
t

6
,6

7
1
.7

6

S
a
le

s
fo

rc
e
-C

R
M

2
,7

0
0
.0

0

O
n

li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
 -

 O
th

e
r

9
3
3
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
O

n
li
n

e
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
T

o
o

ls
1
2
,0

4
5
.9

7

P
R

IA
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

s
4
,5

8
5
.4

8

P
R

IA
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

6
7
5
.0

0

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a
l 
It

e
m

s
9
5
.3

8

T
ra

d
e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

E
x
h

ib
it

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

2
,3

7
5
.0

0

E
x
h

ib
it

 D
ra

w
in

g
1
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
T

ra
d

e
s
h

o
w

 -
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it

2
,4

7
5
.0

0

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
F

a
c
il
it

y
 R

e
n

ta
l

2
0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
2
0
0
.0

0

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

 -
 O

th
e
r

0
.0

0
3
2
,1

0
8
.8

5
-3

2
,1

0
8
.8

5

T
o

ta
l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 O

u
tr

e
a
c
h

2
7
,9

0
3
.4

0
3
2
,1

0
8
.8

5
-4

,2
0
5
.4

5

H
o

s
ti

n
g

B
a
n

d
w

id
th

3
5
,2

2
3
.0

0
2
7
,7

6
4
.5

0
7
,4

5
8
.5

0

D
o

m
a
in

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

6
8
1
.6

8
6
9
6
.6

8
-1

5
.0

0

1
2
:2

5
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 2

16



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 M
a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

S
o

ft
w

a
re

J
e
t 

B
ra

in
s

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

N
e
s
s
u

s
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

A
c
c
u

s
o

ft
-P

ri
z
m

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

D
B

 2
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

F
T

P
 S

o
ft

w
a
re

7
2
5
.7

6
8
3
7
.8

8
-1

1
2
.1

2

J
ir

a
/C

o
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

2
4
1
.9

2
2
4
6
.0

0
-4

.0
8

C
lo

u
d

 S
to

ra
g

e
6
5
0
.6

6
7
9
9
.2

4
-1

4
8
.5

8

G
e
o

IP
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

C
it

y
 S

ta
te

 Z
ip

 d
a
ta

2
0
0
.0

0
2
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

V
M

W
a
re

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
S

o
ft

w
a
re

1
,8

1
8
.3

4
2
,0

8
3
.1

2
-2

6
4
.7

8

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
s
ti

n
g

3
7
,7

2
3
.0

2
3
0
,5

4
4
.3

0
7
,1

7
8
.7

2

IL
R

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
k
 F

il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

2
5
,4

2
5
.9

3

F
o

rw
a
rd

 F
il
e
 R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

5
1
,1

1
0
.4

6
0
.0

0
5
1
,1

1
0
.4

6

R
e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

0
.0

0
5
3
,4

1
8
.7

8
-5

3
,4

1
8
.7

8

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
d

a
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

7
6
,5

3
6
.3

9
5
3
,4

1
8
.7

8
2
3
,1

1
7
.6

1

S
o

ft
w

a
re

-S
y

s
te

m
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

S
y

s
A

d
m

n
-D

B
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

7
6
,5

3
6
.3

9
5
3
,4

1
8
.7

8
2
3
,1

1
7
.6

1

IL
R

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
L

e
a
d

1
0
0
,6

0
2
.3

9
1
0
5
,9

2
7
.8

0
-5

,3
2
5
.4

1

T
ra

in
in

g
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 
IL

R
 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

-P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

1
0
0
,6

0
2
.3

9
1
0
5
,9

2
7
.8

0
-5

,3
2
5
.4

1

M
is

c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

4
0
.3

0

O
ff

ic
e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

B
&

W
 c

o
p

y
in

g
-p

ri
n

ti
n

g
3
3
3
.1

9
3
8
7
.9

1
-5

4
.7

2

O
ff

ic
e
 S

p
a
c
e
 L

e
a
s
e

2
2
,3

0
0
.0

0
2
2
,3

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 S

u
p

p
li
e
s

4
8
.4

7
1
1
5
.1

5
-6

6
.6

8

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
P

u
b

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e

3
7
0
.0

1
3
3
3
.6

6
3
6
.3

5

P
a
rk

in
g

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

P
o

s
ta

g
e

2
4
8
.8

4
2
9
2
.1

3
-4

3
.2

9

T
e
le

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

2
,2

7
8
.6

6
1
,9

0
1
.4

6
3
7
7
.2

0

1
2
:2

5
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 3

17



J
u

l 
'1

8
 -

 M
a
r 

1
9

B
u

d
g

e
t

$
 O

v
e
r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
/I
n

te
rn

e
t

4
,3

2
0
.0

0
4
,3

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0

O
ff

ic
e
 T

e
c
h

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

4
,8

6
1
.6

2
5
,0

0
0
.9

0
-1

3
9
.2

8

T
o

ta
l 
O

ff
ic

e
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

3
4
,7

6
0
.7

9
3
4
,6

5
1
.2

1
1
0
9
.5

8

T
o

ta
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

4
6
1
,3

8
4
.4

9
4
4
7
,5

5
2
.8

3
1
3
,8

3
1
.6

6

N
e
t 

O
rd

in
a
ry

 I
n

c
o

m
e

7
,6

3
1
.8

7
1
1
,7

6
8
.8

4
-4

,1
3
6
.9

7

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e

7
,6

3
1
.8

7
1
1
,7

6
8
.8

4
-4

,1
3
6
.9

7

1
2
:2

5
 P

M
Io

w
a

 L
a

n
d

 R
e

c
o

rd
s

 -
 F

u
n

d
 2

5
5

0
5
/0

3
/1

9
P

ro
fi

t 
&

 L
o

s
s
 B

u
d

g
e
t 

v
s
. 
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
c
ru

a
l 
B

a
s
is

J
u

ly
 2

0
1
8
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
9

P
a
g

e
 4

18



Jan - Mar 19

Income
BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 30.00

PMTSERVICEFEE 339.52

POSSERVICEFEE 15,926.53

SERVICEFEE
ACH 114,049.49

CC 13,259.26

DDCC 716.26

DRAWDOWN 22,496.00

Total SERVICEFEE 150,521.01

Total BudgetedIncome 166,817.06

RevolvingIncome
ERECORDING

AUDITORFEE 48,820.00

TRANSFERTAX 1,998,661.60

ERECORDING - Other 1,154,804.90

Total ERECORDING 3,202,286.50

Expense Reimbursement - CLRIS 61,838.79

Fund 255 Repayment 16.91

HPPAYMENT 7,442.65

POSPAYMENT 579,268.99

Total RevolvingIncome 3,850,853.84

Total Income 4,017,670.90

Expense
Advertising 0.00

Bank Service Charges 114.68

Budgeted Expenses
Accounting

Accounting Software-Services 3,864.94

Bookkeeping 13,200.00

Total Accounting 17,064.94

Administrative Support 3,860.00

Business Analysis- Comm 6,270.00

EDS Credit Card Setup-Support
Local Credit Card Equipment 398.00

Total EDS Credit Card Setup-Support 398.00

Marketing-Communications 9,243.75

Office Tech Support 1,620.54

Payment Expenses
Bank Account Analysis Fee 2,925.25

BOA Merchant Service Charge
BOAOLN 430132313509772 Mer Acct 6,852.99

BOAOTC 430132313849862 Mer Acct 1,421.81

Total BOA Merchant Service Charge 8,274.80

Gateway Transaction Fees
EDS Online Transaction Fees 12,722.90

EDS OTC Transaction Fees 760.20

POSTransactionsFees 10,829.60

Total Gateway Transaction Fees 24,312.70

Total Payment Expenses 35,512.75

10:56 AM Iowa County Recorders Association

04/22/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2019

Page 1
19



Jan - Mar 19

Project Management 16,250.00

Software Dev. - Programming 70,148.59

Software License-Maintenance 9,367.00

Total Budgeted Expenses 169,735.57

Depreciation Expense 14,164.92

Miscellaneous -0.02

Planned Reserve Expenses
Software License Expense 1,556.00

Total Planned Reserve Expenses 1,556.00

RevolvingExpenses
Computer Equipmnt 21.19

Computer Software 326.99

Dues and Subscriptions 666.88

Education and Outreach-Rev 3,976.04

ESS Committee
ESS Meeting Expenses 148.91

Official Publications 97.80

Total ESS Committee 246.71

ESSPayments
COUNTYDISTRIBUTION 3,195,971.00

PMTDISTRIBUTION 7,152.65

POSDISTRIBUTION 569,701.61

Total ESSPayments 3,772,825.26

Legal Fees 5,500.00

Merit Resources 56,539.00

Office Supplies 18.67

Teleconference 379.90

Total RevolvingExpenses 3,840,500.64

Total Expense 4,026,071.79

Net Income -8,400.89

10:56 AM Iowa County Recorders Association

04/22/19 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis January through March 2019

Page 2
20



Mar 31, 19

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Bank of America

Unrestricted Reserve Account 40,000.00

Bank of America - Other 677,050.09

Total Bank of America 717,050.09

Total Checking/Savings 717,050.09

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable 2,420.40

Total Accounts Receivable 2,420.40

Other Current Assets
Due from State 9,151.38

Prepaid Expenses 149,596.23

Total Other Current Assets 158,747.61

Total Current Assets 878,218.10

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation -459,314.26

Asset in Process 221,952.42

Computer Equipment 566,393.44

Total Fixed Assets 329,031.60

TOTAL ASSETS 1,207,249.70

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable 14,369.60

Total Accounts Payable 14,369.60

Credit Cards
Corp-BOA Visa 2026 2,558.57

Total Credit Cards 2,558.57

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Compensation 23,490.53

Deferred Revenues 137,670.97

DRAWDOWN 34,431.30

Total Other Current Liabilities 195,592.80

Total Current Liabilities 212,520.97

Total Liabilities 212,520.97

Equity
Retained Earnings 1,003,129.62

Net Income -8,400.89

Total Equity 994,728.73

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,207,249.70

9:37 AM Iowa County Recorders Association

04/22/19 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of March 31, 2019

Page 1
21



 11:13 AM
 04/22/19
 Accrual Basis

 Iowa County Recorders Association
 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

 January through March 2019

����������	
 ����� ������������

������

������������

�������������� ����� 
���� ������

������������ ���� ���� ����

 ���!�"�������������#����$���� ���� ���� ����

��%"�&'�(���� ��
�)*

��""�&'�(���� 	)+
*��)� 	,+������ �*+�-��.-

"�&'�(���� 	)�+)*	��	 	,�+������ ��)+.-,�



%���!������������� 	��+,	-��� *�.+�
���� ��-+*-*�
.

%���!������� 	��+,	-��� *�.+�
���� ��-+*-*�
.

�/0��1�

��������/0��1�1

$������#��

���22��0#�� 	�+*����� 	�+*����� ����

$������#�������3�� ���� �+-
���� ��+-
����

%���!�$������#�� 	�+*����� 	�+

���� ��+-
����

$�#�#1����#���"�00��� �+,����� .+)����� ��.����

��1#��11�$��!�1#1��(��� �+*-���� �+������ ������

�4"�(��#��(���"���0�"�00��� �
,��� �+������ �*+��*���

�������/0��1�1 ���� ���� ����

��1��������/0��1� ���� ���� ����

���2��#���(�����#���#��1 
+*.��-) 
+-)���� �)���*)

�55#���%��3�"�00��� 	+�*��). 	+�)���� �*
�.�

���������/0��1�1 �)+)	*�-) �
+������ ��+.,-�*)

���6�������������� 	�+*)���� 	�+)����� �*)����

"�5�7����4��������������#�� -�+	.,�)
 -�+������ 	.,�)


"�5�7���� #���1����#�������� 
+��-��� 	�+	)���� �-,����

%���!���������/0��1�1 	�)+,-���� 	--+,.���� �		+
�
��-

%���!��/0��1� 	�)+,-���� 	--+,.���� �		+
�
��-

8��������� 
.��.� *�+*)���� �*)+����)-

 Page 1 of 122



Iowa County Recorders Association 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2018 

DRAFT

23



 

 

Accountant’s Compilation Report 
 
 
Iowa County Recorders Association 
Toledo, IA  52342 
 
Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Iowa County Recorders 
Association (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
December 31, 2018, and the related statement of activities for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a 
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not 
audit or review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the 
accuracy or the completeness of the information provided by management, and we do not express an 
opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements. 
 
Management has elected to omit substantially all the disclosures and the statement of cash flows 
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted 
disclosures and the statement of cash flows were included in the financial statements, they might 
influence the user’s conclusions about the organization’s financial position, changes in net assets, and 
cash flows. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed 
about such matters. 
 
The supplementary information appearing on pages 5 – 8 is presented for the purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the 
responsibility of management.  The supplementary information was subject to our compilation 
engagement. We have not audited or reviewed the information and do not express an opinion, 
conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such information. 
 
We are not independent with respect to Iowa County Recorders Association. 
 
BerganKDV, Ltd 
 
Johnston, IA 
March 29, 2019

DRAFT

24



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2018

Assets
Current Assets
Bank of America $ 705,469.17
General - Freedom Bank 63,821.39
Certification - Freedom Bank 13,207.40
Hospitality - Freedom Bank 1,631.39
Accounts Receivable - ESS 3,090.71
Due from State - ESS 9,151.38
Prepaid Expenses - ESS 149,596.23

Property and Equipment
Computer Equipment - ESS 566,393.44
Assset in  Process 221,952.42
Accum Depr - Computer Equip (445,149.34)

Net Property and Equipment 343,196.52

Total Assets $ 1,289,164.19

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - ESS $ 8,596.99
Drawdown - ESS 37,615.90
Accrued Compensation - ESS 23,490.53
Deferred Revenue - ESS 137,670.97

Total Liabilities 207,374.39

Net Assets
Unrestricted 853,068.63
Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets 228,721.17

Total Net Assets 1,081,789.80

Total Liabilities & Net Assets $ 1,289,164.19

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

25



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Receipts
Hospitality $ 4,894.00
Summer/Spring School 67.00
Interest Income 745.33
Expense Reimb - CLRIS Fund 255 295,430.47
HP Payment 1,534,843.47
HP Payment Service Fee 70,564.90
Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. 273,657.58
Discount: Serv Prov Cost Share (111,369.07)
Bad Payment Fee (60.00)
Service Fee (39.00)
Service Fee: ACH 570,268.00
Service Fee: Credit Card 50,941.16
Service Fee: DDCC 1,786.09
Service Fee: Drawdown 107,561.60
ERecording 5,827,690.19
ERecording: Auditor Fee 234,840.00
ERecording: Transfer Tax 10,468,644.80
Fund 255 Repayment 230.00
Miscellaneous 41.00

Total Receipts 19,330,737.52

Continued on next page

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

26



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Expenditures
Administrative Support 6,062.50
Bank Service Charges 73.54
Annual Audit 5,575.00
Computer Support 283,668.38
Computer Equipment 917.52
Computer Software 46,511.92
Consulting - Software Dev 2,871.87
Dues & Subscriptions 6,058.73
Hospitality 2,068.00
Insurance 22,721.73
Meetings 2,667.67
Meals and Entertainment 121.11
Mileage & Travel 10,357.17
Postage & Freight 446.34
Software Dev. - Programming 10,431.29
Marketing-Communications 34,326.25
Project Management 65,642.50
Legal Fees 23,500.00
Accounting Fees 57,511.76
Professional Fees:Other 900.00
Bank Account Analysis Charges 37,005.69
Summer/Spring School 1,557.00
Education & Outreach 10,930.95
ESS Committee: Travel 2,140.00
ESS Committee: Meeting Exp 970.96
ESS Committee: Official Public 478.65
ESS Pmts: County Distribution 16,593,112.70
ESS Pmts: Pmt Distribution 1,429,583.52
ESS Pmts: POS Distribution 28,106.27
Supplies 237.60
Teleconference 2,411.95
Depreciation 53,567.23
Merit Resource 210,002.00
EDS CC Custom Setup Fee 19,502.00
EDS Online Transaction Fees 58,337.25
EDS OTC Transaction Fees 17,129.94
BOAOLN 9772 Service Charge 21,904.65
BOAOTC 9862 Service Charge 32,604.71

Total Expenditures 19,102,016.35

Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets $ 228,721.17

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

27



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DRAFT

28



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Activities (General Activity)

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Receipts
Hospitality $ 4,894.00
Summer/Spring School 67.00
Interest Income 745.33

Total Receipts 5,706.33

Expenditures
Hospitality 2,068.00
Meetings 2,667.67
Meals and Entertainment 121.11
Mileage & Travel 10,357.17
Postage & Freight 10.00
Professional Fees:Other 900.00
Summer/Spring School 1,557.00

Total Expenditures 17,680.95

Decrease in Unrestricted Net Assets $ (11,974.62)

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

29



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Activities (ESS)

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Receipts
Expense Reimb - CLRIS Fund 255 $ 295,430.47
HP Payment 1,534,843.47
HP Payment Service Fee 70,564.90
Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. 273,657.58
Discount: Serv Prov Cost Share (111,369.07)
Bad Payment Fee (60.00)
Service Fee (39.00)
Service Fee: ACH 570,268.00
Service Fee: Credit Card 50,941.16
Service Fee: DDCC 1,786.09
Service Fee: Drawdown 107,561.60
ERecording 5,827,690.19
ERecording: Auditor Fee 234,840.00
ERecording: Transfer Tax 10,468,644.80
Fund 255 Repayment 230.00
Miscellaneous 41.00

Total Receipts 19,325,031.19

Continued on next page

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

30



Iowa County Recorders Association
Statement of Activities (ESS)

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Expenditures
Administrative Support 6,062.50
Bank Service Charges 73.54
Annual Audit 5,575.00
Computer Support 283,668.38
Computer Equipment 917.52
Computer Software 46,511.92
Consulting - Software Dev 2,871.87
Dues & Subscriptions 6,058.73
Insurance 22,721.73
Postage & Freight 436.34
Software Dev. - Programming 10,431.29
Marketing-Communications 34,326.25
Project Management 65,642.50
Legal Fees 23,500.00
Accounting Fees 57,511.76
Bank Account Analysis Charges 37,005.69
Education & Outreach 10,930.95
ESS Committee: Travel 2,140.00
ESS Committee: Meeting Exp 970.96
ESS Committee: Official Public 478.65
ESS Pmts: County Distribution 16,593,112.70
ESS Pmts: Pmt Distribution 1,429,583.52
ESS Pmts: POS Distribution 28,106.27
Supplies 237.60
Teleconference 2,411.95
Depreciation 53,567.23
Merit Resource 210,002.00
EDS CC Custom Setup Fee 19,502.00
EDS Online Transaction Fees 58,337.25
EDS OTC Transaction Fees 17,129.94
BOAOLN 9772 Service Charge 21,904.65
BOAOTC 9862 Service Charge 32,604.71

Total Expenditures 19,084,335.40

Increase in Unrestricted Net Assets $ 240,695.79

See accountant's report.

DRAFT

31



 
  

Maintenance and Support Agreement 
 
 
 
 

[Service Provider Name] 
 
 

And 
 

Electronic Services System 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

July 1, 2019 
 

32



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Section 1.  Preamble ........................................................................................................... 4 
Section 2.  Definition of Terms........................................................................................... 5 
Section 3.  Scope of Work .................................................................................................. 8 

3.1  Software License Agreement ................................................................................... 8 
3.2  Scope of Work ......................................................................................................... 8 
3.3  Specifications and Performance Standards .............................................................. 8 
3.3  Amendments ............................................................................................................ 8 

Section 4.  Compensation. .................................................................................................. 9 
Section 5.  Term .................................................................................................................. 9 
Section 6.  General Provisions .......................................................................................... 10 

6.1 Third Party Beneficiaries ........................................................................................ 10 
6.2 Entire Agreement .................................................................................................... 10 
6.3 Cumulative Rights .................................................................................................. 10 
6.4 Severability ............................................................................................................. 10 
6.5 Authorization .......................................................................................................... 10 
6.6 Successors in Interest .............................................................................................. 11 
6.7 Headings or Captions .............................................................................................. 11 
6.8 Multiple Counterparts ............................................................................................. 11 
6.9 Not a Joint Venture ................................................................................................. 11 
6.10 Additional Provisions............................................................................................ 11 
6.11 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments ................................................... 11 
6.12 Interpretation ......................................................................................................... 11 

Section 7.  Limitation of Liability..................................................................................... 12 
7.1 Limitation of Liability............................................................................................. 12 

Section 8.  Signatures ........................................................................................................ 12 
Exhibit A: Scope of Work ................................................................................................. 13 

Overview ....................................................................................................................... 13 
Business Functions and Operations .............................................................................. 13 

Service Provider ESS API Developments ........................................................................ 15 
ESS and Iowa Land Records Updates .......................................................................... 16 
ESS Update Processes................................................................................................... 16 
Significant ESS Updates ............................................................................................... 17 
County Recorder Support ............................................................................................. 18 
E-Recording Fees .......................................................................................................... 19 
County Recorder Support Exclusions ........................................................................... 19 
Reports .......................................................................................................................... 20 
Periodic Service Provider Meetings/Conference Calls ................................................. 21 
ESS Quality Assurance Activities ................................................................................ 21 
Service Provider System Conversions and Migrations ................................................. 22 

Exhibit B: Specifications and Performance Standards ..................................................... 25 
ESS API Web Service Specifications ........................................................................... 25 
Service Provider ESS API Developments – Processes ................................................. 26 

33



ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal and E-Submission Processes .......................... 26 
E-Submission Stamp Correction Process ................................................................. 26 
Scheduling Available Processes ............................................................................... 27 
Web Service Call Limitations .................................................................................... 27 
Logging ...................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Data Validation ......................................................................................................... 27 
Monitoring ESS API response messages .................................................................. 28 
Operation of Service Provider ESS API Developments ............................................ 28 

XML .............................................................................................................................. 29 
Programming Language ................................................................................................ 29 
Testing........................................................................................................................... 29 
Other Specifications and Technical Requirements ....................................................... 30 

_Code Values ............................................................................................................ 30 
Portal and E-Submission Web Service Timing ......................................................... 31 

PDF and Imaging .......................................................................................................... 32 
ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal .......................................................................... 32 
TIFF Image Format ................................................................................................... 33 
E-Submission Images................................................................................................ 33 

Recording Information for E-Submission Documents ................................................. 33 
TLS ............................................................................................................................... 34 
Recording Date and Time ............................................................................................. 34 

 

34



This Maintenance and Support Agreement dated to be effective as of July 1, 2019, is 
made by and between [Company Name] (“[Company Short Title]” and “Service 
Provider”) [Company Address] and the Electronic Services System, 8711 Windsor 
Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA 50131 (“ESS”). 

Section 1.  Preamble 
 
WHEREAS, Service Provider provides software, consulting, and support services to 
which enables County Recorders to provide services to the public including but not 
limited to electronically indexing and/or recording documents and the archiving of 
electronic images of such documents; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Iowa County Recorders Association and Service Provider have previously 
executed and implemented prior agreements for maintenance and support services 
and/or other software development and technology consulting services; and  
 
WHEREAS, governance of the Electronic Services System (ESS) is provided through an 
intergovernmental agreement established under Chapter 28E of the Iowa Code, 
operating under the direction of County Recorders and in cooperation with the Iowa 
County Recorders Association; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Service Provider has continuously provided a nonexclusive, perpetual, 
fully paid‐up License for software developed to integrate with systems developed and 
maintained by ESS in service to County Recorders; and 
 
WHEREAS, Service Provider has provided maintenance and support for the systems 
established to exchange information with ESS and to facilitate the specified business 
functions in service to ESS and County Recorders in their client counties pursuant to 
prior agreements; and  
 
WHEREAS, ESS and Service Provider desire to establish an updated maintenance and 
support agreement to ensure the ongoing and successful operation of ESS systems 
including but not limited to the Iowa Land Records system; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and of the mutual 
covenants contained herein, along with other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Service Provider and ESS hereby agree as 
follows. 
   

35



Section 2.  Definition of Terms 
 
Agreement ‐ this Maintenance and Support Agreement. 
 
API ‐ an application program interface, a set of routines, protocols, and tools for 
building software applications. 
 
Complete Recorded Document ‐ A recorded document which is includes a document 
image in an authorized format accompanied by a minimum amount of associated data 
including at least one party name, a correctly mapped document type, the recording 
number used by a County (instrument number and/or the book and page numbers, and 
the date and time of recording. 
 
Conversion ‐ The process undertaken by a County to convert from one product version 
or type of Service Provider System to another Service Provider System provided by the 
same Service Provider, even when the product is delivered by a different division, 
branch or affiliate of the Service Provider’s company. 
 
County ‐ any county which is a member of, or participates in, the Electronic Services 
System, and which participates in the electronic delivery of government services 
including but not limited to the Iowa Land Records system. 
 
County Operating Hours ‐ the hours of normal operation of the land records recording 
office of the applicable County during which documents are accepted or processed for 
recording. 
 
Data ‐ information which is transmitted to or received by a County, another government 
entity, the Electronic Services System, any private organization or citizen. 
 
Defect ‐ a flaw in the Deliverables that prevents the exchange of Data or the operation 
of a business function. 
 
Deficiency ‐ a failure, omission, interruption of service, or other problem of any nature 
whatsoever with respect to a Deliverable, including but not limited to any failure of a 
Deliverable to conform to or meet an applicable Specification. 
 
Deliverables ‐ the goods and services to be provided by Service Provider to ESS and each 
County as more specifically set forth in the exhibits attached hereto as Exhibits A, B and 
C where applicable.   
 
Derivative Works – any modification of a Service Provider system which is required to 
integrate with an ESS API.   
 

36



Developments ‐ any HTML pages, database designs, training materials, application 
documentation, and any portion of application software specifically developed for ESS 
and each County. 
 
Document Images – Images which are submitted for recording through the ILR E‐
Submission service in PDF format, which after recording are converted to the format 
specified by a County and Service Provider System for permanent archiving by the 
County, or images or recorded which are transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records for 
public, registered user access through the Iowa Land Records web site.  
 
Documentation ‐ all technical information, commentary, design documents, code and 
test materials, training materials and guides, operator’s or user’s manuals, technical 
manuals, worksheets, and all other information, documentation and materials related to 
or used in conjunction with the Deliverables.  
 
Electronic Services System (ESS) ‐ the 28E governmental organization established by 
Iowa counties to facilitate the electronic delivery of government services. 
 
Electronic Services System API (ESS API) ‐ Any API created, owned and maintained by 
the Electronic Services System. 
 
Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures – The official policies and 
procedures adopted by the ESS Coordinating Committee and the Executive Board of the 
Iowa County Recorders Association. As provided in Section 331.604 of the Code of Iowa, 
Subsection 3a, each county shall comply with the policies and procedures established by 
the governing boards. 
 
E‐Submission ‐ the act or practice of electronically submitting and receiving documents 
for recording and archiving by a County. 
 
Fully Indexed Recorded Document ‐ A recorded document which is includes a 
document image in an authorized format accompanied by all of the following data 
indexed in the Service Provider system: all party names (correctly parsed), a correctly 
mapped document type, location or legal descriptions (correctly parsed), the recording 
number used by a County (instrument number and/or the book and page numbers, and 
the date and time of recording, the recording reference number for any associated 
document archived in the Service Provider System, the Unique Code Value permanently 
assigned to the document, and the Parcel Identification Number, if present in 
Recorder’s index.  
 
Iowa Land Records (ILR) ‐ The applications and associated web sites and pages created, 
owned and maintained by the Electronic Services system to provide electronic access to 
recorded public documents, to facilitate E‐Submission and electronic recording and to 
provide other electronic services. 

37



       
Migration – The process undertaken by a County to migrate from one Service Provider 
and Service Provider System to another Service Provider and Service Provider System. 
 
Party ‐ the Service Provider and ESS individually. 
 
Parties ‐ the Service Provider and ESS collectively. 
 
Portal ‐ The ESS and Iowa Land Records application for receiving property and other 
information and images from a County system and from a Service Provider System for 
the purpose of providing a comprehensive county land record information system. 
 
Recorder’s Association File Transfer Module ‐ The term previously used to describe 
Service Provider ESS API Developments, and the software which is subject to the 
Software License Agreement granted by a Service Provider as described herein. 
 
Service Provider ‐ [Company Name] 
 
Service Provider ESS API Developments ‐ all Developments provided by the Service 
Provider to facilitate the integration with the ESS API and the exchange of Data between 
a County and Iowa Land Records or other ESS systems including but not limited to the 
following: software, software deliverables, pre‐existing work, Derivative Works and any 
other applicable resources. Service Provider ESS API Developments are expected to 
facilitate the objectives of Iowa Land Records including but not limited to quality and 
timely public access to land record information and Data, and quality and timely 
processing of electronically submitted documents through the Iowa Land Records E‐
Submission Service.  
 
Service Provider System ‐ the system of software provided by the Service Provider to a 
County for purpose of performing various local County functions. A Service Provider 
System may include but is not limited to a local land records management system. 
 
Service Provider Counties ‐ the Iowa Counties which are clients of the Service Provider. 
For the purposes of this agreement, a Service Provider County receives local land 
records management services through the Service Provider System. 
 
Software License Agreement ‐ a Software License Agreement by and between Service 
Provider and ESS. 
 
Third Party ‐ a person or entity including, but not limited to any form of business 
organization, such as a corporation, partnership, limited liability corporation, 
association, etc., other than ESS or the Service Provider. 
 
 

38



Section 3.  Scope of Work 
 

3.1  Software License Agreement 

Service Provider agrees to provide ESS a nonexclusive, perpetual, fully paid‐up right to 
use the Service Provider ESS API Developments and Derivative Works.  Where 
applicable, this is a continuance of the license agreements established pursuant to prior 
agreements for Maintenance and Support Services. 
 
All Deliverables and Data provided by the Service Provider in service to ESS, excluding 
Service Provider ESS API Developments, Service Provider Derivative Works and other 
Service Provider pre‐existing work, shall be owned by ESS. 
 
The ESS API, the Iowa Land Records (ILR) system, ESS pre‐existing work and all other 
Developments produced by ESS or by a Third Party producing Developments in service 
to ESS, shall be owned by ESS. 
 
Service Provider ESS API Developments, Service Provider Derivative Works, and other 
Service Provider pre‐existing work shall be owned by the Service Provider. 

3.2  Scope of Work 

Service Provider shall provide to ESS and the Service Provider Counties the maintenance 
and support services as set forth in the attached Exhibits including Exhibit A ‐ Scope of 
Work. 

3.3  Specifications and Performance Standards 

Service Provider shall conform to the Specifications and Performance Standards 
published by ESS and as described in Exhibit B. Such Specifications and Performance 
Standards are incorporated herein by this reference as if fully set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
Processes for publishing and updating Specification and Performance Standards, 
procedures for providing Service Providers with advance notice of any Specification and 
Performance Standards updates, and any required implementation time frames are set 
forth in Exhibit B – Publication of Specifications and Performance Standards. 

3.3  Amendments 

The parties agree that this Agreement, including Exhibit A ‐ Scope of Work and Exhibit B 
Specifications and Performance Standards [Exhibit C where applicable]. may be revised, 
replaced, amended or deleted at any time during the term of this Agreement to reflect 
changes in services, Deliverables, Developments, Service Provider ESS API 
Developments, and Documentation upon the mutual written consent of the parties. 
 

39



 

Section 4.  Compensation.   
 
In consideration of Service Provider providing ESS and Service Provider Counties with 
the Deliverables, Developments, Service Provider ESS API Developments and 
Documentation as specified in Exhibits A, B and C, subject to all terms and conditions, 
Service Provider shall be entitled to receive fees as stated herein. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that in no event will the standard fees or compensation to be 
paid hereunder exceed the annual sum of $2768.46 per Service Provider County. 
 
The Service Provider Counties shall be jointly identified by ESS and the Service Provider 
for each fiscal year beginning July 1. The identification of Service Provider Counties shall 
be completed as soon as practicable, not later than first business day each June prior to 
the beginning of a new fiscal year on July 1.   
 
If the Term of the Agreement is extended as provided in Section 5, the annual 
compensation per Service Provider County in the subsequent fiscal year shall be 
adjusted by the cost of living adjustment (COLA) published during the contract year by 
the Social Security Administration, not to exceed 3.5 percent. See: 
https://www.ssa.gov/oact/cola/colasummary.html 
 
Except as otherwise amended by the Association through approved change vehicles, the 
Association shall not be required to pay any additional fees, expenses, costs, charges or 
other amounts in connection with the Deliverables, Developments, Service Provider ESS 
API Developments, and Documentation to be provided hereunder other than as 
expressly stated herein. 
 

Section 5.  Term 
 
The initial term of this agreement is one year; July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. The 
term of this Agreement shall be automatically extended for subsequent one‐year 
periods unless Service Provider or ESS is provided with a notice of intent by the other 
party to not extend the Agreement. Such notice shall be provided no less than ninety 
(90) days prior to the expiration of each one‐year term. 
 
 
 
 
 

40



Section 6.  General Provisions 
 

6.1 Third Party Beneficiaries 

There are no Third Party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  This Agreement is intended 
only to benefit ESS and the Service Provider. 
 

6.2 Entire Agreement 

This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the parties concerning the 
subject matter hereof, and neither party is relying on any representation that may have 
been made which is not included in this Agreement.  Service Provider acknowledges that 
it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all related schedules, exhibits, and other 
documents and has had the opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel 
necessary for it to form a complete understanding of all rights and obligations herein 
and to accept same freely and without coercion of any kind. 
 

6.3 Cumulative Rights 

The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of ESS provided in this 
Agreement shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of the 
others or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed ESS by law, and shall in 
no way affect or impair the right of ESS to pursue any other contractual, equitable or 
legal remedy to which ESS may be entitled as long as any default remains in any way not 
remedied, unsatisfied, or unresolved.  The election by ESS of any one or more remedies 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies. 
 

6.4 Severability 

If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other part or provision of this Agreement. 
 

6.5 Authorization 

Service Provider represents and warrants that it has the right, power and authority to 
enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement and that it has taken all 
requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation of Service Provider, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

41



6.6 Successors in Interest 

All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the parties’ hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and 
legal representatives. 
 

6.7 Headings or Captions 

The section headings or captions are for identification purposes only and do not limit or 
construe the contents of the sections.  
 

6.8 Multiple Counterparts 

This agreement shall be executed in two or more counterparts, any one of which shall 
be an original without reference to the others. 
 

6.9 Not a Joint Venture 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or constituting the relationship 
of the partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or agent/principal 
relationship) between the parties hereto.  Each party shall be deemed an independent 
contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits expected to 
be derived from the Agreement.  No party, unless otherwise specifically provided for 
herein, has the authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability 
on behalf of, in the name of, or binding upon, another party to this Agreement. 
 

6.10 Additional Provisions 

The parties agree that if an Addendum, Rider, Schedule, Appendix or Exhibit is attached 
hereto by the parties, and referred to herein, then the same shall be deemed 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 

6.11 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments 

The parties agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or 
cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such 
further instruments as may reasonably be required for carrying out the expressed 
intention of this Agreement. 
 

6.12 Interpretation 

This Agreement will be deemed to have been prepared jointly.  "Including" means 
“including without limitation.” 

42



Section 7.  Limitation of Liability 
 

7.1 Limitation of Liability  

In no event shall either Party (including their respective officers, employees, 
shareholders, members, contractors, agents and representatives) be liable to the other 
Party for indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages, even if advised of the 
possibility of such damages. 
 
Each Party, their successors and assigns (the “ indemnifying Party”) agree to indemnify 
and hold harmless the other Party, its  employees, officers, agents, representatives, 
contractors, officers, shareholders, members board members and officials (the 
“indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims or demands for liability, loss, damage, 
costs, expenses, or attorney’s fees of any kind for actions or omissions of the 
Indemnifying Party arising out of or in connection with any undertaking arising out of or 
otherwise related to this Agreement. 
 
The aggregate liability of either party for any claim, breach, or alleged breach arising 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the annual compensation amount specified in 
Section 4 for the annual Term of this Agreement during which the claim arises. 
 
 This Section 7.1 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

Section 8.  Signatures 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Agreement 
and have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement.   
 
 
By:  __________________________ 
Phil Dunshee 
Project Manager 
Electronic Services System 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA  50131 
 
 
 
By:  __________________________ 
[Service Provider Name, Business, Address] 
 

43



Exhibit A: Scope of Work 
 

Overview 

The Electronic Services System (ESS) and systems governed and administered by ESS 
such as the Iowa Land Records web site and applications, is governed and managed 
under an intergovernmental 28E agreement established by Iowa counties. An ESS 
Coordinating Committee and the Executive Board of the Iowa County Recorders 
Association have the authority under Iowa law and the ESS 28E agreement to establish 
standards, policies and requirements for the delivery of electronic services, and all 
member counties are required under the 28E agreement to comply with all policies 
established by ESS. The scope of these policies includes but is not limited to the 
following. 
 

1. The format, attributes and organization of data and images of recorded 
documents in ESS and member systems 

2. Business rules and requirements for the management and maintenance of data 
and images of recorded documents in ESS and member systems 

3. Specifications and procedures for the transfer of data and images from local 
county systems to the Electronic Services system including Iowa Land Records 

4. Specifications and procedures for the exchange of information and business 
processes associated with the electronic filing and recording of documents 
through ESS including the Iowa Land Records E‐Submission service 

 
Official policies relating to these subjects are published in the Electronic Services System 
Policies and Procedures, and all ESS policies relating to the operations of a County, Iowa 
Land Records, a Service provider or Service Provider System are incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 

Business Functions and Operations 

ESS has established and published the Electronic Services System API (ESS API) which 
provides for the form and method of exchanging information between ESS and any 
Service Provider System. The specifications for the ESS API are further described in 
Exhibit B. 
 
Business and government functions performed through the ESS API by a Service 
Provider and Service Provider System in service to a County include the following. 
 

A. The transfer of correctly formatted data and images associated with recently 
recorded documents to ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal application. Counties 
are required to transfer a Complete Recorded Document to ESS and Iowa Land 
Records not later than three business days after the time of recording. Service 

44



Provider shall provide a mechanism for automatically transferring records which 
fulfill the definition of a Complete Recorded Document to ESS and Iowa Land 
Records. Such transfers, subject to the approval of a County Recorder, shall be 
set to occur no less frequently than each business day. 

B. The transfer of data associated with a Fully Indexed Recorded Document to the 
ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal application. Counties are required to transfer 
all recorded document information which is archived in an electronic format. The 
data associated with a Fully Indexed Recorded Document shall be correctly 
mapped to the published and parsed XML data elements (with correct 
attributes), and shall be transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records no less 
frequently than each business day. 

C. The transfer of data updates for a Fully Indexed Recorded Document to the ESS 
and Iowa Land Records Portal application. Data updates include but are not 
limited to the correction of typographical errors in party names, location or legal 
descriptions or other information, the addition of new information such as an 
associated document reference or redaction annotations. New, updated, or 
corrected data associated with a Fully Indexed Recorded Document shall be 
transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records not later than one business day after 
the data is archived in County and the Service Provider System. 

D. The transfer of corrected replacement images associated with a Completed 
Recorded Document or a Fully Indexed Recorded Document to the ESS and Iowa 
Land Records Portal application. The transfer or replacement of an image 
requires the advance approval of personnel designated by ESS and Iowa Land 
Records. A County is required to maintain a permanent, unaltered archive of a 
recorded, and may replace an image only is defined and authorized conditions. 

E. The retrieval of document images, or the annotation information or metadata 
associated with images which have been redacted to remove personally 
identifiable information from the ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal application. 
The ESS API provides a method which may be called by a Service Provider and 
Service Provider System to retrieve redacted documents and redaction 
information for use by the County and Service Provider System. 

F. The retrieval of information about electronically submitted documents which 
have been approved by a County Recorder for recording from the ESS and Iowa 
Land Records E‐Submission Service, and the provision of an interface through the 
Service Provider System to assign a recording number used by a County 
(instrument number and/or the book and page numbers, and the date and time 
of recording. 

G. The return of the assigned recording number used by a County (instrument 
number and/or the book and page numbers), and the date and time of recording 
to ESS and the Iowa Land Records E‐Submission Service through the ESS API. The 
information is used by ESS and Iowa Land Records to place a recording stamp on 
the document image. 

45



H. The retrieval of the stamped document image for archiving in the County and 
Service Provider System from the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission 
service. 

I. The monitoring of response messages from the ESS and Iowa Land Records 
portal and the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission Service 

J. Corrective action with respect to any errors or issues which are identified in the 
response messages 

 
The specifications for these operations are further described in the ESS API 
documentation and Exhibit B. 

Service Provider ESS API Developments 
Each Service Provider is responsible for developing and maintaining the necessary 
software and systems to facilitate the exchange of information between the County and 
Service Provider System and ESS and Iowa Land Records system using the ESS API and 
the associated specifications and requirements published by ESS. Such software exists 
and is operational as the Term of this Agreement begins based on work performed in 
prior years. These Service Provider ESS API Developments by the Service Provider must 
be maintained to ensure that the exchange of information and the business described 
herein are performed successfully and timely. Therefore, an important element of this 
Maintenance and Support Agreement requires the Service Provider to maintain Service 
Provider ESS API Developments. As modifications are made by the Service Provider to 
the Service Provider System for any reason, Derivative Works may be required by the 
Service Provider to ensure that the exchange of information through the ESS API does 
not fail and continues without error or interruption. 
 
As a part of the Maintenance and Support responsibilities, the Service Provider shall 
establish methods for maintaining and monitoring, maintain and monitor log files for 
the Service Provider ESS API Developments which may be used to diagnose and resolve 
any issues. All messaging between Service Provider System and Service Provider ESS API 
Developments and ESS applications through the ESS API shall be logged. All log files shall 
be maintained for a period of not less than thirty (30) calendar days. In the event that a 
processing error or failure occurs, Service Provider shall review the logs to identify to 
the source of the error or failure and to determine a resolution to the issue. When 
collaboration with ESS is necessary to resolve an issue, Service Provider shall provide to 
ESS with a copy of the relevant event log via e‐mail or FTP. 
 
[Duplicate language removed from Exhibit B] 
 
The Scope of Work includes activities which may involve troubleshooting and corrective 
steps with respect to Service Provider System when the exchange of information does 
not work as required or expected. Errors and failures may either be reported through 
ESS API messages or by ESS or Iowa Land Records Personnel. The ESS and ILR team 

46



members will work collaboratively with Service Providers to identify and resolve any 
issues which affect the operations of ESS and Iowa Land Records. However, it is the 
Service Provider’s responsibility to make any necessary changes, corrections or updates 
to Service Provider ESS API Developments and its integration with the ESS API. 
 

ESS and Iowa Land Records Updates 

ESS and Iowa Land Records is committed to remaining current with generally accepted 
industry standards for land records, real estate information, electronic recording and 
related systems including notary services. Standards will be continuously developed, 
adopted and published by the Electronic Services System ‐ based on standards adopted 
and published by the Property Records Industry Association (PRIA), the Mortgage 
Industry Standards Maintenance Organization (MISMO), other recognized standards 
setting organizations, and by ESS governing boards and committees. 
 
ESS and Iowa Land Records is also committed to the implementation of appropriate 
industry security systems and protocols, and the security requirements of partner 
organizations including but not limited to the State of Iowa and federal agencies such as 
the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
ESS and Iowa Land Records will also continuously seek to improve its applications and 
software including the ESS API. 
 
From time to time issues may arise which are of mutual interest to ESS and the Service 
Provider.  The resolution of such issues may require an update to the ESS API or XML.  
Subject to the mutual agreement of ESS and the Service Provider, a change or update 
may be developed and implemented. 
 
As a part of the Maintenance and Support responsibilities, when ESS makes a change or 
update, it is required that the Service Provider will make any necessary and 
corresponding updates to the Service Provider System, any Derivative Works, and 
Service Provider ESS API Developments. Such changes are to be included in the Scope of 
Work under the Terms of this Agreement. 

ESS Update Processes 

ESS will provide Service Provider notice of any planned changes or updates to the ESS 
API, or to the XML schema or dtd (XML). Such notice will be provided not less than 90 
days prior to implementation. Service Providers will generally be provided with 
information about planned changes as a part of ESS and ILR quarterly updates and 
meetings. 
 
ESS will work in collaboration with Service Provider concerning the scheduling of any 
release to facilitate the coordination of the installation with other work being 

47



performed by the Service Provider. ESS will answer service provider questions and 
accept reasonable requests for changes in the time frame for testing and 
implementation. ESS will also consider a reasonable request from a Service Provider for 
modifications to an update, provided that the changes that can be implemented by ESS 
and any other Service Providers. 
 
Prior to the release of any update or change to the ESS API or XML, ESS will install the 
update or change in a staging environment for the purposes of testing.  Each Service 
Provider will be provided with appropriate credentials to access the staging 
environment, and ESS strongly encourages Service Provider to test any update during 
the notice period, and to communicate any concerns or issues to ESS personnel.   
 
The Service Provider should provide ESS administrators with notification in writing 
(email is acceptable) when any testing is complete and when they are ready to proceed 
with implementation. At the conclusion of any published notice or testing period, if 
Service Provider has not expressed any concerns or issues, ESS will assume that Service 
Provider has accepted the update and is prepared to move forward with the 
implementation of the change or update. 
 
Changes or updates which require synchronous installation shall be installed in a Service 
Provider County within five business days. 
 
Changes or updates which do NOT require synchronous installation shall be installed in a 
Service Provider County within thirty business days. 
 
ESS reserves the right to deviate from Update Processes describe herein, and to require 
a change or update in the event that such an update is needed to address an unplanned 
and serious system failure or error. 
 

Significant ESS Updates 

If a planned change or update meets either of the following conditions, Service Provider 
may request supplemental compensation for such work subject to the mutual 
agreement of the Parties. 

a. a change or update planned by ESS will require significant and substantive 
development work far beyond what might be considered an incremental update 
or correction to a Service Provider System, any Derivative Works, and Service 
Provider ESS API Developments, and 

b. a planned change or update is not related to an ESS Business Function or 
Operation, the fulfillment of a new or updated standard, or current security 
standards as described herein 
 

48



County Recorder Support 

In addition to ensuring the operation of Service Provider ESS API Developments and the 
integration of the Service Provider System with ESS through the ESS API, the Service 
Provider shall serve as the primary point of contact and support for issues relating to the 
operation of the Service Provider ESS API Developments and the successful 
implementation of the Business Functions and Operations described herein.  The key 
functions which may require support and maintenance services to County Recorders are 
summarized as follows. 
 

 The transfer of current and historical Fully Indexed Recorded Documents 
to ESS including any updates or corrections 

 The transfer of document information updates to ESS 

 The retrieval of redaction document information 

 The retrieval of documents through the ESS E‐Submission Service and 
associated functions including recording, indexing and archiving the 
documents received 

 Correcting errors and addressing issues related to Service Provider ESS 
API Developments with respect to communication and integration with 
the ESS API 

 
Service Provider shall provide County Recorders and ESS with a technical customer 
support contact which should include a support e‐mail address and telephone number, 
and a customer support web site if available. Service provider shall also provide contact 
information for other roles including the following: general customer support, business 
and contract matters, billing, project management or system conversion managers. 
 
Service Provider shall notify ESS administrators of all system issues or errors which may 
affect and require ESS investigation or action by submitting a report via email to 
support@clris.com.  If the issue or error requires immediate attention, Service provider 
shall also notify a customer support contact at telephone number specified by ESS. 
 
Service Provider and ESS each agree to use best efforts to maintain its systems and 
services in full effective operation for each County during 99.9% of the respective 
County Operating Hours, except for downtimes mutually agreed upon by ESS, the 
County and Service Provider, or downtimes arising from any disruption in Internet (ISP) 
services, or from causes beyond the control of the parties.  Service Provider and ESS will 
each make every effort to schedule system downtime outside of County Operating 
Hours. However, in the event that either Party is required to schedule downtime during 
County Operating Hours, the Party scheduling the downtime will collaborate with the 
Counties and with the other Parties to notify administrators, users and system 
technicians for work planning purposes. 
 

49



The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to immediately identify and 
work to resolve disruptions to the Business Functions and Operations and disruptions to 
information exchanges through the ESS API. 
 
The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to respond immediately to 
technical support incidents initiated by the other Party or by a County.  The Parties 
further agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to address any interruption to 
service. 
 
Service Provider shall, in collaboration with ESS and County Recorders, seek to ensure 
the success of the ESS system. 
 
In the event that the Service Provider is unable to resolve any issue affecting Business 
Functions and Operations, Service Provider shall immediately contact ESS at the 
specified telephone number or email address.  The Service Provider shall provide a both 
a concise summary and a detailed description of the problem.  All applicable log files 
and related ESS API request/response files shall be timely provided to ESS. 
 
If after this the issue is not resolved, ESS shall contact Service Provider at a specified 
telephone number or email address. ESS shall provide to the best of their ability a 
concise summary and a detailed description of the problem. All applicable log files and 
related ESS API request/response files will be timely provided to the Service Provider. 

E‐Recording Fees 

It is the responsibility of the Service Provider to ensure that the correct recording fees 
and related information for an ILR E‐Submitted document can be correctly inserted into 
the Service Provider System including any cashiering functions, whenever applicable. 
 

County Recorder Support Exclusions 

 
This Agreement does not apply to maintenance or support for the operation Service 
Provider System, e.g. local land record management system.  Maintenance and support 
for the basic operation of Service Provider System shall be the responsibility of the 
Service Provider under the direction of an individual County or County Recorder. 
   
This Agreement does not apply to any training provided to a County, County Recorder or 
their employees with respect to the interface between the Service Provider System, 
Derivative Works, or Service Provider ESS API Developments and the ESS systems.  
Training shall be the responsibility of the responsibility of the Service Provider under the 
direction of an individual County or County Recorder. 
 

50



This Agreement does not apply to activities relating to the parsing of names or legal 
(location) descriptions.  Such activities shall be the responsibility of an individual County 
or County Recorder. 
   
This Agreement does not apply to activities relating to the electronic indexing or image 
conversion of historical records.  Such activities shall be the responsibility of an 
individual County or County Recorder. 
 
Upon the request of a County Recorder, the Service Provider shall generally advise and 
assist with efforts to ensure access to sufficient bandwidth to transmit and receive Data 
and Images through the ESS API.  However, each County will be responsible for acquiring 
any necessary hardware, software or Internet services or technical assistance services 
required to support communications between the County, Service Provider System and 
ESS systems. 

Reports 

 
Service Provider shall provide each Service Provider County with a method or tool for 
creating an automated daily report concerning the transfer of data and images to the 
ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal during the previous business day. Where reports are 
automatically generated and emailed to the Service Provider County, the service 
provider will provide the ability for the County Recorders to include an email for a CC to 
ESS and Iowa Land Records. The reports shall include the following information, when 
available. 

 Summary information about the number of Complete Recorded Documents 
and Fully Indexed Recorded Documents successfully transferred to ESS and 
Iowa Land Records during the previous business day. 

 A table showing the document reference number and/or Book and Page 
associated with each document (or index update) successfully transferred to 
ESS and Iowa Land Records during the previous business day 

 A table showing the document reference number and/or Book and Page 
associated with each document for which the transfer to ESS and Iowa Land 
Records failed during the previous business day, along with the error 
message returned by ESS and Iowa Land Records to the Service Provider 
system. 

 If no records were transferred by a Service Provider County during the 
previous business day, the report shall include the following message:  “Alert 
– No records were transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records during the 
previous business day. Please contact [service provider contact information] 
for assistance. 

 
Service Provider agrees to work in collaboration with ESS to define and develop the 
reports described above by June 30, 2020. 

51



 
 
Service Provider shall provide a quarterly report via email (support@clris.com) which 
summarizes notable activities, issues which have required an unusual level of the 
support services during the previous period, and a summary of any request for 
assistance communicated to the ESS development team.  The quarterly report shall also 
summarize errors and issues identified through ESS API response messages during the 
previous period, and the resolution of those errors and issues. 
 
Service Provider shall annually provide a report regarding each Service Provider County. 
The report shall include the following information. 

 The name of the County 

 The IP addressed used by the Service Provider to exchange County information 
with ESS and Iowa Land Records 

 The Product Name of the Service Provider System, and any version number if 
applicable 

 If the Service Provider System is hosted, the general location of the hosted 
system, or the hosting service, if applicable 

 The names, addresses, e‐mail addresses and phone numbers of appropriate 
personnel (or support systems) for business issues, billing, customer support and 
technical support. 

 
Additional reports shall be provided to ESS upon request subject to the mutual 
agreement of the Parties. 

Periodic Service Provider Meetings/Conference Calls 

Service Provider shall to the best of their ability ensure that a representative will 
participate in ESS Service Provider conference calls.  Conference calls will generally be 
scheduled quarterly or as needed. 
 
When necessary, ESS may convene face‐to‐face meetings at mutually agreeable 
locations and times.   ESS will reimburse participants for actual travel and lodging 
expenses. Compensation for professional time dedicated to the meeting may also be 
provided subject to mutual agreement.  The terms of such reimbursement shall be 
specified by ESS at the time plans for any face‐to‐face meetings are announced. 
 

ESS Quality Assurance Activities 

From time to time ESS and Iowa Land Records will conduct a review of the data and 
images for an individual County to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the 
information transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records. The Service Provider may be 
asked to assist with related activities as needed, such as the provision of simple reports 
which may be used for comparison. The extent and timing of such activities shall be 

52



subject to the mutual agreement of the Service Provider, the County Recorder, and ESS 
and Iowa Land Records. 
 

Service Provider System Conversions and Migrations 

While Service Providers and Service Provider Systems must conform to the 
requirements of the ESS Policies and Procedures and the Terms and Conditions of this 
Agreement , it is the responsibility of the County to select the company or organization 
to serve as the land record management system vendor or Service Provider for the 
County. From time to time a County may choose to work with their Service Provider to 
implement a conversion from one product or version of a product to another, or a 
County may choose to implement a migration from one Service Provider System to 
another system offered by a different Service Provider.  
 
In circumstances involving either a Conversion or a Migration, it is required that the 
Service Provider work in collaboration with ESS and other parties, including other 
Service Providers which provide land record management Service Provider Systems, to 
ensure that the Conversion or Migration is successful. Further, the Service Provider is 
required to communicate with ESS and to engage in any necessary development and 
testing to ensure that the Service Provider ESS API Developments conform to all ESS and 
Iowa Land Records Requirements and to validate that Service Provider System is 
correctly configured to successfully exchange information with ESS and Iowa Land 
Records. Activities required of the Service Provider to fulfill these requirements shall 
include the following. 
 
 

1. When a County and a Service Provider reach an agreement to migrate from one 
Service Provider to another, or to convert from one product or product version 
to another product or product version, the Service Provider will notify and supply 
to ESS the planned time frame for implementation of the conversion or 
migration in a timely fashion.   The planned time frame should include 
development, testing, implementation and any anticipated times when County 
recording functions or communication/transmittal with ESS processes may be 
disrupted. 

2. With respect to testing, Service Provider shall inform ESS and Iowa Land Records 
when active testing is underway. Using credentials provided to the Service 
Provider by ESS, the Service Provider shall use the ESS and Iowa Land Records 
staging environment to test and validate the exchange of information. Assuming 
that proper advance notice is provided as described in Section 3 herein, ESS 
personnel will assist with testing and data verification.  

3. The Service Provider shall test the Business Functions and Operations described 
in Exhibit A.  More specifically, Service Provider shall do the following. 

a. Verify with ESS that they are connected to the correct staging web pages 
with the correct credentials, and verify that the credentials are being 

53



used to access the staging environment from an identified and static IP 
address. 

b. Verify that data and images can be transferred to the staging 
environment without error. 

c. Verify that the County Data, specifically the document types, are mapped 
correctly to the ESS and Iowa Land Records approved PRIA document 
types. It is recommended that the Service Provider provide ESS and Iowa 
Land Records personnel with a complete mapping table for review and 
approval prior to active testing. All document types must be validated in 
testing. 

d. Verify that parsed name and legal or location description information is 
mapped to the correct ESS and Iowa Land Records XML data elements 
with the correct attributes. 

e. Verify that all other County Data, including but not limited to associated 
references, parcel identification numbers (if present), and image 
annotations and redaction annotations (relating to the presence or 
location of personally identifiable information (PII) in a document), are 
mapped to the correct ESS and Iowa Land Records XML data elements 
with the correct attributes. 

f. Verify that certain information is NOT transferred to ESS and Iowa Land 
Records including vital records and military status information. 

g. Verify the implementation of a Conversion or Migration will retain the 
existing ESS and Iowa Land Records ILR Unique Code Value for previously 
recorded documents. Modifying the Unique Code Value for any archived 
document is prohibited. Changes in the format of Code values for day‐ 
forward recorded documents shall be timely communicated to ESS and 
Iowa Land Records personnel. 
 
A Service Provider may, subject to the approval of ESS, request 
consideration for assigning new Unique Code values to existing 
documents, provided that the Service Provider can demonstrate the 
capacity to provide a one‐to‐one mapping for every document showing 
the current Unique Code value and the proposed new Unique Code 
value.  In a form and time specified by ESS, the Service Provider is 
required to provide a mapping table so that it may be used to correctly 
modify the values in the ESS and Iowa Land Records System. 
 
[The penalty section has been removed.] 

 
h. Verify that transfer processes to ESS and Iowa Land Records may be set 

to occur programmatically (without Recorder intervention) daily when a 
document has a status of Complete Recorded Document. Processes for 
manually sending data and image updates to ILR shall also be tested and 

54



verified. Note, updated or replacement images may not be transferred 
except with the advanced approval of designated ESS personnel. 

i. Verify that the County and the Service Provider System is able to 
programmatically check for redacted document information from ESS 
and Iowa Land Records, and verify the operation of methods for 
retrieving either redacted images or the coordinates. 

j. Communicate any other unique issues or circumstances with designated 
ESS and Iowa Land Records personnel. For example, communicate 
whether the Service Provider System requires a TIF image format a single 
page or a multipage format. 

k. Verify that the image formats have the correct compression type and 
conform with other format requirements, i.e., the following image 
compression formats are prohibited: LZW, Old Style JPEG, JPEG, JBIG, 
Packbits or other formats which do not conform to the specified Group 3 
or Group 4 options. 

l. Verify the methods for checking for ILR E‐Submission documents with a 
status of "Ready For Download". 

m. Verify the methods (and timing) of downloading data and images for e‐
filed documents. 

n. Verify the methods for assigning recording reference numbers to 
downloaded e‐filed documents and returning the required information to 
ILR. 

o. Verify the methods for retrieving stamped document images from ILR E‐
Submission are verified, as is the method for archiving the document in a 
County. 

p. Verify that a documented downloaded and archived from the ILR E‐
Submission service will be then transferred to the ILR Portal when the 
document achieves a status of Complete Recorded Document or Fully 
Indexed Recorded Document. 

4. Upon the completion of testing and verification, ESS and Iowa Land Records will 
timely provide the Service Provider with a written notice of acceptance. 

 
 
 
 

55



Exhibit B: Specifications and Performance Standards 
 
ESS requires that all Service Providers to integrate with ESS and the Iowa Land Records 
system through the ESS API (web services). The Service Provider System and any 
Derivative works must communicate with ESS through the ESS API. The ESS API provides 
a means for presenting raw functions to interact with data and processes at ESS and 
Iowa Land Records.  Unlike the legacy client model (known as the LCM), the ESS API 
does not manage the scheduling and timing of web service calls; calling the web service 
methods in the correct order; logging; data validation; error handling and reporting; and 
the marshalling and unmarshalling of XML.  These functions must be performed by the 
Service Provider ESS API Developments created by the Service Provider. 
 
In summary, the Service Provider ESS API Developments created and maintained by the 
Service Provider must manage and coordinate the following functions. 
 

 The scheduling and timing of web service method calls 

 The sequence of web service methods to ensure that processes are executed in 
the correct order 

 Logging 

 Data Validation 

 Error handling and reporting 

 Marshalling and Unmarshalling of XML   
 
ESS will provide Service Provider with the necessary credentials and settings to access 
the ESS API and make any necessary web service calls. 

ESS API Web Service Specifications 

The WSDL and API documents are intended to be living documents that will be updated 
periodically by ESS and Iowa Land Records technical staff in order to relay current 
requirements to consumers of ILR Web Services.  Notice of changes to these documents 
will be provided to Service Providers as changes are made, subject to the ESS Update 
Processes described in Appendix A.  The WSDL for the ILR E‐Submission service and ILR 
Portal service can be found at the following locations: 
 

ILR E‐Submission: 
https://iowalandrecords.org/esubmission/services/ESubmissionClientService?wsdl  
Additional requirements for the ILR E‐Submission service can be found in the E‐
Submission Client API. 
 
ILR Portal: 
https://iowalandrecords.org/xmlservice/services/PortalClientService?wsdl   
Additional requirements for the ILR Portal service can be found in the Portal Client 
API documentation. 

56



 
Notice of Intent. It is the intent of ESS to develop and make available to Service 
Providers a version of the ESS API that is based on the RESTful architectural style. It 
is the goal of ESS to publish the REST ESS API by June 30, 2020 and to assist Service 
Providers with testing and implementation. The ESS SOAP API will continue to be 
available during a transition period. It is the goal of ESS to fully migrate integrations 
to the REST ESS API by December 31, 2021. 

 

Service Provider ESS API Developments – Processes 

Service Provider ESS API Developments for exchanging information with the ESS API 
should be configured to run whenever the Service Provider System is operating, and if 
the Service Provider System is restarted for any reason, Service Provider ESS API 
Developments should also be configured to restart. Business Functions and Operations 
described in Exhibit A and which are to be fulfilled by processes incorporated within 
Service Provider ESS API Developments include the following. 
 

ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal and E‐Submission Processes 

 The transfer of information relating to recorded documents in electronic format 
to the ESS and Iowa Land Records portal using the specified ESS API and XML.  
This process will track the UniqueCountyRequestID for each message and 
automatically schedule the corresponding status process until all submitted 
messages have received a final disposition status. 

 The notification to the County Recorder that an electronically submitted 
document is ready for review in the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission 
service. This process returns a status message indicating whether groups exist in 
the ‘Ready for Recorder’ state. 

 The downloading of ‘Recorder Approved’ submissions from the ESS and Iowa 
Land Records E‐Submission service.  This process also downloads re‐stamped 
documents.  

 The process of sending newly assigned indexing information to the ILR E‐
Submission server in order to affix a recording stamp to the first page. 

 The downloading of ‘Stamped’ submissions from the ESS and Iowa Land Records 
E‐Submission service. This process downloads the image of recorded and 
stamped documents. 

 
Note: For messaging in the ILR E‐Submission service, the sequence of a download shall 
be based on the sequence id in the submission. 

E‐Submission Stamp Correction Process 

In certain circumstances it is possible that an electronically recorded document may be 
stamped incorrectly.  Recorders may correct this error with a new stamped image 

57



created by providing the corrected stamp data points through the ESS and Iowa Land 
Records E‐Submission user interface.  This error correction process is only available after 
a group has been previously and successfully recorded.  A corrected document image is 
made available to the original submitter, and it is made available to the County and the 
Service Provider System for download through the ESS API. 
 
The Service Provider System may either programmatically monitor the ESS API for 
images with corrected recording stampls, or manually call the ESS API, and retrieve and 
archive the corrected image in the County and Service Provider System. The format of 
the available image will be the TIFF version as specified by the County and the Service 
Provider. 
 

Scheduling Available Processes 

The Service Provider is responsible for the timely processing of all messaging 
transactions.  In order to facilitate the timely processing of related messaging, Service 
Provider ESS API Developments shall include methods for programmatically scheduling 
all messaging processes. 
 

Web Service Call Limitations 

Web services calls to the ESS API may be subject to limitations in order to prevent abuse 
from excessive or unnecessary demands on resources for the ESS API or for Service 
Provider ESS API Developments. Web service calls are counted per endpoint key and IP 
address. When using the default endpoint URL, the limits are 45/minute and 5000/day. 
When the limit is exceeded, the API will return an error. 
 
[Duplicate language regarding log files. Moved to the second paragraph under “Service 
Provider ESS API Developments”. 

Data Validation 

ESS and Iowa Land Records have established various policies and standards relating the 
organization and formatting of data (see ESS Policies and Procedures). These policies 
govern a number of topics including but not limited to the indexing of grantor/grantee 
names, the parsing of name information, the parsing of legal or location description 
information, and the mapping of certain information maintained by a County through a 
Service Provider System to the format specified by ESS such as document types. 
 
As a part of the Maintenance and Support responsibilities, the Service Provider shall 
validate that the data exchanged with ESS and the Iowa Land Records system as well as 
the XML container for the data conform to these policies. At a minimum, any data, 
including embedded data such as document images, shall conform this requirement. 
The Service Provider is also encouraged to work with client Counties to ensure that the 
data maintained in the Service Provider System also conform with these policies. 

58



 

Monitoring ESS API response messages 

The Service Provider is responsible for monitoring all response messages returned from 
the ESS API. In addition to the normal messages associated with the execution and 
completion of the Business Functions and Operations described herein, the Service 
Provider shall actively monitor all error and failure messages. The receipt of an error or 
failure message shall trigger an alert to a Service Provider technical account or user so 
that remediation and mitigation steps can be timely implemented. Whenever necessary, 
the Service Provider shall make necessary changes and updates to Service Provider ESS 
API Developments in order prevent the reoccurrence of any error or failure.  If issues are 
identified which indicate that the source of an error or failure is the ESS API, the Service 
Provider shall immediately submit a support request to support@clris.com or by calling 
(insert 800 number here). 
 
Generally, the Service Providers should use existing tools and processes to monitor 
information transfers and to diagnose the reason for failed uploads. Monitoring should 
be timely, and extended periods of failed information transfers should not occur. Status 
checks are being run shortly after the upload process occurs (within minutes). Similarly, 
after a fix is implemented, service providers should be able to confirm resolution 
through the API by invoking the archiveStatus function to verify it returns a Posted 
status. 
 
Here is an example. The current ESS API provides an “archiveStatus” function that 
returns the status of an upload provided it reached the ILR web service interface – 
either Received, Posted, or Failed.  If Failed is returned, additional messages are 
returned within the SOAP response similar to the following: 

cvc‐datatype‐valid.1.2.2: '19930629::24:00 PM:00:000' is not a valid value of list 
type 'formattedDate'. 
cvc‐attribute.3: The value '19930629::24:00 PM:00:000' of attribute 
'_RecordingDate' on element 'PRIA_DOCUMENT' is not valid with respect to its 
type, 'formattedDate'. 

 
For more information about web service functions, see “Portal and E‐Submission Web 
Service Timing” in the Other Specifications and Technical Requirements section. 

Operation of Service Provider ESS API Developments 

Service Provider ESS API Developments for exchanging information with the ESS API 
should be configured to run whenever the Service Provider System is operating, and if 
the Service Provider System is restarted for any reason, Service Provider ESS API 
Developments should also be configured to restart. 
 

59



 XML  

All Messaging between a County, Service Provider System and Service Provider ESS API 
Developments, and the ESS Iowa Land Records applications must be valid XML 
documents according to published DTD or Schema specifications. It is required that 
Service Provider ESS API Developments be capable of processing all valid XML files 
associated with Service Provider responsibilities in a County (processing and archiving 
data and/or images). 
 
The current specification for XML messages and the contained PRIA_DOCUMENT 
content (including embedded files) can be accessed via the following DTD’s: 
 

PRIA Document 
http://iowalandrecords.org/portal/dtd/ESS_PRIA_DOCUMENT.dtd 

PRIA Request 
http://iowalandrecords.org/portal/dtd/ESS_PRIA_Request.dtd 

PRIA Response 
http://iowalandrecords.org/portal/dtd/ESS_PRIA_Response.dtd 

 
 

Programming Language 

Service providers may use a programming language of their choice to handle the 
integration.  However, the choice of technology should take into consideration the 
stability and durability of the language.  For purposes of managing ongoing maintenance 
and support functions, solutions utilizing languages not in the mainstream should be 
avoided. Current implementations utilize .Net, Java, and Powerbuilder. Service providers 
should advise of any current programming tools in use. When  ESS is not responsible for 
providing service providers sample integration code, but may do so as a courtesy to the 
Service Provider. 
 

Testing 

As noted in Exhibit A, ESS provides a staging environment for the Service Provider for 
developing and testing their integration code.  ILR encourages use of this functionality 
and will provide a reasonable amount of test data for the service provider to use.  
Service Providers shall communicate with ESS personnel about testing activities 
including the time of testing, the functions being tested, the sample county credentials 
being used for testing (if applicable), and the public IP address of the devices being used 
in the testing process. Service providers who are known to be actively testing will be 
notified of any staging environment down time. 
 
The locations of the ESS and Iowa Land Records staging services are: 

ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission WSDL: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/esubmission/services/ESubmissionClientService?wsdl  

60



ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission service: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/esubmission/services/ESubmissionClientService  

ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission site: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/esubmission/  

 
ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal WSDL: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/xmlservice/services/PortalClientService?wsdl  

ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal service: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/xmlservice/services/PortalClientService  

ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal site: 
https://staging.iowalandrecords.org/portal  

 
Before moving to production, Service Providers will be given a list of processes to test 
and will be required to demonstrate that their client systems function as specified by 
the ILR API documents.  If the validation process is not successful, development work 
will continue until the requirements are met.  If this validation process is successful, 
arrangements will be made between ILR staff and the Service Provider to promote the 
integration code to production. 

Other Specifications and Technical Requirements 

There are a number of other specifications and technical requirements, in addition to 
the specifications and requirements relating to the exchange of information between a 
County, a Service Provider System, Service Provider ESS API Developments and ESS 
applications through the ESS API. These other specifications and requirements are 
described below. 
 

_Code Values   

A Unique Code Value is a reference value assigned to a document by a County, County 
Recorder or Service Provider which uniquely identifies each document within a County 
and which associates indexed document information with an archived image of the 
document or instrument. Every document archived by a County in a Service Provider 
system, whether locally or in a hosted environment, must have a permanently assigned 
unique code value. The purpose of this code value is to assure that every document can 
be uniquely identified and distinguished from all other documents in a county regardless 
of year. 
 
For counties that elect to use services from different indexing and imaging providers, 
the Service Providers shall jointly be responsible for accurate and consistent assignment 
of  <PRIA_DOCUMENT Code=””…>  Values.  The “Code” value is used to link index and 
image information on the ESS Portal.  Without matching “Code” values for a given 
County’s unique document, the image information will not be displayed. 
 

61



ESS Policies and Procedures require that unique code value for each document be 
permanently assigned and remain unchanged even if there is a change in Service 
Provider. See Section 3.7(9) of the ESS Policies and Procedures. “In the event that a 
County changes the indexing or imaging service, as applicable, the County and the new 
service provider shall retain any previously assigned Unique Code Value for each 
document and any Unique Code Value for associated documents.” 
 
While not a requirement, ESS encourages Counties and Service Providers to use the 
following unique code value convention for documents which are recorded in the 
future: a character string with the following elements: county number, year of 
recording, and the document reference number assigned to each document in the 
County and Service Provider System.  
 

Portal and E‐Submission Web Service Timing 

In order to ensure the availability of ESS system resources for County Recorders, Service 
Providers and registered users, the following timing requirements apply to the 
frequency of calls Portal and E‐Submission web service communications.  
 

E‐Submission Web Service 
Typical business hours for County Recorders fall within the range of 6:00 AM CST 
to 6:00 PM CST. Web service calls to the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐
Submission service should, in most circumstances, occur within this time frame.  
E‐Submission documents should not be processed outside of those hours. 
 
Calls to the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission service shall conform to the 
following frequency guidelines: 
 
findReadyForRecorder ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  once every two minutes. 
 
findReadyForDownload ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  once every two minutes. 
   
downloadDoc ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the results of 
findReadyForDownload. 
 
submitStampInfo ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the 
number of E‐submission documents that have been downloaded via 
downloadDoc 
 
 
Portal Web Service 
Frequency requirements for web service calls to the ESS and Iowa Land Records 
Portal are applicable 24/7/365.  Calls to the ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal 
shall conform to the following frequency guidelines: 

62



 
archive ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as often as deemed necessary by the 
county to archive documents; Minimum frequency of calls:  once per business 
day to archive documents.  Newly archived documents are transferred for 
redaction services each night.  It is recommended that all recently recorded 
documents be archived to the ESS and Iowa Land Records portal no later than 
11:00 PM each week night to ensure timely redaction processing. 
 
archiveStatus ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the number of 
archives processed, and prior status checks 
 
sendAudit ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the county policy 
to transmit document audits. 
   
auditStatus ‐  Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the number of 
audit records processed, and prior status checks. 
 
findRedactionReady ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  once per hour. 
 
downloadDoc ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  as needed based on the results of 
findRedactionReady. 
 
auditDocument ‐ Maximum frequency of calls:  at the Service Providers 
discretion.  However ESS and Iowa Land Records reserves the right to require 
Service Provider to alter the request schedule if it is determined that frequency 
is impacting system performance or if repeated excessive auditing occurs.  For 
example, there is no need to audit the entire county inventory of documents 
every day or even every week. 

 

Imaging 

ESS has established the Adobe PDF format as the standard for document imaging for the 
display of images at iowalandrecords.org.  However, images received from and 
delivered to local county systems shall be in TIFF format compatible with local imaging 
systems. 

ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal 

 
The images submitted for inclusion in the CLRIS database are to be provided in valid TIFF 
format by the Service Provider.  The Service Provider shall also ensure that the TIFF 
images provided to the CLRIS system are properly oriented for reading, and shall assist 
County Recorders with efforts to properly orient document images when they are 
initially scanned and archived in local document image systems.  TIFF images may be 

63



provided as single or multi‐page format consistent with the manner in which documents 
are archived for local systems. The TIFF images submitted must be the original un‐
redacted versions. 
 
All embedded files transferred to the ESS and Iowa Land Records Portal must be B64 or 
UU encoded, and otherwise conform to the specifications published in the ESS API.  
Images shall not be transferred as Packed Bits, LZW, OJPEG formats.  If Service Provider 
efforts to convert images to supported formats are unsuccessful, CLRIS will attempt to 
assist if possible 
 
 

TIFF Image Format 

It is the responsibility of the Service Provider to notify ESS and Iowa Land Records of the 
specific TIFF format (single or multi‐page) applicable to each of the Service Providers 
Counties, including any variances in TIFF format by date range. Images to Counties and 
Service Provider Systems will be in TIFF format compatible with local imaging systems. 
 
In the event that a County transitions to a different local Service Provider for land record 
management services, it is the responsibility of the new Service Provider to notify ESS 
and Iowa Land Records of any activities affecting the TIFF format for documents which 
were recorded and archived prior to the conversion to a new system and new Service 
Provider. See the section titled “Service Provider System Conversions and Migrations.” 

E‐Submission Images 

The embedded file(s) in all submissions downloaded from the ILR E‐Submission service 
will be in TIFF format. The format will conform to the format requested by the county.  

Recording Information for E‐Submission Documents 

When a document submitted through the ESS and Iowa Land Records E‐Submission 
service is recorded, the Service Provider shall update the following data points, when 
applicable, in the XML document and return them to the ESS and Iowa Land Records ILR 
E‐Submission service through the ESS API. 
 
Book and Page  
Instrument Number  
Number  
Page Range  
Recording Date and Time 
Unique Document ID 
 

64



TLS 

Service Provider shall ensure that the integration and communications with ESS and 
Iowa Land Records systems will conform to TLS 1.2 or above. TLS 1.0 will no longer be 
permitted. This requirement includes automated messaging between systems. 

Recording Date and Time 

All recording date information transferred to ESS and Iowa Land Records shall include 
the following:  yyyyMMdd:HH:mm:ss:SSS.  This is assuming that the Service Provider 
Counties have entered the above information in their files. It is the County’s 
responsibility to correctly enter the complete information for transmittal. The Service 
Provider System shall provide the ability to do so.  This requirement applies to all 
documents recorded on or after July 1, 2013.  No updates are required for documents 
recorded or transferred to ILR prior to July 1, 2013. 
 

65



Exhibit D: Service Provider Counties 
 
The following is a list of Service Provider Counties as of the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

County LLRMS Software Name – Version # IP Address Hosted? Notes 
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 N  
County Name (n) Software Name A – Version x.x 192.000.0.000 Y  

 
Total Service Provider Counties:  X as of July 1, 2019 
 

Service Provider Contacts 
Type Name Email Phone 

Business Mary Smith name@provider.com (xxx) xxx-xxxx ext. xx 
Billing John Henry john@provider.com (xxx) xxx-xxxx ext. xx 
General Support (general) support@provider.com (xxx) xxx-xxxx ext. xx 
Technical Support (technical) techsupport@provider.com (xxx) xxx-xxxx ext. xx 
Other Name Other Email (xxx) xxx-xxxx ext. xx 

 
 

66



LCM Agreement Rider 
As described in Exhibit B of the Maintenance and Support Agreement between Service Provider 
and ESS, ESS requires that all Service Providers integrate with ESS and the Iowa Land Records 
system through the ESS API (web services). ESS has declared that the Local Client Messenger 
(Local Client Module or LCM), an application developed by ESS and Iowa Land Records to 
facilitate the exchange of information between the County and Service Provider System, and 
ESS and Iowa Land Records, has reached the end of its life cycle and will soon no longer be 
supported by ESS and Iowa Land Records. All Service Providers will be required to modify the 
ILR Developments and Service Provider Systems to integrate with ESS through the ESS API. 
 
Notwithstanding this requirement, ESS recognizes that Service Provider has not completed the 
transition to web services for various reasons. Through this Rider to the Maintenance and 
Support Agreement, ESS authorizes the Service Provider to continue to fulfill the Business 
Functions and Operations through ILR Developments with the LCM for the time period specified 
herein. Wherever and whenever applicable, the business and technical requirements specified 
in the Maintenance and Support Agreement, including the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and the 
Specifications and Performance Standards (Exhibit B) shall apply to the Service Provider, Service 
Provider System and ILR Developments, and this authorization to temporarily use the LCM shall 
not be considered a waiver of those requirements. 
 
The purpose of this Rider to the Maintenance and Support Agreement is to specify the business 
and technical requirements which are uniquely applicable to the LCM and the use of the LCM as 
the mechanism for exchanging information between the County and Service Provider System, 
and ESS and Iowa Land Records. The specifications referenced herein have been included in 
prior Agreements between the Service Provider and ESS and Iowa Land Records, and no 
substantive changes are planning during the remaining life of the LCM.  
 

Transition Plan and Time 

Service Provider agrees to work with ESS to develop a plan for implementing a transition from 
the LCM to the ESS API as the means for exchanging information between the Service Provider 
System and Iowa Land Records. The intent of a plan will be to complete a transition not later 
than December 31, 2020. 
 
   

67



Local Client Messenger Specifications 

The LCM is designed to facilitate the messaging between local County IT systems and the ILR 
applications.  The LCM is a “pure Java” application that will run on any platform for which there 
is an available Java Virtual Machine (JVM).  The system on which LCM is installed must have an 
installed JVM.  JVM’s for a number of standard platforms may be downloaded from the 
following URL: 
http://www.java.com/en/download/manual.jsp  
 
Service Provider shall install one LCM per client County as applicable. The installation of the 
LCM shall be configured to be of service to all applicable workstations in the office of the 
County Recorder.  Applicable workstations are those used to facilitate the process of recording, 
and each of these will be able to perform equivalent functions, regardless of where the LCM is 
physically installed.   Additionally, alternative configurations of various properties provided 
through the LCM shall be implemented as specified by the County Recorder.  Configurable 
properties include: 

 The display of notification messages including but not limited to the following 
o Documents ready for review by the County Recorder in the ESS and ILR E‐

Submission Services 
o Confirmation messages about the exchange of information between the County 

and Service Provider System 
o Error message about the exchange of information between the County and 

Service Provider System, and ESS and Iowa Land Records 

Hardware and Run‐Time Requirements 

It has been determined that hardware requirements alone cannot be used to determine 
whether the LCM will function consistently.  The LCM itself only requires approximately 10‐15 
MB of drive space and can be run on most machines that can successfully install a JVM. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Service Provider and Service Provider System to ensure that the 
LCM is installed, correctly configured, and running in order to fulfill the Business Functions and 
Operations through ILR Developments with the LCM. 
 

LCMClient – Core Processes 

The LCMclient (lcmclient.bat | lcmclient.sh) is the core process of the LCM and is intended to 
remain running at all times.  The LCMClient is capable of performing all related scheduling 
tasks.  The LCMClient process should be configured to run on startup, regardless of whether or 
not the LCMClient’s internal scheduling capabilities will be used. 
 
The LCMClient.bat can be placed in the C:\Documents and Settings\All Users\Start 
Menu\Programs\Startup folder to be run at startup on MS Windows machines.  Other 
platforms should add the LCMClient.sh to be configured to run on startup. 
 

68



LCM – Available Processes 
All LCM processes require the LCMClient core process to be running in order to be executed.  
LCM processes include: 
 

Portal  
(portal.bat | portal.sh) 
This process handles the upload of ArchiveRecordedDocument XML messages to the ILR 
Portal.  This process will track the UniqueCountyRequestID for each message and 
automatically schedule the corresponding status process until all submitted messages 
have received a final disposition status. 
 

Esubmission Recorder Notification 
(esub_recorder.bat | esub_recorder.sh) 
This process returns a status message indicating whether groups exist in the ‘Ready for 
Recorder’ state. 
 

Esubmission Document Download 
(esub_download.bat | esub_download.sh) 
This process is responsible for downloading ‘Recorder Approved’ submissions from the 
ILR E‐Submission server.  This process also downloads re‐stamped documents. 
 

Esubmission Stamp Request (First Page Information) 
(esub_stamp.bat | esub_stamp.sh) 
This process sends the newly assigned indexing information to the ILR E‐Submission 
server to affix the stamp to the first page. 
 

The details on the individual processes can also be found in the readme.txt file in the root of the 
LCM directory. 
 

Scheduling Available Processes 
 
The Service Provider is responsible for the timely processing of all messaging transactions.  In 
order to facilitate the timely processing of related messaging, the LCMClient is capable of 
scheduling most of the available processes.  The definition of what processes are to be 
scheduled and the interval or frequency is defined in the jobs.xml file.  The Service Provider is 
responsible for configuring and installing a properly formatted jobs.xml file.  The time intervals 
for the scheduled processes should be set to most effectively fulfill the Business Functions and 
Operations described in this Agreement.   
 
The following LCM processes can be programmatically scheduled: 
 

 Portal Upload 

 Esubmission Recorder Notification 

69



 Esubmission Document Download 
 
The Service Provider may request updates to the jobs.xml file from ESS.  Requests for County 
specific jobs.xml file configurations should reference the desired combination of the processes 
described above and the desired time interval for each.  A “jobs.xml” file with no <job> 
elements will be treated as empty and will result in no automatic scheduling. 
 

LCM …/Error Directories 
In cases where a connection or communication error is programmatically detected during the 
operation of one of the LCM operations, the applicable or offending XML file will be placed in 
an Error Directory with a corresponding .error file.  As a part of ensuring consistent and timely 
operation of the LCM, it is the responsibility of the Service Provider to actively monitor these 
/error directories and resolve the issue, or if a resolution cannot be reached, report the matter 
to ESS. 
   

70



Properties Files 

Service Provider should rely only upon the actual properties files included with current version 
of the LCM. The following illustrative information about the configuration of LCM properties is 
provided for reference. 

Portal (client.properties) 

 

HOST= 
HOST=staging.iowalandrecords.org 
This configuration is for testing use only. 
 
HOST=iowalandrecords.org 
This configuration is for production use only. 

 
The host to be inquired for files, or to submit status. 
 
 

PROTOCOL= 
 
All staging and production installations must use “https”. 
PROTOCOL=https: 
 
The protocol to use when communicating with the HOST. 
 
 

WEB_SERVICE_PATH= 
REQUIRED: /portal/services/PortalClientService 

This following configuration is REQUIRED: 
WEB_SERVICE_PATH=/portal/services/PortalClientService 

 
The path on the host used to communicate with the server.  
 
 

SERVICE AFFILIATE CREDENTIALS: 
The Password is the encrypted password visible on Maintain Service Affiliate Credential 
Selection. 
 
USER_NAME= 
PASSWORD= 
 
The login credentials set on ILR Portal for/by the local Service Provider. 
 
 

71



CLIENT DIRECTORY PATHS: 
RECOMMENDED: 
PORTAL_REQUEST_DIR=./queue/portal/request/ 
PORTAL_RESPONSE_DIR=./queue/portal/response/ 
PORTAL_ERROR_DIR=./queue/portal/error/ 
PORTAL_SUBMITTED_DIR=./queue/portal/submitted/ 
 

These properties are the paths to the directories where request, response, error and submitted 
files are stored.  These paths are relative to the directory where the LCM has been installed. 
 
The RECOMMENDED values here should only be changed with explicit permission from ESS 
Administrators. 
 
 

DELETE_POSTED_REQUEST_FILES= 
Options: (true | false) 
 

DELETE_POSTED_REQUEST_FILES=true 
Successfully processed (POSTED) requests are removed from PORTAL_SUBMITTED_DIR 
 
DELETE_POSTED_REQUEST_FILES=false 
Successfully processed (POSTED) requests are not removed from 
PORTAL_SUBMITTED_DIR 
 

This property determines whether or not a successfully submitted request file is deleted from 
the PORTAL_SUBMITTED_DIR when a POSTED status is received. 
 
 

DELETE_FAILED_REQUEST_FILES= 
Options: (true | false) 
 

DELETE_FAILED_REQUEST_FILES=true 
Unsuccessful (FAILED) requests are removed from PORTLA_SUBMITTED_DIR 
 
DELETE_FAILED_REQUEST_FILES=false 
Unsuccessful (FAILED) requests are not removed from PORTLA_SUBMITTED_DIR 

 
This property determines whether or not a request file that failed is deleted from the 
SUBMITTED_DIR when a FAILED status is received. 
 
 

PARTY_COUNTY= 
Example:  COUNTY=Buena Vista 

72



 
This property is the name of the county. Please use camel case.  Include the space for counties 
with two parts to its name. 
 
 

MAX_NUM_STATUS_REQUESTS= 
RECOMMENDED: 
MAX_NUM_STATUS_REQUESTS=500 
 

This property determines max number of status requests that can be sent per message.  The 
RECOMMENDED values should only be changed with explicit permission from ESS 
Administrators. 
 
 

MAX_FILE_SIZE= 
RECOMMENDED: 
MAX_FILE_SIZE=31456780 

 
The maximum file size that can be handled (approximately). The RECOMMENDED values here 
should only be changed  with explicit permission from ESS Administrators.   
 

 

Esubmission (esubmission.properties) 
 
HOST= 
 (staging.iowalandrecords.org | iowalandrecords.org) 
 “staging.iowalandrecords.org” is for testing use only.  “Iowalandrecords.org” is for 
production use only. 
 
The host to be inquired for files, or to submit status. 
 
 

PROTOCOL= 
All staging and production installations must use “https”. 
 
The protocol to use when communicating with the HOST. 
 
NOTE:  Possible values are 'https:'. 
 
 

WEB_SERVICE_PATH= 
/esubmission/services/ESubmissionClientService 

73



 
 The path on the host used to communicate with the server. 
 
 NOTE: Do not change the value of this property without direction from the ESS Administrator. 
 
 

INQUIRY_PATH= 
/esubmission/inquiry/ 
 
 The path on the host used to inquire about files and submit status. 
 
 NOTE: Do not change the value of this property without direction from the ESS Administrator. 
 
 

SERVICE AFFILIATE CREDENTIAL 
 USER_NAME= 
PASSWORD= 
 
These two properties are the Service Affiliate Credential:   UserName and Password.  The 
Password is the encrypted password visible on Maintain Service Affiliate Credential Selection. 
 
 

OTHER DIRECTORY PATHS 
 
RECORDER_FLAG_DIR=./queue/esubmission/recorder/ 
DOWNLOAD_DIR=./queue/esubmission/download/ 
DOWNLOAD_ERR_DIR=./queue/esubmission/download/error/ 
STAMP_REQUEST_DIR=./queue/esubmission/stampRequest/ 
STAMP_REQUEST_ERR_DIR=./queue/esubmission/stampRequest/error/ 
STAMP_REQUEST SUBMITTED_DIR=./queue/esubmission/submitted/ 
ERROR_DIR=./queue/esubmission/error/ 
STAMPED_DIR=./queue/esubmission/stamped/ 
STAMPED_ERR_DIR=./queue/esubmission/stamped/error/ 
RESPONSE_DIR=./queue/esubmission/response/ 
REDOWNLOAD_DIR=./queue/esubmission/redownload/ 
REDOWNLOAD_ERR_DIR=./queue/esubmission/redownload/error/ 
 
These properties are the paths to the directories where request, response, error, submitted and 
downloaded files are stored.  These paths are relative to the directory where the LCM has been 
installed. 
 
 

74



DOWNLOAD_IMAGES=false 
 
 This property determines whether or not the PDF or Tiff Images are included in the download 
of the pre‐stamped PRIA document. 
 
 

DOWNLOAD_DOC_IMAGE_TYPE= 
 
 This property determines the type of image that is downloaded in the initial unstamped 
document download. The image(s) will only be downloaded if DOWNLOAD_IMAGES is true. 
Valid choices include PDF and TIFF. 
 
 

DOWNLOAD_STAMPED_DOC_IMAGE_TYPE= 
 
 This property determines the type of image that is downloaded in the stamped document 
download. Valid choices include PDF, TIFF and BOTH. 
 
 

COUNTY= 
This property is the name of the County.  This will control which county's information is 
downloaded. 

TIMEOUT=600000 
 
 The maximum time the client will wait for the server to respond (miliseconds). 
 
 

MAX_NUM_STAMPED_DOC_REQUESTS= 
 
This property determines max number of stamped doc records that can be read into memory at 
one time.  
  
   

75



 
  

Integration Agreement 
 
 
 
 

 
Corporation Service Company 

 

& 
 

Electronic Services System 
 

(County Land Record 
Information System) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

June 1, 2019 
 

76



 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Section 1.  Preamble ........................................................................................................... 4 
Section 2.  General Provisions ............................................................................................ 5 

2.1 Definition of Terms................................................................................................... 5 
2.2 External Submitter Authorized Provider .................................................................. 7 
2.3 Term ......................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
2.4 Policies and Fees ...................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Terms of Use and Privacy Policies ............................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Recording Fees ........................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Service Fees ............................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

2.5 Project Management ................................................................................................. 8 
Account Managers ...................................................................................................... 8 
Project Planning .......................................................................................................... 8 
Periodic Meetings ....................................................................................................... 8 
Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition ...................................................................... 8 

2.6 Systems Integration ................................................................................................... 8 
Project Architecture .................................................................................................... 8 
County Interface .......................................................................................................... 8 
Software Changes and Support ................................................................................... 9 
Responsibility for Costs and Expenses ....................................................................... 9 
Product/System Roadmap ........................................................................................... 9 

Section 3.  Customer Support ............................................................................................. 9 
3.1 Technical Support and Development. ....................................................................... 9 
3.2 Service Level Agreement. ......................................................................................... 9 
3.3 Service Disruption and Recovery. .......................................................................... 10 
3.4 Incident Response and Escalation. .......................................................................... 10 

Section 4.  Reserved .......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 5.  Proprietary Rights ........................................................................................... 10 
Section 6.  Confidential Information ................................................................................ 10 

6.1 Nondisclosure and Nonuse ..................................................................................... 10 
Section 7.  Contract Administration.................................................................................. 11 

7.1 Limitation of Liability............................................................................................. 11 
7.2 Default and Termination ......................................................................................... 11 

Termination for Cause .............................................................................................. 11 
Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law ............................................. 12 
Remedies of External Submitter ............................................................................... 13 
External Submitter’s Termination Duties ................................................................. 13 

7.3 No Warranty ............................................................................................................ 13 
7.4 Compliance with the Law and Regulations ............................................................ 14 
7.5 Amendments ........................................................................................................... 14 
7.6 Third Party Beneficiaries ........................................................................................ 14 
7.7 Choice of Law and Forum ...................................................................................... 14 
7.8 Assignment and Delegation .................................................................................... 14 

77



 3

7.9 Entire Agreement .................................................................................................... 15 
7.10 Obligation Beyond Agreement Term .................................................................... 15 
7.11 Waiver ................................................................................................................... 15 
7.12 Notices .................................................................................................................. 15 
7.13 Cumulative Rights ................................................................................................ 16 
7.14 Severability ........................................................................................................... 16 
7.15 Authorization ........................................................................................................ 17 
7.16 Successors in Interest ............................................................................................ 17 
7.17 Records Retention and Access .............................................................................. 17 
7.18 Headings or Captions ............................................................................................ 17 
7.19 Multiple Counterparts ........................................................................................... 17 
7.20 Not a Joint Venture ............................................................................................... 17 
7.21 Additional Provisions............................................................................................ 18 
7.22 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments ................................................... 18 
7.23 Obligations of Joint Entities.................................................................................. 18 
7.24 Superior Power...................................................................................................... 18 
7.25 Material Breaches ................................................................................................. 19 
7.26 Taxes ..................................................................................................................... 19 
7.27 Title to Property .................................................................................................... 19 
7.28 Exclusivity ............................................................................................................ 19 
7.29 Attorney’s Fees and Expenses .............................................................................. 19 
7.30 Interpretation ......................................................................................................... 19 

Section 8.  Signatures ........................................................................................................ 20 
Activities of External Submitter ................................................................................... 21 
Activities of ESS ........................................................................................................... 22 
Collaborative Activities of External Submitter and ESS .............................................. 23 

 

78



 4

This Integration Agreement is made as of June 1, 2019, by and between Corporation 
Service Company (CSC) 2711 Centerville Road, Wilmington, DE 19808, a Delaware 
Corporation with its principal place of business at 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, DE 
19808 (“CSC” and “External Submitter”) and the Electronic Services System – DBA 
Iowa Land Records, 8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA 50131 (“ESS”). 
 

Section 1.  Preamble 
 
WHEREAS, External Submitter provides software, consulting, and support services to 
allow document preparers, submitters and recorders to scan, package, submit, receive, 
queue, review, cashier, stamp, retrieve, print, forward and return documents over the 
Internet for eRecording with County officials, sometimes in integration with various 
providers of electronic recording systems such as those provided by ESS; and  
 
WHEREAS, ESS provides software, equipment, hosting, consulting, and support services 
for an electronic land records portal for record search and retrieval and electronic 
recording, and ESS interfaces with the various land records management systems in use 
by Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have made or may make future changes to their respective 
software so that documents which are rendered, scanned, packaged and submitted using 
the External Submitter’s software may be received and recorded electronically through 
ESS; and 
 
WHEREAS, External Submitter and ESS desire to jointly provide their respective 
services in order to allow the electronic submission and recordation of documents in each 
participating County; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions contained in 
this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, External Submitter and ESS hereby agree as follows: 
  

79



 5

Section 2.  General Provisions 
 

2.1 Definition of Terms 
 
Agreement means this Integration Agreement. 
 
API means application program interface, a set of routines, protocols, and tools for 
building software applications. 
 
Confidential Information means, subject to any applicable State and federal laws and 
regulations, including but not limited to Iowa Code Chapter 22, any confidential or 
proprietary information or trade secrets disclosed by either Party (a “disclosing Party”) to 
the other Party (a “receiving Party”) that, at the time of disclosure, is designated as 
confidential (or like designation), is disclosed in circumstances of confidence, or would 
be understood by the Parties, exercising reasonable business judgment, to be confidential.  
Confidential Information does not include any information that: 
 

1. Was rightfully in the possession of the receiving Party from a source other than 
the disclosing Party prior to the time of disclosure of the information by the 
disclosing Party to the receiving Party; 

2. Was known to the receiving Party prior to the disclosure of the information by the 
disclosing Party; 

3. Was disclosed to the receiving Party without restriction by an independent third 
Party having a legal right to disclose the information; 

4. Becomes public knowledge, other than through an act or failure to act of the 
disclosing Party; 

5. Is publicly available or in the public domain at or prior to the time such 
information was disclosed by the disclosing Party; 

6. Is independently developed by the receiving Party without any reliance on 
Confidential Information disclosed by the disclosing Party; or 

7. Is disclosed or required to be disclosed pursuant to law, subpoena or the order of a 
court or governmental agency or regulatory authority. 

 
Coordinated Services means the respective services of External Submitter and ESS 
delivered on a coordinated basis under this Agreement as specified in Exhibit A. 
 
County means any county in United States of America or other comparable region in 
North America. 
 
County Operating Hours means the hours of normal operation of the land records 
recording office of the applicable County during which documents are accepted for 
recording. 
 
e-Recording means the act or practice of electronically submitting and receiving land 
record documents for recording with a County. 

80



 6

 
Electronic Services System (ESS) means the 28E governmental organization established 
by Iowa counties to facilitate the electronic delivery of government services including e-
Recording. 
 
Electronic Services System API (ESS API) means any API created, owned and 
maintained by the Electronic Services System. 
 
Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures means the official policies and 
procedures adopted by the ESS Coordinating Committee and the Executive Board of the 
Iowa County Recorders Association. As provided in Section 331.604 of the Code of 
Iowa, Subsection 3a, each county shall comply with the policies and procedures 
established by the governing boards. 
 
ESS County means any County in which ESS provides land records management 
services. 
 
External Submitter means Corporation Service Company (CSC). 
 
Local Land Records Management System means the land records management system 
utilized by an ESS County to manage the recording process and to archive recorded 
documents. 
 
Party means the External Submitter and ESS individually. 
 
Parties means the External Submitter and ESS collectively. 
 
Privacy Policy means the ESS policy that discloses some or all of the ways ESS gathers, 
uses, discloses, and manages a customer or client's data. 
 
Recording Fee means the fee paid by the External Submitter to ESS for the recording of 
a document by an ESS County. 
 
Service Fee means the fee paid by the External Submitter to ESS for access to the ESS 
API, and for and the permission to transmit and receive information through the ESS 
system. 
 
Submitters means the submitters of documents to Counties for e-Recording using the 
Coordinated Services, including but not limited to submission service providers, title 
companies, banks, attorneys, abstractors, and lien filers. 
 
Terms of Use means the Terms of Use published by ESS concerning access to and 
utilization of the ESS E-Submission service (e-Recording). 
 

81



 7

Third Party means a person or entity including, but not limited to any form of business 
organization, such as a corporation, partnership, limited liability corporation, association, 
etc., other than ESS or the External Submitter. 
 

2.2 External Submitter Authorized Provider 
ESS will collaborate with External Submitter as a non-exclusive authorized provider of 
the e-Recording submission services contemplated hereby.  The Coordinated Services 
developed pursuant to the work as specified in Exhibit A - will be made available in all 
ESS Counties that participate in the ESS E-Submission service (e-Recording). 
 

2.3 Term 
The term of this Agreement is for one year.  The initial term of the contract is from June 
1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.  The term of this Agreement shall be automatically 
extended for subsequent one-year periods unless the External Submitter or ESS is 
provided with a notice of intent by the other party to not extend the Agreement. Such 
notice shall be provided no less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of each one-
year term. 
 

2.4 Policies and Fees 

Terms of Use and Privacy Policies 
External Submitter shall abide by the published ESS Terms of Use and Privacy Policies, 
and any subsequent amendments thereto. 

Recording Fees 
External Submitter shall ensure payment of all applicable recording fees required by a 
County.  

Service Fees 
External Submitter shall ensure payment of all applicable ESS Service Fees required for 
connection with the API and for the processing of all recording transactions, and 
distributions to each County. 
 
The Service Fee shall be the amount specified in the Electronic Services System Policies 
and Procedures.  ESS shall provide notice to the External Submitter of any change in the 
Service Fee, and such notice shall not be less than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the 
expiration of each one-year term. 
 
External Submitter shall require that each customer enabled to submit documents through 
the Coordinated Services make payment for all applicable Recording Fees and Service 
Fees as specified in this section. External Submitter shall make no waiver to any 
customer of any Recording Fee or Service Fee. 

82



 8

 

2.5 Project Management 
 

Account Managers 
The Parties will each assign account managers to coordinate and administer the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and to serve as primary points of contact for 
communications related to the Coordinated Services. 
 

Project Planning 
The Parties will establish appropriate project plans for the planning and execution of the 
Coordinated Services specified in Exhibit A. 
 

Periodic Meetings 
The Parties may convene periodic telephonic or web conference meetings (or meetings in 
person if the Parties agree) to review any issues or topics which may affect the operation 
of the Coordinated Services. 
 

Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition 
During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years thereafter, each of the 
Parties will not encourage or solicit any employee of the other Party to leave the 
employment of the other Party and will not hire any of the other Party’s employees. 
  

2.6 Systems Integration 
 

Project Architecture 
The External Submitter agrees to implement the published ESS API and to conform to 
published ESS business rules, policies, procedures and requirements and to 
collaboratively architect the integration required to maintain and improve an e-Recording 
document workflow from the External Submitter and submitters to ESS.  ESS will 
provide a technical description of the ESS API to External Submitter for its use in 
creating, updating and maintaining software to effectively submit documents for e-
Recording.  ESS will provide technical support and a functional test environment to assist 
External Submitter in its implementation of the ESS API. 

County Interface 
ESS will provide the means to exchange information with the Local Land Records 
Management System in each ESS County through which the External Submitter may 
submit documents to be recorded on behalf of its customers. 

83



 9

 

Software Changes and Support 
ESS will test any and all upgrades or revisions to its software to assure continuing 
operability with External Submitter’s electronic submission systems and will provide 
reasonable advance notice to External Submitter in order to allow for coordination prior 
to implementation of any upgrade or revision to the ESS API.  ESS will provide support 
as needed to External Submitter personnel to assure continuing operability of External 
Submitter’s electronic submission systems. 
 

Responsibility for Costs and Expenses 
Each Party will be responsible for any and all costs of developing, programming, 
marketing, promoting, and providing its respective portion of the Coordinated Services 
under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, neither Party will be 
responsible or liable for any costs or expenses of the other Party incurred in connection 
with this Agreement. 
 

Product/System Roadmap 
Each Party agrees to provide the other Party with a product/system road map that enables 
ESS and External Submitter to anticipate revisions to their respective software and to 
plan related integration updates. 

Section 3.  Customer Support 
 
The Parties will work together to support the implementation of the Coordinated 
Services. 
 

3.1 Technical Support and Development.   
The Parties agree to support each other’s technical support development efforts. The 
Parties will each provide the other with contact information of personnel or offices when 
technical, operational or development support and assistance is required. The information 
shall include appropriate support email addresses, telephone numbers, online support 
information and other appropriate contact information. 
 

3.2 Service Level Agreement.  
External Submitter and ESS each agree to use its best efforts to maintain its systems and 
services in full effective operation for each County during 99.9% of the respective 
County Operating Hours, except for downtimes mutually agreed upon by ESS, County 
and External Submitter and downtimes arising from any Internet downtime or outages or 
from causes beyond the control of the Parties.  ESS will use its best efforts to obtain 
agreement from the LRMS Vendors to provide the same level of service described in this 

84



 10

section in each of their customer counties.  External Submitter and ESS will each make 
every effort to schedule system downtime outside of County Operating Hours; however, 
in the event either Party is required to schedule downtime during County Operating 
Hours, the Party will collaborate with the ESS Counties and with the other Party to notify 
administrators, users and system technicians for work planning purposes. 
 

3.3 Service Disruption and Recovery.   
The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to immediately identify and 
work to resolve disruptions to the Coordinated Services. 
 

3.4 Incident Response and Escalation.   
The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to respond immediately to 
technical support incidents initiated by the other Party or by the ESS County.  The Parties 
further agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to address any interruption to 
service. 

Section 4.  Reserved 
 
 

Section 5.  Proprietary Rights 
 
The Parties will each retain ownership of their respective software and systems. The 
software created by ESS to receive documents electronically from External Submitter 
pursuant to this Integration Agreement will remain the property of ESS. The software 
created or licensed by the External Submitter pursuant to this Integration Agreement to 
gather and submit documents electronically, and to make submissions for receipt through 
the ESS API will remain under the control of the External Submitter. Any software 
developed by either Party to effectuate the interface jointly designed by the Parties 
pursuant to this Agreement shall belong to the Party who developed the software. 
 

Section 6.  Confidential Information 
Each Party may have access to certain Confidential Information of the other Party, and 
the Parties desire to restrict the further disclosure and use of such information. 
 

6.1 Nondisclosure and Nonuse 
Recipient will hold the Confidential Information in strict confidence and will not directly 
or indirectly use the Confidential Information or disclose the Confidential Information to 
any third Party except in compliance with this Agreement.  Recipient will not disclose 
Confidential Information to any person or entity other than its officers and employees 

85



 11

with a “need to know” (and who must be directly involved and need access to the 
Confidential Information) in connection with this Agreement and who are (i) bound by a 
duty of confidentiality with respect to the Confidential Information under terms and 
conditions no less restrictive than those contained herein, and (ii) instructed and agree not 
to disclose the Confidential Information and not to use the Confidential Information for 
any purpose, except as set forth herein.  Recipient will maintain reasonable procedures to 
prevent the accidental or unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information and 
will exert at least the same degree of care as it uses to protect its own confidential or 
proprietary information.  Recipient will immediately notify the other Party in the event of 
any unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information.  Any reproduction of 
Confidential Information will contain any and all confidential or proprietary notices or 
legends which appear on the original.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Recipient 
will promptly return to the other Party all documents or other tangible materials 
containing Confidential Information and all copies thereof. 
 

Section 7.  Contract Administration  
 

7.1 Limitation of Liability  
In no event shall either Party (including their respective officers, employees, 
shareholders, members, contractors, agents and representatives) be liable to the other 
Party for indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages, even if advised of the 
possibility of such damages. 
 
Each Party, their successors and assigns (the “ indemnifying Party”) agree to indemnify 
and hold harmless the other Party, its  employees, officers, agents, representatives, 
contractors, officers, shareholders, members board members and officials (the 
“indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims or demands for liability, loss, damage, 
costs, expenses, or attorney’s fees of any kind for actions or omissions of the 
Indemnifying Party arising out of or in connection with any undertaking arising out of or 
otherwise related to this Agreement. 
 
In no event shall the cumulative maximum liability of either party under this Agreement 
exceed $100,000 for the Term of this Agreement. 
 
 This Section 7.1 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 

7.2 Default and Termination 

Termination for Cause 
The External Submitter and ESS may terminate this Agreement upon written notice for 
the breach by either Party for any material term, condition or provision of this 
Agreement, if such breach is not cured within the time period specified in the notice of 

86



 12

breach or any subsequent notice or correspondence delivered by ESS to External 
Submitter. All notices require less than a 5-day response. 
 
In addition, ESS or External Submitter may terminate this Agreement effective with a 30-
day notice and without penalty for any of the following reasons: 
 

1. External Submitter or ESS furnished any statement, representation, warranty or 
certification in connection with this Agreement that is false, deceptive, or 
materially incorrect or incomplete; or 

2. External Submitter or ESS becomes subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency 
proceeding under federal or state law to the extent allowed by applicable federal 
or state law including bankruptcy laws; or 

3. External Submitter or ESS terminates or suspends its business; or 
4. External Submitter or ESS has engaged in conduct that has or may expose ESS or 

the External Submitter to liability, as determined in sole discretion of ESS or 
External Submitter. 

 
If cure is feasible and an opportunity to cure is provided, the notice shall specify the exact 
date by which the condition must be cured.  Following expiration of the opportunity to 
cure or notice from ESS or External Submitter, ESS or External Submitter may seek any 
available contractual, legal or equitable remedy. 

Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to the 
limitations, conditions, and procedures set forth below, ESS shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without penalty and without any advance notice as a result of 
any of the following: 
 

1. The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of ESS to appropriate funds 
sufficient to allow ESS to either meet its obligations under this Agreement or to 
operate as required and to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement; or 

2. If funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, 
or if any funds or revenues needed by ESS to make any payment hereunder, in the 
sole discretion of ESS are insufficient or unavailable for any other reason; or 

3. If ESS authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations 
related to the subject matter of this Agreement is withdrawn or materially altered 
or modified; or 

4. If ESS duties or programs are substantially modified or materially altered; or  
5. If there is a decision of any court or an arbitration panel or any law, rule, 

regulation or order is enacted, promulgated or issued that materially or adversely 
affects:  ESS ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement or the 
operation of the ESS portal or E-Submission service. 

 
ESS shall provide External Submitter with written notice of termination pursuant to this 
section. 
 

87



 13

Remedies of External Submitter  
(In the Event of Termination by ESS) 
In the event of termination of this Agreement for any reason by ESS, ESS shall pay only 
those amounts, if any, due and owing to External Submitter for services actually rendered 
up to and including the date of termination of the Agreement and for which ESS is 
obligated to pay pursuant to this Agreement.  Payment will be made only upon 
submission of invoices and proper proof of External Submitter’s claim.  This provision in 
no way limits the remedies available to ESS in the event of the termination of this 
Agreement.  In no event shall ESS be liable for any expenses, costs, fees, judgments, 
damages, awards, charges, or any other amounts, including, but not limited to the 
following: 
 

1. The payment of unemployment compensation to External Submitter’s employees; 
2. The payment of workers’ compensation claims, which occur during the 

Agreement or extend beyond the date on which the Agreement terminates; 
3. Any damages or other amounts, including amounts associated with the loss of 

prospective profits, anticipated sales, goodwill, or for expenditures, investments 
or commitments made in connection with this Agreement ; 

4. Any taxes External Submitter may owe that in connection with the performance 
of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, sales taxes, excise taxes, use 
taxes, income taxes or property taxes. 

External Submitter’s Termination Duties 
External Submitter, upon receipt of notice of termination for cause or convenience, shall: 
 

1. Immediately cease using and return to ESS any property including, without 
limitation materials, whether tangible or intangible, provided by ESS to External 
Submitter.   

2. Cooperate in good faith with ESS and its employees, agents and contractors 
during the transition period between the notification of termination and the 
completion of any pending transactions or e-recording activities. 

3. Make any payments due to ESS for any pending transactions or e-recording 
activities. 

7.3 No Warranty  
Except as set forth in Section 3.2, the Parties do not warrant that the operation of e-
Recording will be uninterrupted, secure or error-free. THE PARTIES MAKE NO 
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED (EITHER IN 
FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW) WITH RESPECT TO e-RECORDING 
CAPABILITIES, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. 

88



 14

7.4 Compliance with the Law and Regulations 
External Submitter and its employees, agents, officers, directors, approved contractors 
and subcontractors shall comply with all applicable federal, state, foreign, and local laws, 
rules, ordinances, codes, regulations and orders when performing within the scope of this 
Agreement.  External Submitter shall make the provisions of this section a part of its 
contracts with any approved subcontractors providing goods or services related to 
External Submitter’s performance of this Agreement. 
 
ESS may consider the failure of External Submitter to comply with any law or regulation 
as a material breach of this Agreement. 
 

7.5 Amendments 
This Agreement may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual consent of the 
Parties.  Both Parties must execute all amendments to this Agreement. 
 

7.6 Third Party Beneficiaries 
There are no Third Party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  This Agreement is intended 
only to benefit ESS and the External Submitter. 
 

7.7 Choice of Law and Forum 
The laws of the State of Iowa shall govern and determine all matters arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement. 
 
Any and all litigation or actions commenced in connection with this Agreement, 
including after expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall be brought in Des 
Moines, Iowa, in Polk County District Court for the State of Iowa, if jurisdiction is 
proper.  However, if jurisdiction is not proper in the Iowa District Court, Polk County, 
but is proper only in a United State’s District Court, the matter shall be commenced in the 
United State’s District Court for the Southern District of Iowa.   
 
This provision shall not be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, in state 
or federal court, which may be available to ESS. 
 

7.8 Assignment and Delegation 
This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred or conveyed in whole or in part without 
the prior written consent of the other Party.  For purposes of construing this clause, a 
transfer of a controlling interest in External Submitter, a merger, sale or consolidation of 
External Submitter, or a sale of substantially all of External Submitter’s assets shall be 
considered an assignment.  External Submitter agrees that it shall provide ESS with the 
earliest possible advance notice of any proposed sale or transfer or any controlling 
interest in or substantial assets of External Submitter and of any proposed merger, sale or 

89



 15

consolidation of External Submitter.  External Submitter agrees that it shall not use this 
Agreement, or any portion thereof, for collateral or to otherwise secure any financial 
obligation of External Submitter or any affiliate thereof without the prior written consent 
of ESS.   
 

7.9 Entire Agreement 
This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the Parties concerning the 
subject matter hereof, and neither Party is relying on any representation that may have 
been made which is not included in this Agreement.  External Submitter acknowledges 
that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all related schedules, exhibits, and other 
documents and has had the opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel 
necessary for it to form a complete understanding of all rights and obligations herein and 
to accept same freely and without coercion of any kind. 
 

7.10 Obligation Beyond Agreement Term 
This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the end of the specified term or 
until terminated or canceled pursuant to this Agreement.  The obligations of the Parties 
under this Agreement which by their nature would continue beyond the termination of 
this Agreement, including, by way of illustration and not by limitation, those obligations 
set forth in Sections 5, 6, 7.1, 7.2, 7.4, 7.7, 7.10, and 7.17 shall survive termination of this 
Agreement.  
 

7.11 Waiver 
Except as specifically provided for in a waiver signed by duly authorized representatives 
of ESS and External Submitter, failure by either Party at any time to require performance 
by the other Party or to claim a breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be 
construed as affecting any subsequent breach or the right to require performance with 
respect thereto or to claim a breach with respect thereto.  No term or condition of this 
Agreement shall be held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by an instrument, in 
writing, signed by the Parties hereto. 
 

7.12 Notices 
Notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered to the Account Manager 
of the Party to receive notice (identified below) at the address of the Party to receive 
notice as it appears below or as otherwise provided for by proper notice here under.  The 
effective date for any notice under this Agreement shall be the date of delivery of such 
notice (not the date of mailing) which may be effected by a certified U.S. Mail return 
receipt requested with postage prepaid thereon or by recognized overnight delivery 
service, such as Federal Express or UPS: 
 
 

90



 16

If to ESS: 
 
Phil Dunshee 
Project Manager 
ESS 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, Iowa  50131 
515.491.8939 
phil@clris.com 
 
 
If to External Submitter: 
 
Mark A. Rosser 
Vice President 
Corporation Service Company (CSC) 
251 Little Falls Drive 
Wilmington, DE 19808 
800.927.9801  x61550 
850.558.1550  direct 
mark.rosser@cscglobal.com 
 
Any notice or communication sent by U.S. Mail under this Agreement shall be deemed 
given upon receipt as evidenced by the U.S. Postal Service return receipt card, or if sent 
by overnight delivery service, upon receipt as evidenced by the signature attained by the 
carrier. 
 
From time to time, the Parties may change the name and address of a Party designated to 
receive notice.  Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the other 
Party and as provided herein. 
 

7.13 Cumulative Rights 
The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of ESS provided in this 
Agreement shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of the others 
or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed ESS by law, and shall in no way 
affect or impair the right of ESS to pursue any other contractual, equitable or legal 
remedy to which ESS may be entitled as long as any default remains in any way not 
remedied, unsatisfied, or unresolved.  The election by ESS of any one or more remedies 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies. 
 

7.14 Severability 
If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other part or provision of this Agreement. 

91



 17

 

7.15 Authorization 
External Submitter represents and warrants that it has the right, power and authority to 
enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement and that it has taken all 
requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding 
obligation of External Submitter, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

7.16 Successors in Interest 
All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives. 
 

7.17 Records Retention and Access 
External Submitter shall maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently and 
properly document and calculate all transactions throughout the term of this Agreement 
for a period of at least three (3) years following the date of the transactions.  External 
Submitter shall not impose a charge or seek payment for any fee, charge, or expense 
associated with any audit or examination of External Submitter’s books and records.  
External Submitter shall require its subcontractors to agree to the same provisions of this 
section. 
 

7.18 Headings or Captions 
The section headings or captions are for identification purposes only and do not limit or 
construe the contents of the sections.  
 

7.19 Multiple Counterparts 
This agreement shall be executed in two or more counterparts, any one of which shall be 
an original without reference to the others. 
 

7.20 Not a Joint Venture 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or constituting the relationship 
of the partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or agent/principal 
relationship) between the Parties hereto.  Each Party shall be deemed an independent 
contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits expected to be 
derived from the Agreement.  No Party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, 
has the authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf 
of, in the name of, or binding upon, another Party to this Agreement. 
 

92



 18

7.21 Additional Provisions 
The Parties agree that if an Addendum, Rider, Schedule, Appendix or Exhibit is attached 
hereto by the Parties, and referred to herein, then the same shall be deemed incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 

7.22 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments 
The Parties agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or 
cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such 
further instruments as may reasonably be required for carrying out the expressed 
intention of this Agreement. 
 

7.23 Obligations of Joint Entities 
If External Submitter is a joint entity, consisting of more than one individual, partnership, 
corporation or other business organization, all such entities shall be jointly and severally 
liable for carrying out the activities and obligations of this agreement, and for any default 
of such activities and obligations. 
 

7.24 Superior Power 
Neither External Submitter nor ESS shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure of 
performance of this Agreement, and no delay or failure of performance shall constitute a 
default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to the extent that, such delay 
or failure is caused by a "superior power" and not as a result of the fault or negligence of 
a Party.   
 
As used in this Agreement, "superior power" includes acts of God, war, civil disturbance 
and any other causes which are beyond the control and anticipation of the Party affected 
and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the Party was unable to anticipate or 
prevent.  Failure to perform by a subcontractor or an agent of External Submitter shall not 
be considered a "superior power" unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from 
timely performance by a "superior power" as defined in this Agreement.  "Superior 
power" does not include financial difficulties of External Submitter or any parent, 
subsidiary, affiliated or associated company of External Submitter or claims or court 
orders that restrict External Submitter’s ability to deliver the goods or services 
contemplated by this Agreement. 
 
If a "superior power" delays or prevents External Submitter's performance, External 
Submitter shall immediately commence to use its best efforts to directly provide 
alternate, and to the extent possible, comparable performance.  Comparability of 
performance and the possibility of comparable performance shall be reasonably 
determined solely by ESS.   
 

93



 19

7.25 Material Breaches 
The references in this Agreement to specific material breaches of this Agreement shall 
not be construed as implying that other breaches of this Agreement are not material. 
 

7.26 Taxes 
External Submitter shall be responsible for paying any taxes incurred by External 
Submitter in the performance of this Agreement. 
 

7.27 Title to Property 
Title to all property, including, without limitation, ESS Property, furnished by ESS to 
External Submitter to facilitate the performance of this Agreement shall remain the sole 
property of ESS.  All such property shall only be used by External Submitter for purposes 
of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement and shall be returned to ESS upon the 
earliest of completion, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement or at the request of 
ESS. 
 

7.28 Exclusivity 
This Agreement is not exclusive.  During the term of this Agreement, ESS may make 
similar arrangements with other External Submitters or establish integration agreements 
with other entities. 
 

7.29 Attorney’s Fees and Expenses 
Subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, in the event External 
Submitter defaults in any obligations under this Agreement, External Submitter shall pay 
to ESS all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonable attorney fees 
of counsel retained by ESS) incurred by ESS in enforcing this Agreement or otherwise 
reasonably related thereto.   
 
Subject to the other terms and conditions of the Agreement, in the event ESS defaults in 
any obligations under this Agreement, ESS shall pay to the External Submitter all costs 
and expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonable attorney fees of counsel 
retained by the External Submitter) incurred by the External Submitter in enforcing this 
Agreement or otherwise reasonably related thereto. 
 

7.30 Interpretation 
This Agreement will be deemed to have been prepared jointly.  "Including" means 
“including without limitation.” 
  

94



 20

Section 8.  Signatures 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties have entered into the above Agreement and 
have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement.   
 
By:  __________________________ 
Travis Case 
President 
Iowa County Recorders Association 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA  50131 
 
 
By:  _______________________ 
Mark Rosser 
Vice President 
Corporation Service Company (CSC) 
251 Little Falls Drive 
Wilmington, DE 19808 

95



 21

Exhibit A: Coordinated Services 

Activities of External Submitter 

External Submitter agrees to perform the following activities and functions. 
1. Integrate with ESS to enable External Submitter to submit documents for 

recording in all ESS Counties.  External Submitter shall conform to the ESS API 
and associated business rules established by ESS. 

2. Provide primary training and technical support services to External Submitter 
employees or contractors who will facilitate or oversee the submission of 
documents for recording in participating Counties. It is the responsibility of the 
External Submitter to ensure that employees and contractors understand the 
operation of the ESS API, the E-Submission service, and Electronic Services 
System Policies and Procedures. 

3. When developing modifications to the External Submitter’s integration with the 
ESS API and E-Submission service, External Submitter shall coordinate with ESS 
and provide information about the planned product/system road map. External 
Submitter shall provide ESS with advanced notice of any planned testing, 
including appropriate test files. Application testing shall be performed to ensure 
that each function works properly prior to moving it into production.  Test Files 
will contain the required submission elements via a web service request which 
will include a required xml file and an accompanying Embedded File (TIFF). 
Modifications to the External Submitter’s integration with the ESS API and E-
Submission service shall not be implemented in the ESS production environment 
without the prior approval of ESS. 

4. Provide to ESS a technical support contact for any development or technical 
activity, and an Account Manager point of contact for any business issues. 

5. Establish a payment account and fund it adequately to ensure resources are 
available to pay for all recording and service fees. 

6. Monitor system messages, including error messages, decline type messages, or 
other edit codes returned by ESS to External Submitter systems. System messages 
shall be evaluated to determine whether changes need to be made to the External 
Submitter’s integration with the ESS API, or to determine whether supplemental 
training is required by the External Submitter for customers or other Third Party 
organizations served by the External Submitter. 

7. If the External Submitter engages in the submission of documents for recording 
on behalf of its customers or other Third Party organizations, then the External 
Submitter shall perform the following activities and functions. 

a. Provide training and technical support services to External Submitter 
customers who submit documents for recording. Training for customers 
shall include all requirements for recording, including common issues 

96



 22

which may result in the rejection of a document(s) by Iowa County 
Recorders. 

b. Provide primary customer support services to External Submitter 
customers.  External Submitter will be responsible for the relationship 
with all External Submitter customers. 

c. Provide notice to External Submitter customers about the published ESS 
Terms of Use and Privacy Policies. 

Activities of ESS 

ESS agrees to perform the following activities and functions. 
1. Provide system documentation, record formats, sample reports and other data 

needed by the External Submitter to develop and maintain the integration with the 
ESS API and requirements. 

2. Provide a test environment and the technical support needed to assist with testing 
each aspect of the application. When notified in advance, ESS will provide 
technical assistance with testing activities and provide a point of contact to handle 
questions and issues. ESS will acknowledge receipt of questions or issues 
received from the External Submitter within 1 business day, via email. The 
expectation is that ESS will respond to questions and issues in a reasonable and 
timely fashion, via email or other appropriate communication channel. All 
questions or technical support requests shall be directed to the following email 
address: support@clris.com. 

3. Provide for both a batch method and a browser user interface method for the 
electronic submission of documents. 

4. Provide access to External Submitter files containing images of filed documents 
along with the corresponding data. Images will be presented in TIFF format. 
Document images access through the Iowa Land Records website at 
iowalandrecords.org will be presented in PDF format. 

5. Provide a help desk, contact names and phone numbers, and hours of service 
along with an escalation policy should issues not be timely resolved. Whenever 
practicable, ESS shall strive to resolve any ESS system issue within 24 hours – or 
one business day. If any issue is not resolved within this time frame, the issue 
shall be escalated to the ESS Project Manager. 

6. Provide access to methods of payment to be used by the External Submitter to pay 
for all Recording Fees and Service Fees.  ESS will transfer all ESS County 
Recording Fees to the appropriate ESS Counties. 

7. Provide access to reports enabling the External Submitter to reconcile payments 
with recorded documents. 

8. Notify External Submitter in advance of any scheduled maintenance activities and 
notify External Submitter of any unscheduled ESS system outages, or any service 
interruption at an ESS County. 

97



 23

9. Establish and adopt Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures in order 
to facilitate consistent and timely service in all ESS Counties. 

 

Collaborative Activities of External Submitter and ESS 

1. If the External Submitter engages in the delivery of commercial electronic 
recording services on behalf of its customers or other Third Party organizations, 
then External Submitter and ESS shall perform the following activities and 
functions. 

a. Post information to inform prospective Submitters about the option of 
accessing E-Submission through the services of the External Submitter. 

b. Promote E-Submission and Electronic Recording through publications, 
user group meetings, and other activities. 

c. Periodically present training, educational and promotional meetings such 
as workshops, seminars or other events to promote effective electronic 
recording. When appropriate, such training my be jointly presented. 

2. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to ensure that documents are 
successfully recorded and that proper payment is made. 

3. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to ensure compliance with 
the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures. 

4. External Submitter and ESS may continue without limitation the offering of any 
interface for electronic submission and electronic recording, and may continue 
without limitation to inform submitters and prospective submitters about such 
interface.  External Submitter and ESS may without limitation develop or enhance 
an interface for electronic submission and electronic recording. 

5. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore the application of 
current standards for the management and exchange of property information 
including standards adopted by the Mortgage Industry Standards Maintenance 
Organization (MISMO) 

6. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore methods for 
processing documents which are declined or rejected documents within the same 
package or group which was originally submitted. 

7. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore methods for 
facilitating more efficient and effective communications between ESS Counties 
and the External Submitter’s customers who prepare and submit documents for 
recording. 

  

98



 
  

Integration Agreement 
 
 
 
 

 
 

And 
 

Electronic Services System 
 

(County Land Record 
Information System) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

June 1, 2019 
 

99



 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Section 1.  Preamble ........................................................................................................... 4 
Section 2.  General Provisions ............................................................................................ 5 

2.1 Definition of Terms................................................................................................... 5 
2.2 External Submitter Authorized Provider .................................................................. 7 
2.3 Term .......................................................................................................................... 7 
2.4 Policies and Fees ....................................................................................................... 7 

Terms of Use and Privacy Policies ............................................................................. 7 
Recording Fees ............................................................................................................ 7 
Service Fees ................................................................................................................ 7 

2.5 Project Management ................................................................................................. 8 
Account Managers ...................................................................................................... 8 
Project Planning .......................................................................................................... 8 
Periodic Meetings ....................................................................................................... 8 
Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition ...................................................................... 8 

2.6 Systems Integration ................................................................................................... 8 
Project Architecture .................................................................................................... 8 
County Interface .......................................................................................................... 9 
Software Changes and Support ................................................................................... 9 
Responsibility for Costs and Expenses ....................................................................... 9 
Product/System Roadmap ........................................................................................... 9 

Section 3.  Customer Support ............................................................................................. 9 
3.1 Technical Support and Development. ....................................................................... 9 
3.2 Service Level Agreement. ......................................................................................... 9 
3.3 Service Disruption and Recovery. .......................................................................... 10 
3.4 Incident Response and Escalation. .......................................................................... 10 

Section 4.  Reserved .......................................................................................................... 10 
Section 5.  Proprietary Rights ........................................................................................... 10 
Section 6.  Confidential Information ................................................................................ 10 

6.1 Nondisclosure and Nonuse ..................................................................................... 11 
Section 7.  Contract Administration.................................................................................. 11 

7.1 Limitation of Liability............................................................................................. 11 
7.2 Default and Termination ......................................................................................... 12 

Termination for Cause .............................................................................................. 12 
Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law ............................................. 12 
Remedies of External Submitter ............................................................................... 13 
External Submitter’s Termination Duties ................................................................. 13 

7.3 No Warranty ............................................................................................................ 13 
7.4 Compliance with the Law and Regulations ............................................................ 14 
7.5 Amendments ........................................................................................................... 14 
7.6 Third Party Beneficiaries ........................................................................................ 14 
7.7 Choice of Law and Forum ...................................................................................... 14 
7.8 Assignment and Delegation .................................................................................... 14 

100



 3

7.9 Entire Agreement .................................................................................................... 15 
7.10 Obligation Beyond Agreement Term .................................................................... 15 
7.11 Waiver ................................................................................................................... 15 
7.12 Notices .................................................................................................................. 15 
7.13 Cumulative Rights ................................................................................................ 16 
7.14 Severability ........................................................................................................... 17 
7.15 Authorization ........................................................................................................ 17 
7.16 Successors in Interest ............................................................................................ 17 
7.17 Records Retention and Access .............................................................................. 17 
7.18 Headings or Captions ............................................................................................ 17 
7.19 Multiple Counterparts ........................................................................................... 17 
7.20 Not a Joint Venture ............................................................................................... 17 
7.21 Additional Provisions............................................................................................ 18 
7.22 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments ................................................... 18 
7.23 Obligations of Joint Entities.................................................................................. 18 
7.24 Superior Power...................................................................................................... 18 
7.25 Material Breaches ................................................................................................. 19 
7.26 Taxes ..................................................................................................................... 19 
7.27 Title to Property .................................................................................................... 19 
7.28 Exclusivity ............................................................................................................ 19 
7.29 Attorney’s Fees and Expenses .............................................................................. 19 
7.30 Interpretation ......................................................................................................... 20 

Section 8.  Signatures ........................................................................................................ 21 
Exhibit A: Coordinated Services ...................................................................................... 22 

Activities of External Submitter ................................................................................... 22 
Activities of ESS ........................................................................................................... 23 
Collaborative Activities of External Submitter and ESS .............................................. 24 

 

101



 4

This Integration Agreement is made as of June 1, 2019, by and between Simplifile LC, a 
Utah limited liability company with its principal place of business at 5072 North 300 
West, Provo, UT 84604 (“External Submitter”) and the Electronic Services System – 
DBA Iowa Land Records, 8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA 50131 (“ESS”). 
 

Section 1.  Preamble 
 
WHEREAS, External Submitter provides software, consulting, and support services to 
allow document preparers, submitters and recorders to scan, package, submit, receive, 
queue, review, cashier, stamp, retrieve, print, forward and return documents over the 
Internet for eRecording with County officials, sometimes in integration with various 
providers of electronic recording systems such as those provided by ESS; and  
 
WHEREAS, ESS provides software, equipment, hosting, consulting, and support services 
for an electronic land records portal for record search and retrieval and electronic 
recording, and ESS interfaces with the various land records management systems in use 
by Counties; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have made or may make future changes to their respective 
software so that documents which are rendered, scanned, packaged and submitted using 
the External Submitter’s software may be received and recorded electronically through 
ESS; and 
 
WHEREAS, External Submitter and ESS desire to jointly provide their respective 
services in order to allow the electronic submission and recordation of documents in each 
participating County; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms and conditions contained in 
this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, External Submitter and ESS hereby agree as follows: 
  

102



 5

Section 2.  General Provisions 
 

2.1 Definition of Terms 
 
Agreement means this Integration Agreement. 
 
API means application program interface, a set of routines, protocols, and tools for 
building software applications. 
 
Confidential Information means, subject to any applicable State and federal laws and 
regulations, including but not limited to Iowa Code Chapter 22, any confidential or 
proprietary information or trade secrets disclosed by either Party (a “disclosing Party”) to 
the other Party (a “receiving Party”) that, at the time of disclosure, is designated as 
confidential (or like designation), is disclosed in circumstances of confidence, or would 
be understood by the Parties, exercising reasonable business judgment, to be confidential.  
Confidential Information does not include any information that: 
 

1. Was rightfully in the possession of the receiving Party from a source other than 
the disclosing Party prior to the time of disclosure of the information by the 
disclosing Party to the receiving Party; 

2. Was known to the receiving Party prior to the disclosure of the information by the 
disclosing Party; 

3. Was disclosed to the receiving Party without restriction by an independent third 
Party having a legal right to disclose the information; 

4. Becomes public knowledge, other than through an act or failure to act of the 
disclosing Party; 

5. Is publicly available or in the public domain at or prior to the time such 
information was disclosed by the disclosing Party; 

6. Is independently developed by the receiving Party without any reliance on 
Confidential Information disclosed by the disclosing Party; or 

7. Is disclosed or required to be disclosed pursuant to law, subpoena or the order of a 
court or governmental agency or regulatory authority. 

 
Coordinated Services means the respective services of External Submitter and ESS 
delivered on a coordinated basis under this Agreement as specified in Exhibit A. 
 
County means any county in United States of America or other comparable region in 
North America. 
 
County Operating Hours means the hours of normal operation of the land records 
recording office of the applicable County during which documents are accepted for 
recording. 
 
e-Recording means the act or practice of electronically submitting and receiving land 
record documents for recording with a County. 

103



 6

 
Electronic Services System (ESS) means the 28E governmental organization established 
by Iowa counties to facilitate the electronic delivery of government services including e-
Recording. 
 
Electronic Services System API (ESS API) means any API created, owned and 
maintained by the Electronic Services System. 
 
Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures means the official policies and 
procedures adopted by the ESS Coordinating Committee and the Executive Board of the 
Iowa County Recorders Association. As provided in Section 331.604 of the Code of 
Iowa, Subsection 3a, each county shall comply with the policies and procedures 
established by the governing boards. 
 
ESS County means any County in which ESS provides land records management 
services. 
 
External Submitter means Simplifile LC, a Utah limited liability company. 
 
Local Land Records Management System means the land records management system 
utilized by an ESS County to manage the recording process and to archive recorded 
documents. 
 
Party means the External Submitter and ESS individually. 
 
Parties means the External Submitter and ESS collectively. 
 
Privacy Policy means the ESS policy that discloses some or all of the ways ESS gathers, 
uses, discloses, and manages a customer or client's data. 
 
Recording Fee means the fee paid by the External Submitter to ESS for the recording of 
a document by an ESS County. 
 
Service Fee means the fee paid by the External Submitter to ESS for access to the ESS 
API, and for and the permission to transmit and receive information through the ESS 
system. 
 
Submitters means the submitters of documents to Counties for e-Recording using the 
Coordinated Services, including but not limited to submission service providers, title 
companies, banks, attorneys, abstractors, and lien filers. 
 
Terms of Use means the Terms of Use published by ESS concerning access to and 
utilization of the ESS E-Submission service (e-Recording). 
 

104



 7

Third Party means a person or entity including, but not limited to any form of business 
organization, such as a corporation, partnership, limited liability corporation, association, 
etc., other than ESS or the External Submitter. 
 

2.2 External Submitter Authorized Provider 
ESS will collaborate with External Submitter as a non-exclusive authorized provider of 
the e-Recording submission services contemplated hereby.  The Coordinated Services 
developed pursuant to the work as specified in Exhibit A - will be made available in all 
ESS Counties that participate in the ESS E-Submission service (e-Recording). 
 

2.3 Term 
The term of this Agreement is for one year.  The initial term of the contract is from June 
1, 2019 through June 30, 2020.  The term of this Agreement shall be automatically 
extended for subsequent one-year periods unless the External Submitter or ESS is 
provided with a notice of intent by the other party to not extend the Agreement. Such 
notice shall be provided no less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of each one-
year term. 
 

2.4 Policies and Fees 

Terms of Use and Privacy Policies 
External Submitter shall abide by the published ESS Terms of Use and Privacy Policies, 
and any subsequent amendments thereto. 
 

Recording Fees 
External Submitter shall ensure payment of all applicable recording fees required by a 
County.  

Service Fees 
External Submitter shall ensure payment of all applicable ESS Service Fees required for 
connection with the API and for the processing of all recording transactions, and 
distributions to each County. 
 
The Service Fee shall be the amount specified in the Electronic Services System Policies 
and Procedures.  ESS shall provide notice to the External Submitter of any change in the 
Service Fee, and such notice shall not be less than ninety (90) calendar days prior to the 
expiration of each one-year term. 
 
External Submitter shall require that each customer enabled to submit documents through 
the Coordinated Services make payment for all applicable Recording Fees and Service 

105



 8

Fees as specified in this section. External Submitter shall make no waiver to any 
customer of any Recording Fee or Service Fee. 
 
 

2.5 Project Management 
 

Account Managers 
The Parties will each assign account managers to coordinate and administer the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and to serve as primary points of contact for 
communications related to the Coordinated Services. 
 

Project Planning 
The Parties will establish appropriate project plans for the planning and execution of the 
Coordinated Services specified in Exhibit A. 
 

Periodic Meetings 
The Parties may convene periodic telephonic or web conference meetings (or meetings in 
person if the Parties agree) to review any issues or topics which may affect the operation 
of the Coordinated Services. 
 

Non-Solicitation and Non-Competition 
During the term of this Agreement and for a period of two years thereafter, each of the 
Parties will not encourage or solicit any employee of the other Party to leave the 
employment of the other Party and will not hire any of the other Party’s employees. 
  

2.6 Systems Integration 
 

Project Architecture 
The External Submitter agrees to implement the published ESS API and to conform to 
published ESS business rules, policies, procedures and requirements and to 
collaboratively architect the integration required to maintain and improve an e-Recording 
document workflow from the External Submitter and submitters to ESS.  ESS will 
provide a technical description of the ESS API to External Submitter for its use in 
creating, updating and maintaining software to effectively submit documents for e-
Recording.  ESS will provide technical support and a functional test environment to assist 
External Submitter in its implementation of the ESS API. 

106



 9

County Interface 
ESS will provide the means to exchange information with the Local Land Records 
Management System in each ESS County through which the External Submitter may 
submit documents to be recorded on behalf of its customers. 
 

Software Changes and Support 
ESS will test any and all upgrades or revisions to its software to assure continuing 
operability with External Submitter’s electronic submission systems and will provide 
reasonable advance notice to External Submitter in order to allow for coordination prior 
to implementation of any upgrade or revision to the ESS API.  ESS will provide support 
as needed to External Submitter personnel to assure continuing operability of External 
Submitter’s electronic submission systems. 
 

Responsibility for Costs and Expenses 
Each Party will be responsible for any and all costs of developing, programming, 
marketing, promoting, and providing its respective portion of the Coordinated Services 
under this Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, neither Party will be 
responsible or liable for any costs or expenses of the other Party incurred in connection 
with this Agreement. 
 

Product/System Roadmap 
Each Party agrees to provide the other Party with a product/system road map that enables 
ESS and External Submitter to anticipate revisions to their respective software and to 
plan related integration updates. 

Section 3.  Customer Support 
 
The Parties will work together to support the implementation of the Coordinated 
Services. 
 

3.1 Technical Support and Development.   
The Parties agree to support each other’s technical support development efforts. The 
Parties will each provide the other with contact information of personnel or offices when 
technical, operational or development support and assistance is required. The information 
shall include appropriate support email addresses, telephone numbers, online support 
information and other appropriate contact information. 
 

3.2 Service Level Agreement.  
External Submitter and ESS each agree to use its best efforts to maintain its systems and 
services in full effective operation for each County during 99.9% of the respective 

107



 10

County Operating Hours, except for downtimes mutually agreed upon by ESS, County 
and External Submitter and downtimes arising from any Internet downtime or outages or 
from causes beyond the control of the Parties.  ESS will use its best efforts to obtain 
agreement from the LRMS Vendors to provide the same level of service described in this 
section in each of their customer counties.  External Submitter and ESS will each make 
every effort to schedule system downtime outside of County Operating Hours; however, 
in the event either Party is required to schedule downtime during County Operating 
Hours, the Party will collaborate with the ESS Counties and with the other Party to notify 
administrators, users and system technicians for work planning purposes. 
 

3.3 Service Disruption and Recovery.   
The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to immediately identify and 
work to resolve disruptions to the Coordinated Services. 
 

3.4 Incident Response and Escalation.   
The Parties agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to respond immediately to 
technical support incidents initiated by the other Party or by the ESS County.  The Parties 
further agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to address any interruption to 
service. 

Section 4.  Reserved 
 
 

Section 5.  Proprietary Rights 
 
The Parties will each retain ownership of their respective software and systems. The 
software created by ESS to receive documents electronically from External Submitter 
pursuant to this Integration Agreement will remain the property of ESS. The software 
created or licensed by the External Submitter pursuant to this Integration Agreement to 
gather and submit documents electronically, and to make submissions for receipt through 
the ESS API will remain under the control of the External Submitter. Any software 
developed by either Party to effectuate the interface jointly designed by the Parties 
pursuant to this Agreement shall belong to the Party who developed the software. 
 

Section 6.  Confidential Information 
Each Party may have access to certain Confidential Information of the other Party, and 
the Parties desire to restrict the further disclosure and use of such information. 
 

108



 11

6.1 Nondisclosure and Nonuse 
Recipient will hold the Confidential Information in strict confidence and will not directly 
or indirectly use the Confidential Information or disclose the Confidential Information to 
any third Party except in compliance with this Agreement.  Recipient will not disclose 
Confidential Information to any person or entity other than its officers and employees 
with a “need to know” (and who must be directly involved and need access to the 
Confidential Information) in connection with this Agreement and who are (i) bound by a 
duty of confidentiality with respect to the Confidential Information under terms and 
conditions no less restrictive than those contained herein, and (ii) instructed and agree not 
to disclose the Confidential Information and not to use the Confidential Information for 
any purpose, except as set forth herein.  Recipient will maintain reasonable procedures to 
prevent the accidental or unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information and 
will exert at least the same degree of care as it uses to protect its own confidential or 
proprietary information.  Recipient will immediately notify the other Party in the event of 
any unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information.  Any reproduction of 
Confidential Information will contain any and all confidential or proprietary notices or 
legends which appear on the original.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Recipient 
will promptly return to the other Party all documents or other tangible materials 
containing Confidential Information and all copies thereof. 
 

Section 7.  Contract Administration  
 

7.1 Limitation of Liability  
In no event shall either Party (including their respective officers, employees, 
shareholders, members, contractors, agents and representatives) be liable to the other 
Party for indirect, special, incidental or consequential damages, even if advised of the 
possibility of such damages. 
 
Each Party, their successors and assigns (the “ indemnifying Party”) agree to indemnify 
and hold harmless the other Party, its  employees, officers, agents, representatives, 
contractors, officers, shareholders, members board members and officials (the 
“indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims or demands for liability, loss, damage, 
costs, expenses, or attorney’s fees of any kind for actions or omissions of the 
Indemnifying Party arising out of or in connection with any undertaking arising out of or 
otherwise related to this Agreement. 
 
In no event shall the cumulative maximum liability of either party under this Agreement 
exceed $100,000 for the Term of this Agreement. 
 
 This Section 7.1 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 
 

109



 12

7.2 Default and Termination 

Termination for Cause 
The External Submitter and ESS may terminate this Agreement upon written notice for 
the breach by either Party for any material term, condition or provision of this 
Agreement, if such breach is not cured within the time period specified in the notice of 
breach or any subsequent notice or correspondence delivered by ESS to External 
Submitter. All notices require less than a 5-day response. 
 
In addition, ESS or External Submitter may terminate this Agreement effective with a 30-
day notice and without penalty for any of the following reasons: 
 

1. External Submitter or ESS furnished any statement, representation, warranty or 
certification in connection with this Agreement that is false, deceptive, or 
materially incorrect or incomplete; or 

2. External Submitter or ESS becomes subject to any bankruptcy or insolvency 
proceeding under federal or state law to the extent allowed by applicable federal 
or state law including bankruptcy laws; or 

3. External Submitter or ESS terminates or suspends its business; or 
4. External Submitter or ESS has engaged in conduct that has or may expose ESS or 

the External Submitter to liability, as determined in sole discretion of ESS or 
External Submitter. 

 
If cure is feasible and an opportunity to cure is provided, the notice shall specify the exact 
date by which the condition must be cured.  Following expiration of the opportunity to 
cure or notice from ESS or External Submitter, ESS or External Submitter may seek any 
available contractual, legal or equitable remedy. 

Termination Due to Lack of Funds or Change in Law 
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and subject to the 
limitations, conditions, and procedures set forth below, ESS shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement without penalty and without any advance notice as a result of 
any of the following: 
 

1. The legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of ESS to appropriate funds 
sufficient to allow ESS to either meet its obligations under this Agreement or to 
operate as required and to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement; or 

2. If funds are de-appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, 
or if any funds or revenues needed by ESS to make any payment hereunder, in the 
sole discretion of ESS are insufficient or unavailable for any other reason; or 

3. If ESS authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations 
related to the subject matter of this Agreement is withdrawn or materially altered 
or modified; or 

4. If ESS duties or programs are substantially modified or materially altered; or  
5. If there is a decision of any court or an arbitration panel or any law, rule, 

regulation or order is enacted, promulgated or issued that materially or adversely 

110



 13

affects:  ESS ability to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement or the 
operation of the ESS portal or E-Submission service. 

 
ESS shall provide External Submitter with written notice of termination pursuant to this 
section. 
 

Remedies of External Submitter  
(In the Event of Termination by ESS) 
In the event of termination of this Agreement for any reason by ESS, ESS shall pay only 
those amounts, if any, due and owing to External Submitter for services actually rendered 
up to and including the date of termination of the Agreement and for which ESS is 
obligated to pay pursuant to this Agreement.  Payment will be made only upon 
submission of invoices and proper proof of External Submitter’s claim.  This provision in 
no way limits the remedies available to ESS in the event of the termination of this 
Agreement.  In no event shall ESS be liable for any expenses, costs, fees, judgments, 
damages, awards, charges, or any other amounts, including, but not limited to the 
following: 
 

1. The payment of unemployment compensation to External Submitter’s employees; 
2. The payment of workers’ compensation claims, which occur during the 

Agreement or extend beyond the date on which the Agreement terminates; 
3. Any damages or other amounts, including amounts associated with the loss of 

prospective profits, anticipated sales, goodwill, or for expenditures, investments 
or commitments made in connection with this Agreement ; 

4. Any taxes External Submitter may owe that in connection with the performance 
of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, sales taxes, excise taxes, use 
taxes, income taxes or property taxes. 

External Submitter’s Termination Duties 
External Submitter, upon receipt of notice of termination for cause or convenience, shall: 
 

1. Immediately cease using and return to ESS any property including, without 
limitation materials, whether tangible or intangible, provided by ESS to External 
Submitter.   

2. Cooperate in good faith with ESS and its employees, agents and contractors 
during the transition period between the notification of termination and the 
completion of any pending transactions or e-recording activities. 

3. Make any payments due to ESS for any pending transactions or e-recording 
activities. 

7.3 No Warranty  
Except as set forth in Section 3.2, the Parties do not warrant that the operation of e-
Recording will be uninterrupted, secure or error-free. THE PARTIES MAKE NO 
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED (EITHER IN 
FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW) WITH RESPECT TO e-RECORDING 

111



 14

CAPABILITIES, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OR CONDITIONS OF 
MERCHANTABILITY, NONINFRINGEMENT OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE. 

7.4 Compliance with the Law and Regulations 
External Submitter and its employees, agents, officers, directors, approved contractors 
and subcontractors shall comply with all applicable federal, state, foreign, and local laws, 
rules, ordinances, codes, regulations and orders when performing within the scope of this 
Agreement.  External Submitter shall make the provisions of this section a part of its 
contracts with any approved subcontractors providing goods or services related to 
External Submitter’s performance of this Agreement. 
 
ESS may consider the failure of External Submitter to comply with any law or regulation 
as a material breach of this Agreement. 
 

7.5 Amendments 
This Agreement may be amended in writing from time to time by mutual consent of the 
Parties.  Both Parties must execute all amendments to this Agreement. 
 

7.6 Third Party Beneficiaries 
There are no Third Party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  This Agreement is intended 
only to benefit ESS and the External Submitter. 
 

7.7 Choice of Law and Forum 
The laws of the State of Iowa shall govern and determine all matters arising out of or in 
connection with this Agreement. 
 
Any and all litigation or actions commenced in connection with this Agreement, 
including after expiration or termination of this Agreement, shall be brought in Des 
Moines, Iowa, in Polk County District Court for the State of Iowa, if jurisdiction is 
proper.  However, if jurisdiction is not proper in the Iowa District Court, Polk County, 
but is proper only in a United State’s District Court, the matter shall be commenced in the 
United State’s District Court for the Southern District of Iowa.   
 
This provision shall not be construed as waiving any immunity to suit or liability, in state 
or federal court, which may be available to ESS. 
 

7.8 Assignment and Delegation 
This Agreement may not be assigned, transferred or conveyed in whole or in part without 
the prior written consent of the other Party.  For purposes of construing this clause, a 
transfer of a controlling interest in External Submitter, a merger, sale or consolidation of 

112



 15

External Submitter, or a sale of substantially all of External Submitter’s assets shall be 
considered an assignment.  External Submitter agrees that it shall provide ESS with the 
earliest possible advance notice of any proposed sale or transfer or any controlling 
interest in or substantial assets of External Submitter and of any proposed merger, sale or 
consolidation of External Submitter.  External Submitter agrees that it shall not use this 
Agreement, or any portion thereof, for collateral or to otherwise secure any financial 
obligation of External Submitter or any affiliate thereof without the prior written consent 
of ESS.   
 

7.9 Entire Agreement 
This Agreement represents the entire Agreement between the Parties concerning the 
subject matter hereof, and neither Party is relying on any representation that may have 
been made which is not included in this Agreement.  External Submitter acknowledges 
that it has thoroughly read this Agreement and all related schedules, exhibits, and other 
documents and has had the opportunity to receive competent advice and counsel 
necessary for it to form a complete understanding of all rights and obligations herein and 
to accept same freely and without coercion of any kind. 
 

7.10 Obligation Beyond Agreement Term 
This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the end of the specified term or 
until terminated or canceled pursuant to this Agreement.  The obligations of the Parties 
under this Agreement which by their nature would continue beyond the termination of 
this Agreement, including, by way of illustration and not by limitation, those obligations 
set forth in Sections 5, 6, 7.1, 7.2, 7.4, 7.7, 7.10, and 7.17 shall survive termination of this 
Agreement.  
 

7.11 Waiver 
Except as specifically provided for in a waiver signed by duly authorized representatives 
of ESS and External Submitter, failure by either Party at any time to require performance 
by the other Party or to claim a breach of any provision of the Agreement shall not be 
construed as affecting any subsequent breach or the right to require performance with 
respect thereto or to claim a breach with respect thereto.  No term or condition of this 
Agreement shall be held to be waived, modified, or deleted except by an instrument, in 
writing, signed by the Parties hereto. 
 

7.12 Notices 
Notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered to the Account Manager 
of the Party to receive notice (identified below) at the address of the Party to receive 
notice as it appears below or as otherwise provided for by proper notice here under.  The 
effective date for any notice under this Agreement shall be the date of delivery of such 
notice (not the date of mailing) which may be effected by a certified U.S. Mail return 

113



 16

receipt requested with postage prepaid thereon or by recognized overnight delivery 
service, such as Federal Express or UPS: 
 
 
If to ESS: 
 
Phil Dunshee 
Project Manager 
ESS 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, Iowa  50131 
515.491.8939 
phil@clris.com 
 
 
If to External Submitter: 
 
Steve McDonald 
National Accounts Director 
Simplifile, LC 
5072 North 300 West 
Provo, UT 84604  
470.955.8955 cell  
801.223.1069 direct 
smcdonald@simplifile.com 
 
Any notice or communication sent by U.S. Mail under this Agreement shall be deemed 
given upon receipt as evidenced by the U.S. Postal Service return receipt card, or if sent 
by overnight delivery service, upon receipt as evidenced by the signature attained by the 
carrier. 
 
From time to time, the Parties may change the name and address of a Party designated to 
receive notice.  Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the other 
Party and as provided herein. 
 

7.13 Cumulative Rights 
The various rights, powers, options, elections and remedies of ESS provided in this 
Agreement shall be construed as cumulative and no one of them is exclusive of the others 
or exclusive of any rights, remedies or priorities allowed ESS by law, and shall in no way 
affect or impair the right of ESS to pursue any other contractual, equitable or legal 
remedy to which ESS may be entitled as long as any default remains in any way not 
remedied, unsatisfied, or unresolved.  The election by ESS of any one or more remedies 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to pursue other available remedies. 
 

114



 17

7.14 Severability 
If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other part or provision of this Agreement. 
 

7.15 Authorization 
External Submitter represents and warrants that it has the right, power and authority to 
enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement and that it has taken all 
requisite action (corporate, statutory, or otherwise) to approve execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement, and this Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding 
obligation of External Submitter, enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

7.16 Successors in Interest 
All the terms, provisions, and conditions of the Agreement shall be binding upon and 
inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives. 
 

7.17 Records Retention and Access 
External Submitter shall maintain books, records, and documents which sufficiently and 
properly document and calculate all transactions throughout the term of this Agreement 
for a period of at least three (3) years following the date of the transactions.  External 
Submitter shall not impose a charge or seek payment for any fee, charge, or expense 
associated with any audit or examination of External Submitter’s books and records.  
External Submitter shall require its subcontractors to agree to the same provisions of this 
section. 
 

7.18 Headings or Captions 
The section headings or captions are for identification purposes only and do not limit or 
construe the contents of the sections.  
 

7.19 Multiple Counterparts 
This agreement shall be executed in two or more counterparts, any one of which shall be 
an original without reference to the others. 
 

7.20 Not a Joint Venture 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or constituting the relationship 
of the partnership, joint venture, (or other association of any kind or agent/principal 
relationship) between the Parties hereto.  Each Party shall be deemed an independent 
contractor contracting for services and acting toward the mutual benefits expected to be 

115



 18

derived from the Agreement.  No Party, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein, 
has the authority to enter into any agreement or create an obligation or liability on behalf 
of, in the name of, or binding upon, another Party to this Agreement. 
 

7.21 Additional Provisions 
The Parties agree that if an Addendum, Rider, Schedule, Appendix or Exhibit is attached 
hereto by the Parties, and referred to herein, then the same shall be deemed incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 

7.22 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments 
The Parties agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or 
cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such 
further instruments as may reasonably be required for carrying out the expressed 
intention of this Agreement. 
 

7.23 Obligations of Joint Entities 
If External Submitter is a joint entity, consisting of more than one individual, partnership, 
corporation or other business organization, all such entities shall be jointly and severally 
liable for carrying out the activities and obligations of this agreement, and for any default 
of such activities and obligations. 
 

7.24 Superior Power 
Neither External Submitter nor ESS shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure of 
performance of this Agreement, and no delay or failure of performance shall constitute a 
default or give rise to any liability for damages if, and only to the extent that, such delay 
or failure is caused by a "superior power" and not as a result of the fault or negligence of 
a Party.   
 
As used in this Agreement, "superior power" includes acts of God, war, civil disturbance 
and any other causes which are beyond the control and anticipation of the Party affected 
and which, by the exercise of reasonable diligence, the Party was unable to anticipate or 
prevent.  Failure to perform by a subcontractor or an agent of External Submitter shall not 
be considered a "superior power" unless the subcontractor or supplier is prevented from 
timely performance by a "superior power" as defined in this Agreement.  "Superior 
power" does not include financial difficulties of External Submitter or any parent, 
subsidiary, affiliated or associated company of External Submitter or claims or court 
orders that restrict External Submitter’s ability to deliver the goods or services 
contemplated by this Agreement. 
 
If a "superior power" delays or prevents External Submitter's performance, External 
Submitter shall immediately commence to use its best efforts to directly provide 

116



 19

alternate, and to the extent possible, comparable performance.  Comparability of 
performance and the possibility of comparable performance shall be reasonably 
determined solely by ESS.   
 

7.25 Material Breaches 
The references in this Agreement to specific material breaches of this Agreement shall 
not be construed as implying that other breaches of this Agreement are not material. 
 

7.26 Taxes 
External Submitter shall be responsible for paying any taxes incurred by External 
Submitter in the performance of this Agreement. 
 

7.27 Title to Property 
Title to all property, including, without limitation, ESS Property, furnished by ESS to 
External Submitter to facilitate the performance of this Agreement shall remain the sole 
property of ESS.  All such property shall only be used by External Submitter for purposes 
of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement and shall be returned to ESS upon the 
earliest of completion, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement or at the request of 
ESS. 
 

7.28 Exclusivity 
This Agreement is not exclusive.  During the term of this Agreement, ESS may make 
similar arrangements with other External Submitters or establish integration agreements 
with other entities. 
 

7.29 Attorney’s Fees and Expenses 
Subject to the other terms and conditions of this Agreement, in the event External 
Submitter defaults in any obligations under this Agreement, External Submitter shall pay 
to ESS all costs and expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonable attorney fees 
of counsel retained by ESS) incurred by ESS in enforcing this Agreement or otherwise 
reasonably related thereto.   
 
Subject to the other terms and conditions of the Agreement, in the event ESS defaults in 
any obligations under this Agreement, ESS shall pay to the External Submitter all costs 
and expenses (including, without limitation, the reasonable attorney fees of counsel 
retained by the External Submitter) incurred by the External Submitter in enforcing this 
Agreement or otherwise reasonably related thereto. 
 

117



 20

7.30 Interpretation 
This Agreement will be deemed to have been prepared jointly.  "Including" means 
“including without limitation.” 
  

118



 21

Section 8.  Signatures 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and 
for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties have entered into the above Agreement and 
have caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement.   
 
By:  __________________________ 
Travis Case 
President 
Iowa County Recorders Association 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA  50131 
 
 
By:  _______________________ 
Vicki DiPasquale 
Vice President of Sales 
Simplifile, LC 
5072 North 300 West 
Provo, UT 84604 
801.373.0151 

119



 22

Exhibit A: Coordinated Services 

Activities of External Submitter 

External Submitter agrees to perform the following activities and functions. 
1. Integrate with ESS to enable External Submitter to submit documents for 

recording in all ESS Counties.  External Submitter shall conform to the ESS API 
and associated business rules established by ESS. 

2. Provide primary training and technical support services to External Submitter 
employees or contractors who will facilitate or oversee the submission of 
documents for recording in participating Counties. It is the responsibility of the 
External Submitter to ensure that employees and contractors understand the 
operation of the ESS API, the E-Submission service, and Electronic Services 
System Policies and Procedures. 

3. When developing modifications to the External Submitter’s integration with the 
ESS API and E-Submission service, External Submitter shall coordinate with ESS 
and provide information about the planned product/system road map. External 
Submitter shall provide ESS with advanced notice of any planned testing, 
including appropriate test files. Application testing shall be performed to ensure 
that each function works properly prior to moving it into production.  Test Files 
will contain the required submission elements via a web service request which 
will include a required xml file and an accompanying Embedded File (TIFF). 
Modifications to the External Submitter’s integration with the ESS API and E-
Submission service shall not be implemented in the ESS production environment 
without the prior approval of ESS. 

4. Provide to ESS a technical support contact for any development or technical 
activity, and an Account Manager point of contact for any business issues. 

5. Establish a payment account and fund it adequately to ensure resources are 
available to pay for all recording and service fees. 

6. Monitor system messages, including error messages, decline type messages, or 
other edit codes returned by ESS to External Submitter systems. System messages 
shall be evaluated to determine whether changes need to be made to the External 
Submitter’s integration with the ESS API, or to determine whether supplemental 
training is required by the External Submitter for customers or other Third Party 
organizations served by the External Submitter. 

7. If the External Submitter engages in the submission of documents for recording 
on behalf of its customers or other Third Party organizations, then the External 
Submitter shall perform the following activities and functions. 

a. Provide training and technical support services to External Submitter 
customers who submit documents for recording. Training for customers 
shall include all requirements for recording, including common issues 

120



 23

which may result in the rejection of a document(s) by Iowa County 
Recorders. 

b. Provide primary customer support services to External Submitter 
customers.  External Submitter will be responsible for the relationship 
with all External Submitter customers. 

c. Provide notice to External Submitter customers about the published ESS 
Terms of Use and Privacy Policies. 

Activities of ESS 

ESS agrees to perform the following activities and functions. 
1. Provide system documentation, record formats, sample reports and other data 

needed by the External Submitter to develop and maintain the integration with the 
ESS API and requirements. 

2. Provide a test environment and the technical support needed to assist with testing 
each aspect of the application. When notified in advance, ESS will provide 
technical assistance with testing activities and provide a point of contact to handle 
questions and issues. ESS will acknowledge receipt of questions or issues 
received from the External Submitter within 1 business day, via email. The 
expectation is that ESS will respond to questions and issues in a reasonable and 
timely fashion, via email or other appropriate communication channel. All 
questions or technical support requests shall be directed to the following email 
address: support@clris.com. 

3. Provide for both a batch method and a browser user interface method for the 
electronic submission of documents. 

4. Provide access to External Submitter files containing images of filed documents 
along with the corresponding data. Images will be presented in TIFF format. 
Document images access through the Iowa Land Records website at 
iowalandrecords.org will be presented in PDF format. 

5. Provide a help desk, contact names and phone numbers, and hours of service 
along with an escalation policy should issues not be timely resolved. Whenever 
practicable, ESS shall strive to resolve any ESS system issue within 24 hours – or 
one business day. If any issue is not resolved within this time frame, the issue 
shall be escalated to the ESS Project Manager. 

6. Provide access to methods of payment to be used by the External Submitter to pay 
for all Recording Fees and Service Fees.  ESS will transfer all ESS County 
Recording Fees to the appropriate ESS Counties. 

7. Provide access to reports enabling the External Submitter to reconcile payments 
with recorded documents. 

8. Notify External Submitter in advance of any scheduled maintenance activities, 
and notify External Submitter of any unscheduled ESS system outages, or any 
service interruption at an ESS County. 

121



 24

9. Establish and adopt Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures in order 
to facilitate consistent and timely service in all ESS Counties. 

 

Collaborative Activities of External Submitter and ESS 

1. If the External Submitter engages in the delivery of commercial electronic 
recording services on behalf of its customers or other Third Party organizations, 
then External Submitter and ESS shall perform the following activities and 
functions. 

a. Post information to inform prospective Submitters about the option of 
accessing E-Submission through the services of the External Submitter. 

b. Promote E-Submission and Electronic Recording through publications, 
user group meetings, and other activities. 

c. Periodically present training, educational and promotional meetings such 
as workshops, seminars or other events to promote effective electronic 
recording. When appropriate, such training my be jointly presented. 

2. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to ensure that documents are 
successfully recorded and that proper payment is made. 

3. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to ensure compliance with 
the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures. 

4. External Submitter and ESS may continue without limitation the offering of any 
interface for electronic submission and electronic recording, and may continue 
without limitation to inform submitters and prospective submitters about such 
interface.  External Submitter and ESS may without limitation develop or enhance 
an interface for electronic submission and electronic recording. 

5. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore the application of 
current standards for the management and exchange of property information 
including standards adopted by the Mortgage Industry Standards Maintenance 
Organization (MISMO) 

6. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore methods for 
processing documents which are declined or rejected documents within the same 
package or group which was originally submitted. 

7. External Submitter and ESS will work cooperatively to explore methods for 
facilitating more efficient and effective communications between ESS Counties 
and the External Submitter’s customers who prepare and submit documents for 
recording. 

  

122



 
                            ATTORNEYS & COUNSELORS at LAW 

  PAUL A. DREY 
ATTORNEY 

 
TELEPHONE: 515-271-1765 
FACSIMILE: 515-271-1766 

E-MAIL:  paul.drey@brickgentrylaw.com 

 
April 1, 2019 

VIA E-MAIL 
phil@clris.com 
 
Electronic Services System 
Phil Dunshee, PMP, MPA, Project Manager 
Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 
Johnston, IA 50131 
 
 Re: Representation of Electronic Services System (“ESS”) 
 
Dear Phil: 
 
 The purpose of this letter is to confirm the terms and conditions for our legal representation of ESS.  
The term of this arrangement will commence July 1, 2019 and run through June 30, 2020.  As a part of our 
representation over the past years, we have helped clarify the governing structure of ESS and its 
relationship to the Iowa County Recorders Association.  As a result, in the past, it is most appropriate that 
our attorney-client relationship be continue to be directly with ESS.  For that reason, we have drafted this 
letter to reflect the legal representation of the ESS by our firm. 
 
 Our fees will be invoiced pursuant to a retainer basis for general practice and issues representation 
in the amount of $1,000.00 per month.  Any expenses, disbursements, and client advances will not be 
included in this retainer, and will be billed separately.  This arrangement will be deemed effective July 1, 
2019 and run through June 30, 2020, at which time the parties will review this arrangement and make an 
amendment, if necessary.  Litigation, lobbying and intellectual property will be excluded from this 
arrangement.  Litigation, lobbying and intellectual property matters along with any large projects not 
contemplated herein would be provided for in a separate representation arrangement.   
 
 Enclosed with this letter is a statement entitled “General Provisions” setting forth additional terms 
and conditions, all of which are incorporated herein by reference and shall apply to our representation to 
the extent not expressly modified in this letter.   
 

If the foregoing correctly reflects your understanding of the terms and conditions of our 
representation, please indicate your acceptance by executing a copy of this letter in the space provided 
below and return it to our office.  We are pleased to have this opportunity to continue to represent 
Electronic Services System and thank you for this opportunity. 
 

Very truly yours, 

 
Paul A. Drey 

PAD:pm 

123

http://www.brickgentrylaw.com/
mailto:paul.drey@brickgentrylaw.com
mailto:phil@clris.com


ACCEPTANCE OF ENGAGEMENT TERMS 
 
 I, Phil Dunshee, on behalf of Electronic Services System, have read the foregoing engagement letter 
and general provisions of legal representation, and hereby agree to be jointly and severally bound by all terms 
outlined.  By signing this acceptance letter, I hereby agree to the terms of legal representation outlined in this 
engagement letter on this the ____ day of ___________________, 2019. 
 

ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 
 
 
        
By:  Phil Dunshee, Project Manager 

 

124



GENERAL PROVISIONS – LEGAL REPRESENTATION 
 

The following provisions will apply to the relationship between Brick Gentry P.C. and you, 
the client: 

 
1. Fees for services rendered will be based on the reasonable value of those services as 

determined in accordance with the American Bar Association and Iowa Rules of Professional 
Conduct.  Such fees will be based primarily on the agreed upon retainer amount.  Billing differs, 
depending generally on the attorney's experience and years of practice, and the firm adjusts these 
billings from time to time.  The time for which a client will be charged will include, but will not be 
limited to, telephone and office conferences with a client and counsel, consultants and others; 
conferences among our legal personnel; factual investigation; legal research; responding to clients' 
requests for us to provide information to their auditors in connection with reviews or audits of 
financial statements; drafting of letters and other documents; travel time; and time in a general 
advisory role.  In an effort to reduce legal fees, we use paralegal personnel and student law clerks.  
Time devoted by paralegals and law clerks to client matters included in the retainer amount.  Law 
clerk and paralegal billings are specifically listed on our statements.  Other factors may be taken into 
consideration in determining our fees, including the responsibility assumed, the novelty and 
difficulty of the legal problem involved, the benefit resulting to the client and any unforeseen 
circumstances arising in the course of our representation. 

 
2. In addition to our fees, we will be entitled to payment or reimbursement for costs and 

expenses incurred in performing services such as photocopying, messenger and delivery service, 
computerized research, travel (including mileage, parking, airfare, lodging, meals and ground 
transportation), long-distance telephone, telecopying, word processing, court costs and filing fees.  
Certain of such items may be charged at more than our direct cost to cover our overhead.  Unless 
special arrangements are made at the outset, fees and expenses of others will not be paid by us and 
will be the responsibility of, and billed directly to, the client. 

 
3. Although we may from time to time for a client's convenience furnish estimates of 

fees or costs that we anticipate will be incurred, these estimates are subject to unforeseen 
circumstances and are by their nature inexact. 

 
4. Fees and expenses will be billed monthly and are payable upon presentation.  We 

expect prompt payment.  We reserve the right to postpone or defer providing additional services or to 
discontinue our representation if billed amounts are not paid when due. 

 
5. A client shall have the right at any time to terminate our services and representation 

upon written notice to the firm.  Such termination shall not, however, relieve the client of the 
obligation to pay for all services rendered and costs or expenses paid or incurred on behalf of the 
client prior to the date of such termination. 

 
6. We reserve the right to withdraw from our representation if, among other things, the 

client fails to honor the terms of the engagement letter, the client fails to cooperate or follow our 
advice on a material matter, or any fact or circumstance that would, in our view, render our 
continuing representation unlawful or unethical.  If we elect to withdraw, the client will take all steps 

125



necessary to free us of any obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents 
necessary to complete our withdrawal, and we will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered and 
costs and expenses paid or incurred on behalf of the client to the date of withdrawal. 

 
7. We make no guarantee as to the outcome of the case.  Nothing in this agreement and 

no statement to you, the client, will be construed as a promise or guarantee about the outcome. 
 
8. If any claim or action is brought against us or any personnel of the firm and such 

claim arises from the client's negligence or misconduct, the client will hold us harmless and 
indemnify us for all damages incurred. 

126



Contract Terms and Conditions 
 

Amendment Number 1 

 

This first amendment to the Agreement for Payment Services (Agreement) made and effective as 
of June 1, 2019 by and between the Electronic Services System (ESS) and NCMIC Finance 
Corporation (doing business as Professional Solution Financial Services), a company 
organized under the laws of the State of Iowa (Service Provider).  The parties agree to amend the 
Agreement, as provided in Section 4.3 to remove references to PAYA and insert references to 
VeriCheck with respect to ACH processing, to clarify fees and work flow relating to ACH 
processing, and to incorporate elements relating to transaction Velocity. 
 
 
1.  Documents Incorporated.  Section 2 is amended to strike the reference to the PAYA ACH 
processor and to insert in lieu thereof a reference to a substitute Agreement with VeriCheck, an 
alternative ACH processor. 
 

Section 2.  Documents Incorporated.   
 

Except as otherwise specified, the following documents are incorporated by reference as if 
fully set forth in this Agreement. 
 

 Request For Proposals for Payment Gateway/Point of Sale Services – published 
5.3.18 

 The NCMIC Merchant Credit Card Processing Application and Special Processing 
Addendum – Control Number 192109 

 The NCMIC Merchant Agreement Additional Terms and Conditions – Rev 12/2015 
 The USA ePay Gateway License / User Agreement - Version 1. rev. 11 
 The USAePay Software License Agreement - Version 1. rev. 18: Last revised 

02/23/2012 
 The PAYA Agreement – REV 06252018 
 The VeriCheck Agreement – Revised April 11, 2018 

 
 

2.  Scope of Work.  Section 4 is amended to strike references to PAYA and to insert in lieu 
thereof references to VeriCheck. 
 

4  Scope of Work 
Service Provider shall provide to ESS the following services: 

 The merchant services as set forth in the NCMIC Merchant Agreement 
 The payment gateway services through USA ePay as provided in the USA ePay 

Gateway License, User Agreement and License Agreement 
 ACH services through PAYA VeriCheck as provided in the Paya VeriCheck 

Services Agreement 
 Technical Assistance and Advisory services with respect to the ESS integration 

with USA ePay gateway services and PAYA VeriCheck ACH services 
 Supplementary Services as specified in Section 4.1 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

127



 2

 
 
 
 
 
3.  Fee Amounts.  Section 5.1 is amended to strike references to PAYA and to insert in lieu 
thereof references to VeriCheck, and to clarify the fee amounts to be paid for VeriCheck services. 
 

5.1. Fee Amounts 
Payment Gateway Fee – The fee charged by USA ePay for payment gateway services. 
The fee shall be applied monthly in an amount not to exceed $45.00 per month. Service 
Provider will withdraw this monthly fee from the treasury management account specified 
by ESS. The withdrawal will typically occur on first or second business day of the 
following month. 
 
ACH Access Fee – The fee charged by PAYA VeriCheck for ACH services. The fee 
shall be applied monthly in an amount not to exceed 10.00 per month which is comprised 
of a $5.00 statement fee and a $5.00 gateway fee. PAYA VeriCheck will withdraw this 
monthly fee from the treasury management account specified by ESS. The withdrawal 
will occur within the first week of the following month. 
 
ACH Surcharge & Velocity – There shall be no additional surcharge for transactions 
based on any dollar amount threshold.  There shall be no surcharge based on the velocity 
of transactions. For the purposes of this agreement, velocity is defined to be the dollar 
amount of transactions for a single customer account within a defined time period such as 
a day, month or year. 

 
ACH Transaction fee – The fee charged by PAYA VeriCheck for each ACH transaction. 
The fee shall be applied to each transaction submitted by ESS through the payment 
gateway in an amount not to exceed $0.30 per transaction. PAYA VeriCheck will 
withdraw this monthly fee from the treasury management account specified by ESS. The 
withdrawal will occur on the last day of each month. 
 
ACH Batch Fee – The fee charged by VeriCheck for each ACH transaction batch 
processed. The fee shall be applied to each transaction batch submitted by ESS through 
the payment gateway in an amount not to exceed $0.075 per batch. VeriCheck will 
withdraw this monthly fee from the treasury management account specified by ESS. The 
withdrawal will occur on the last day of each month. 
 
Merchant Processor Charge. The fee charged by the Service Provider for access to the 
merchant processing service. The fee shall be applied monthly in an amount not to 
exceed the product of .0025 times the total dollar amount of the cumulative credit and 
debit card transactions which occur in the preceding month. Service Provider will submit 
an invoice/statement and payment will be pulled via ACH on the first business day of 
each month. 
 
Merchant Transaction Charge. The fee charged by the Service Provider for each credit or 
debit card transaction. The fee shall be applied to each transaction submitted by ESS 
through the payment gateway in the preceding month in an amount not to exceed $0.10 
per transaction. Service Provider will submit an invoice/statement and payment will be 
pulled via ACH on the first business day of each month. 
 
Credit/Debit Batch Closing Fee.  The fee charged by the Service Provider for each daily 
batch of credit or debit card transactions submitted through the payment gateway. The fee 
shall be applied to each daily transaction batch submitted by ESS through the payment 

128



 3

gateway in the preceding month in an amount not to exceed $0.10 per batch. Service 
Provider will submit an invoice/statement and payment will be pulled via ACH on the 
first business day of each month. 
 
Other Fees. Various other fees including a Statement Maintenance Fee, a Regulatory Fee, 
and other miscellaneous fees. The fee shall be applied monthly in an amount not to 
exceed $8.20 per month. Service Provider will submit an invoice at the beginning of each 
month with terms of payment set at net 30 Service Provider will submit an 
invoice/statement and payment will be pulled via ACH on the first business day of each 
month. 
 
Failed Transaction Fees. Other fees relate to the special handling of transactions which 
fail (Charge Back Fees or ACH Return Item Fees) shall be as specified in the Service 
Provider Merchant Credit Card Processing Application. 
 
PCI Assurance Fee.  The fee charged by the Service Provider for expenses associated 
with compliance with PCI requirements. The fee shall be applied annually in an amount 
not to exceed $60.00 unless the program provider requires an increase across the entire 
portfolio. Service Provider will annually submit an invoice for this fee, and the fee may 
be incorporated in one of the monthly invoices for other fees as appropriate. 
 
Termination Fee. There shall be no termination fee associated with the Service Provider. 
ESS may terminate services without penalty at any time. Service Provider shall notify 
ESS of any termination fee charged by either PAYA VeriCheck or USAePay, and if 
applicable, such termination fee(s) shall not exceed $200.00 or as dictated by the 
individual service agreement. Service Provider shall notify ESS of changes in policy or 
amount for any termination fee charged by either PAYA VeriCheck or USAePay. 
 
Interchange Pass Through Fees.  The fees charged by credit and debit card companies 
including MasterCard, Visa, Discover and American Express. These fees are set by the 
companies periodically and are passed through by the Service Provider to ESS without 
mark up or surcharges. The following components comprise the Interchange Fees: 
 

 Interchange Rate – a percentage rate applied to the dollar value of each credit or 
debit card transaction. As an illustration, this fee may range between .65% to 
1.55% and is dictated by the interchange tables set forth by the card associations 

 Interchange Transaction Fee – a fee applied to each credit or debit card 
transaction. As an illustration, this fee may range between $0.10 to $0.15 per 
transaction and is dictated by the interchange tables set forth by the card 
associations. The amount of the transaction does not affect this fee. 

 Dues and Assessments - a percentage rate applied to the dollar value of each 
credit or debit card transaction. As an illustration, this fee may range between 
0.13% to 0.14% 

 
With respect to Interchange Pass Through Fees, the Service Provider shall assign the 
lowest possible government rates class to ESS based on qualification parameters dictated 
by industry codes and the interchange tables provided by the card associations. Service 
Provider shall proactively and timely inform ESS whenever the Interchange Fees are 
changed. 
 
No fees other than those specified herein shall be charged by the Service Provider, the 
ACH service provider, or the payment gateway service provider for payment services. 
The individual service agreements with the Service provider and affiliated parties will 
take final precedence with respect to the determination of their fees. 

 

129



 4

 
4.  Transaction Processing Flow.  Section 5.3 is amended to strike references to PAYA and to 
insert in lieu thereof references to VeriCheck, to clarify processes relating to VeriCheck services, 
and to prescribe minimum parameters for Velocity. 
 

5.3 Transaction Processing Flow 
 
The following is a description of the typical steps and flow of actions required in the 
payment process. 
 
TRANSACTIONS 

1. ESS Customers perform transactions on the ESS web site. 
2. Each transaction is assigned a Transaction number. 
3. ESS accumulates the transactions for a business day. 

 
ACH Payments 

a. ESS pushes the ACH payment request through the USAePay Application 
Programming Interface (API)  

b. USAePay transmits the ACH request through PAYA VeriCheck 
c. PAYA VeriCheck processes the payments through its sending bank and 

the Federal Reserve, and an authorization number is assigned 
d. Federal Reserve presents the transaction to the receiving bank and the 

bank attempts to post the transaction; Federal Reserve settles with the 
sending bank and with the receiving bank; the sending bank posts credit 
to the Vericheck account 

e. Funds may be held for possible returns 
f. Vericheck creates net settlement transaction (credit for transactions 

entered, minus amount of any returns in the interim) 
g. The ESS account is credited and the Vericheck account is debited 
h. Payment is deposited in the designated ESS account within 2-7 business 

days 
i. Each ACH deposit shall be equal to the transactions for one business day 
j. A daily report of transactions for each business day is provided by 

USAePay (see below) 
 

Credit/Debit Card Payments 
a. ESS pushes the Credit/Debit payment request through the USAePay API 
b. USAePay transmits the Credit/Debit request through First Data 
c. First Data processes the payments and an authorization number is 

assigned 
d. Payment is deposited in the designated ESS account within 3 (three) 

business days 
e. Each credit/debit card deposit shall be equal to the transactions for one 

business day 
f. A daily report of transactions for each business day is provided by 

USAePay (see below) 
 

 
There may be other specific steps defined to handle various use cases including but not 
limited to payment failures, voids and refunds. Procedures for the primary use cases are 
defined as follows. 
 
 
 
 

130



 5

 
FAILURES - ACH Payments 

1. ESS pushes the ACH payment request through the USAePay API 
2. USAePay transmits the ACH request through PAYA VeriCheck. The transaction 

is in a pending status after batch upload 
3. PAYA VeriCheck processes the payments 
4. Payer’s bank sends a confirmation receipt to PAYA VeriCheck that they received 

the payment request 
5. Two days later, PAYA VeriCheck will initiate the ACH payment, which informs 

the payer’s bank to transfer the money to the merchant’s account  
 

Pre-Settlement Failure 
a. The Payment is rejected after the batch is uploaded, but prior to 

settlement 
b. PAYA VeriCheck notifies USAePay of the failure due to an incorrect 

routing number or other pre-settlement issue 
c. USAePay returns a failure message to ESS through the API.  
d. ESS suspends the customer account in E-Submission pending correction. 
e. Customer and ESS resolve the payment issue, and ESS notifies 

USAePay and VeriCheck to remove the restriction 
f. ESS retries the payment, including a failed payment fee. 

 
 
Post-Settlement Failure 

a. The Payment is rejected after settlement due to insufficient funds (NSF), 
account not found due to incorrect routing or account number (ANF), 
and Payer’s bank notifies PAYA VeriCheck 

b. PAYA VeriCheck notifies USAePay of the failure. USAePay does not 
restrict the customer account  

c. USAePay returns a failure message to ESS through the API.  
d. ESS suspends the customer account in E-Submission pending correction. 
e. Customer and ESS resolve the payment issue, and ESS notifies 

USAePay and VeriCheck to remove the restriction 
f. ESS retries the payment, including a failed payment fee. 

 
FAILURES – Credit/Debit Card Payments 

1. ESS pushes the Credit/Debit payment request through the USAePay API 
2. USAePay transmits the ACH request through First Data 
3. First Data attempts to process the payments, and the payment fails (expired, 

locked or other reason) 
4. First Data notifies USAePay of the failure. USAePay does not restrict the 

customer account 
5. USAePay returns a failure message to ESS through the API. The message may be 

in the form of an error code, which specifies the reason for the failure. 
6. ESS suspends the customer account in E-Submission pending correction. 
7. Customer and ESS resolve the payment issue, and ESS notifies USAePay to 

remove the restriction 
8. ESS retries the payment, including a failed payment fee. 

 
 
VOIDS 
For batch online ACH and Credit/Debit card transactions a mechanism for voiding 
transactions is not applicable. If a customer executes the “submit” function, the 
customer’s account will be charged when the transaction is completed. Payment must be 
made if the transaction is completed. Further, the nature of batch transactions is not suited 

131



 6

for void functions. When payment is received (deposited in the ESS account) through 
USAePay, ESS will distribute the funds to each location. 
 
 
REVERSE ACH 
For batch online ACH and Credit/Debit card transactions a mechanism for refunding 
transactions is desired although it is expected that it would be infrequently used. As 
described in the section on VOIDS, if a customer executes the “submit” function, the 
customer’s account will be charged when the transaction is completed. Payment must be 
made if the transaction is completed. Further the nature of batch transactions is not suited 
for void functions. When payment is received (deposited in the ESS account) through 
PAYA VeriCheck and USAePay, ESS will distribute the funds to each location. In most 
cases it will be up to the location to handle any refund. 
 
When circumstances warrant, ESS may initiate refund through a Reverse ACH utilizing 
the USAePay console. 
 

1. Reverse ACH transactions approved by ESS shall be withdrawn from the 
designated ESS financial account. 

2. Reverse ACH transactions will exclude the ESS convenience fee. 
3. Service Provider shall provide ESS with access to reports which document any 

Reverse ACH transaction activity. 
 

SETTLEMENT TIME SETTLEMENT TIME 
1. The settlement time shall be 5:00 PM Central Time each business day. 

 
VELOCITY 
Service Provider shall ensure that the minimum Velocity, as defined in Section 
5.1, for transactions under this agreement shall be as follows. 

One Business Day – Not less than $100,000.00 per customer 
One Week -  Not less than $500,000.00 per customer 
One Month – Not less than $1,000,000.00 per customer 
Annual – There has be no defined annual limit for Velocity 
 

As circumstances and customer activities warrant, ESS may request Service 
Provider to increase Velocity. Service Provider shall work in good faith with 
other parties to the payment process to conform to such requests. Changes to 
Velocity shall be reflected in an amendment to this Agreement as provided in 
Section 4.3. 

 
 
 
5.  Payment Reports.  Section 5.4 is amended to strike references to PAYA and to insert in lieu 
thereof references to VeriCheck, and to clarify information relating to VeriCheck reports. 
 
 

5.4. Payment Reports. 
 
Service Provider shall prepare daily cumulative financial reports to ESS for all daily 
transactions which occur prior to the settlement time. These reports are in addition to the 
reporting services available to ESS through the [Reporting System Name] (or successor). 
These reports shall represent all transactions which occur after the previously day’s 
settlement time and until the current day’s settlement time. The required reports include 
the following. 

132



 7

 
CHARGE REPORTS 

1. ACH Charge Report - Service Provider shall provide ESS with a report which 
documents each ACH transaction for a business day (as represented in a daily 
batch of transactions submitted by ESS through the USAePay API). The report 
shall specify the following information. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 
b. The Authorization Number assigned by PAYA VeriCheck for each item 

in a batch file 
c. The Transaction Date 
d. The Transaction Amount 
e. The Transaction Time 
f. The Account Type (Checking or Savings) 

 
The report shall have a report title and a report date, the number of payments 
(items in the batch) and the total dollar amount for all transactions in the 
report 
 
2. Debit/Credit Charge Report - Service Provider shall provide ESS with a report 

which documents each debit/credit transaction for a business day (as represented 
in a daily batch of transactions submitted by ESS through the USAePay API). 
The report shall specify the following information. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 
b. The Authorization Number assigned by First Data for each item in a 

batch file 
c. The Transaction Date 
d. The Transaction Amount 
e. The Transaction Time 
f. The Credit/Debit Account Type (Visa, Mastercard, Discover, AMEX) 

 
The report shall have a report title and a report date, the number of payments 
(items in the batch) and the total dollar amount for all transactions in the 
report 
 

 
3. Card Pre-Authorization Report - Service Provider shall provide ESS with a report 

which documents each new debit/credit pre-authorization transaction for each 
month. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 
b. The Credit/Debit Account Type (Visa, Mastercard, Discover, AMEX) 
c. A truncated (last four digits only) Card Number 
d. The Authorization Number (is there a different term?) assigned by First 

Data for each pre-authorization 
e. The pre-authorization date 
f. The pre-authorization time 

 
The report shall have a report title and a report date, the number of payments 
(items in the batch) and the total dollar amount for all transactions in the 
report 
 
4. Card Pre-Authorization Decline Report - Service Provider shall provide ESS with 

a report which documents each declined debit/credit pre-authorization transaction 
for each month. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 

133



 8

b. The Credit/Debit Account Type (Visa, Mastercard, Discover, AMEX) 
c. A truncated (last four digits only) Card Number 
d. The card expiration date 
e. The Authorization Number (is there a different term?) assigned by First 

Data for each pre-authorization 
f. The pre-authorization decline date 
g. The pre-authorization decline time 

 
The report shall have a report title and a report date, the number of payments 
(items in the batch) and the total dollar amount for all transactions in the 
report 

 
 

5. ACH Post-Settlement Return Report - Service Provider shall provide ESS with a 
report which documents each post-settlement failed ACH transaction for a 
business day (as represented by a USAePay failure message returned to ESS 
through the API.) The report shall specify the following information. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 
b. The Authorization Number (is there a different term?) assigned by 

PAYA VeriCheck for each failed payment item 
c. The Transaction Amount 
d. The Transaction Date 
e. The Return Amount 
f. The Return Reason 
g. The Return Type 

 
The report shall have a report title and a report date, the number of returns and 
the total dollar amount for all returned transactions in the report 
 
6. Credit/Debit Card Expiration Data - Service Provider shall provide ESS with the 

means to look up customer information which includes the expiration date for 
each authorized customer credit/debit card. The look up method shall include the 
following information. 

a. The customer account number (provided by ESS) 
b. The Credit/Debit Account Type (Visa, Mastercard, Discover, AMEX) 
c. A truncated (last four digits only) Card Number 
d. The card expiration date 

 
 
All reports referenced in this section shall be accessible to ESS through one of 
two channels. 

1. A report call through USAePay API and web service, and 
2. A report which may be executed and downloaded through the USAePay 

Console 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

134



 9

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Amendment to the Agreement and have 
caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Amendment to the Agreement.   
 
ESS   Service Provider 
  
  
By:  ________________________________ By:  ______________________________ 
Name:  __Travis Case__________________ Name:  ______________________________ 
Title:  __President_____________________ Title:  ______________________________ 
  
Date:  _______________________________ Date:  ______________________________ 

 

135



136



137



138



139



140



141



 
 
 
 
May 8, 2019 
 
 
 
To: Iowa County Recorders 
  
From: Kathy Jurries, ESS Coordinating Committee Chair 
 
Re: Fiscal Year 2020 ILR Maintenance Invoice 
  
 
Enclosed you will find the invoice for your Fiscal Year 2020 Iowa Land Records maintenance 
assessment. The Iowa Land Records system and web site cannot function without the support of our 
local indexing and imaging service providers.  Local service providers play an important role in providing 
citizens with online access to records as well as the ability to electronically submit documents for 
recording. The ESS Coordinating Committee and ILR staff negotiated the annual maintenance fee for 
these services. The following are the maintenance amounts for FY 2020, beginning July 1, 2019. 
 
    Indexing/Imaging service provider (single source) $2,768.46 
 
    Imaging provider (separate) $1,003.48 
 
    Combined, where applicable: $3,771.94 
 
The amount of the invoice is dependent upon the configuration of service providers in your county. If you 
are served by a single service provider which provides both indexing and imaging services, then the 
amount due is $2,768.46.  If you are served by two service providers (separate providers for indexing and 
imaging), the amount due for the imaging provider is $1,003.48 and the combined amount is $3,771.94. 
 
The ESS Coordinating Committee has again allocated credits to eligible Counties based on the proportion 
of documents which were electronically filed in calendar year 2018. The amount of the credit for each 
County was approved by the ESS Coordinating Committee at our meeting on February 7, 2019.  All 
Counties which participated in the ILR E-Submission service in calendar year 2018 will be receiving a 
credit. This credit amount is included in your invoice. The credit granted by the Committee for FY 2020 is 
equal to or greater than the credit amount granted for FY 2019.  
 
Counties are asked to process the invoices for maintenance as soon as possible. As in past years, a 
County may choose to make payment for maintenance services from either the current fiscal year - 2019 
or next fiscal year - 2020.  Partial payments from both fiscal years will be accepted. If you are paying the 
full invoice from your FY 2020 budget, please remit payment in early July. 
 
If you have comments or questions about the invoice or the cost sharing credits for E-Submission 
services, please let us know.  Thank you for participation.  We look forward to seeing you at summer 
school. 

 
 
 

142



143



144



145



146



Amendment to Chapter 1 
ESS Policies and Procedures 

Reserve Fund Policy 

Section 1.7(6) of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is 
amended to update policies relating to reserve funds managed through Fund 255 
in the Office of the State Treasurer, and the Bank of America Treasury 
Management accounts. 

1. Section 1.7(6) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by striking the
section and inserting in lieu thereof the following.

ESS – 1.7 Financial Procedures. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3(a)) 

1.7(6) Allocation and Expenditure of Reserve Funds. The following reserve funds 
are established. 

a. Fund 255 - Software Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve.
The purpose of the reserve is to provide resources for necessary equipment
replacement or maintenance and for the development of software to
improve or maintain services provided through the Electronic Services
System

b. Fund 255 - Redaction Reserve. The purpose of the reserve is to provide
resources for the redaction of personally identifiable information which
may be included in images of Back File documents as defined in Section
4.1

c. Fund 255 – Restricted Operating Reserve. The purpose of the reserve is to
provide resources which may be necessary to sustain the operation of the
Electronic Services System due to an unforeseen event or emergency

d. Fund 255 – Unrestricted Operating Reserve. The purpose of the reserve is
to provide resources for planned operating expenses when income varies
from budget projections

e. Treasury Management Reserve. The purpose of the reserve is to provide
resources for authorized software development, technical assistance,
equipment replacement or maintenance, and human resource management
activities

Any reserve funds shall be reviewed at least annually by the ESS Coordinating 
Committee and the ESS Finance Subcommittee.  The expenditure of reserve funds 
shall be subject to the approval of the ICRA Executive Board, or the ESS 
Coordinating Committee if such authority is delegated to it.  As needed the 
reserve funds may be adjusted or rebalanced by the ICRA Executive Board, or the 
ESS Coordinating Committee if such authority is delegated to it. 

DRAFT

147



 

 
Background. This policy has not been updated since it was originally adopted in 2011. 
Since then, the ESS Coordinating Committee, ESS Finance Subcommittee and the ICRA 
Executive Board has taken action to use Fund 255 Reserve Funds for back file redaction 
and equipment replacement expenses. In 2016 the Committees authorized the creation of 
the Treasury Management Reserve, and subsequently authorized the allocation and 
expenditure of resources from this reserve. 
 
A review of the Policies and Procedures indicates that this section should be updated to 
reflect current practice.  For reference, the current policy, which is limited to Fund 255, is 
shown below. 
 
Until 2016, meeting summaries of previous actions of the Committees do not appear to 
include specific language concerning the reserves. Action relating to the reserves in prior 
years were authorized as a part of the annual budgets and interim amendments. 
 

 
1.7(6) Allocation and Expenditure of Reserve Funds.  Any reserve funds managed 
through the Office of the State Treasurer shall be reviewed at least annually by the 
ESS Coordinating Committee.  The expenditure of reserve funds shall be subject 
to the approval of the ICRA Executive Board, or the ESS Coordinating 
Committee if such authority is delegated to it.  As needed the reserve funds may 
be adjusted or rebalanced by the ICRA Executive Board, or the ESS Coordinating 
Committee if such authority is delegated to it. 
 

 
Approval of the updated Reserve Fund Policy is requested. 

 
 

 
 DRAFT

148



149



150



Amendment to Chapter 1 
ESS Policies and Procedures 

Expense Reimbursement Policy 

Section 1.6(10) of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is 
amended to clarify and update policies relating to the reimbursement of expenses 
associated with ESS meetings and activities. 

1. 1.6(10) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows.

1.6(10) Compensation of Members. The members of the ESS Coordinating 
Committee shall not receive compensation.  However, ESS Coordinating 
Committee members, County Recorders or Deputy Recorders, or ICRA/ESS 
CLRIS staff may be reimbursed for travel expenses subject to the following 
parameters. 

a. ESS Coordinating Committee members or ICRA/ESS CLRIS staff for
participation in face-to-face meetings of the Committee.

b. A The representative of the ESS Finance Subcommittee designated by the
ICRA Executive Board for participation in face-to-face meetings of the
ESS Coordinating Committee.

c. ESS Subcommittee Members or ICRA/ESS CLRIS staff for participation
in face-to-face meetings of the Subcommittee, subject to the prior
approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee Chair.

d. County Recorders, Deputy Recorders, or ICRA/ESS CLRIS staff who
participate in scheduled meetings with legislators, legislative staff, and
state administrative agencies, subject to the prior approval of the ESS
Coordinating Committee Chair.

e. ESS Coordinating Committee members, County Recorders, Deputy
Recorders, or ICRA/ESS CLRIS staff who participate in and assist with
trade shows on behalf of ESS and CLRIS, subject to the prior approval of
the ESS Coordinating Committee Chair.

f. ESS Coordinating Committee members, County Recorders, Deputy
Recorders, or ICRA/ESS CLRIS staff for participation in other special
meetings or events subject to the approval of the ESS Coordinating
Committee.

Reimbursement rates for ESS Coordinating Committee members, County 
Recorders, Deputy Recorders or ICRA/CLRIS staff shall be based on the current 
State of Iowa Summary of Travel Reimbursement Guidelines. See: 
https://das.iowa.gov/state-accounting/travel-relocation. 

Persons requesting reimbursement must disclose to ESS other purposes of the 
travel and whether reimbursement for the travel may be available from other 

DRAFT

151



sources. Reimbursement may be limited in the discretion the Chair or the ESS 
Coordinating Committee, as the case may be, when reimbursement is available 
from other sources regardless of the actual amount of reimbursement. The Chair 
or ESS Coordinating Committee shall consider the primary purpose of the travel 
and cooperate with other sources to provide appropriate allocation of 
reimbursement. 

In all cases reimbursement for lodging expenses is subject to the prior approval of 
the Chair of the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

********************************** 
Question for consideration. What to Committee members think about the prior 
approval portions of the policy? 

DRAFT

152



Amendments to Chapter 1 
ESS Policies and Procedures 

Software Asset Determination 

Section 1.5 of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is amended 
by creating a new policy concerning the method of determining the value of 
software assets as they are developed. 

1. Chapter 1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by inserting the
following new section.

ESS – 1.13 Software Asset Determination. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a method for valuing the software 
developed by the Electronic Services System and to account for the value of the 
software as an asset in the ESS financial reporting system. The asset is to be 
included in the ESS balance sheet and would be subject to depreciation. Software 
developed by ESS is not sold or licensed as a commercial product, and it has no 
market value in the traditional sense. The valuation method is to be primarily 
based on the value of the human resources dedicated to the creation of the 
software. 

1.13(1) The value of ESS software is to be calculated based on the human 
resources expenditures associated with members of the ESS software 
development team and other personnel engaged in support activities associated 
with the development of the software including testing and initial implementation. 
The following methodology shall be used to calculate the value of the software. 

a. The ESS Project Manager shall define the software assets to be developed,
and the software development activities which contribute to the creation of
the software asset. The ESS Project Manager shall also determine and
document the points in time when development of the asset begins and
when development is complete. Activities such as preliminary planning
and post-production implementation shall not be included in the software
development activities used to calculate the value of the asset.

b. ESS personnel, and any external software development professionals
engaged to assist with ESS software development, shall track and report
time dedicated software development activities which may include
planning, development, testing and initial implementation of the software.

c. An hourly cost shall be determined for ESS personnel and any external
software development professionals engaged to assist with ESS software
development. For ESS personnel, the hourly cost shall include to wages or
salaries including all associated payroll taxes paid by the employer, plus

DRAFT

153



the cost of benefits and any human resources administrative fees.  For 
external software development professionals, the hourly cost shall be the 
hourly rate charged by the vendor or independent contractor. 

d. For each member of the software development team and other designated
personnel, the product of the hours allocated to the software development
activities determined in subsection b., times the hourly costs determined
shall be calculated.

e. The sum of the values determined in subsection d shall represent the value
of the asset.

f. The value of the software assets shall be determined annually by calendar
year.

DRAFT

154



Senate File 475 - Enrolled

Senate File 475

AN ACT

PROVIDING FOR NOTARIAL ACTS, INCLUDING BY PROVIDING FOR THE

USE OF ELECTRONIC MEDIA, PROVIDING PENALTIES, AND INCLUDING

EFFECTIVE DATE PROVISIONS.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF IOWA:4

Section 1. Section 9B.1, Code 2019, is amended to read as1

follows:2

9B.1 Short title.3

This chapter may be cited as the “Revised Uniform Law on4

Notarial Acts” Acts (2018)”.5

Sec. 2. Section 9B.2, subsection 10, paragraph b, Code 2019,6

is amended to read as follows:7

b. “Personal Except as provided in section 9B.14A, “personal8

appearance” does not include appearances which require video,9

optical, or technology with similar capabilities.10

Sec. 3. Section 9B.2, Code 2019, is amended by adding the11

following new subsections:12

155



Senate File 475, p. 2

NEW SUBSECTION. 4A. “Instrument affecting real property”13

means a written instrument conveying or encumbering real14

property including an instrument affecting real estate as15

defined in section 558.1 or any similar instrument provided in16

chapter 558.17

NEW SUBSECTION. 11A. “Remote facilitator” means a person18

who participates in performing a notarial act under section19

9B.14A, by doing any of the following:20

a. Providing communication technology used by a public21

notary or remotely located individual.22

b. Creating, transmitting, or retaining audio-visual23

recordings on behalf of a notary public.24

Sec. 4. Section 9B.4, Code 2019, is amended by adding the25

following new subsection:26

NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. A notarial officer may certify that a27

tangible copy of an electronic record is an accurate copy of28

the electronic record as provided in section 9B.14A.29

Sec. 5. Section 9B.6, Code 2019, is amended to read as30

follows:31

9B.6 Personal appearance required.32

1. If a notarial act relates to a statement made in or33

a signature executed on a record, the individual making the34

statement or executing the signature shall appear personally35

before the notarial officer.1

2. This section is satisfied by a remotely located2

individual using communication technology to appear before a3

notary public as provided in section 9B.14A.4

Sec. 6. NEW SECTION. 9B.14A Notarial act performed for5

remotely located individual.6

1. As used in this section unless the context otherwise7

requires:8

a. “Communication technology” means an electronic device or9

process that does all of the following:10

(1) Allows a notary public and a remotely located individual11

to communicate with each other simultaneously by sight and12

sound.13

(2) When necessary and consistent with other applicable14

law, facilitates communication with a remotely located15

individual who has a vision, hearing, or speech impairment.16

156



Senate File 475, p. 3

b. “Foreign state” means a jurisdiction other than the17

United States, a state, or a federally recognized Indian tribe.18

c. “Identity proofing” means a process or service by which19

a third person provides a notary public with a means to verify20

the identity of a remotely located individual by a review of21

personal information from public or private data sources.22

d. “Outside the United States” means a location outside23

the geographic boundaries of the United States, Puerto Rico,24

the United States Virgin Islands, and any territory, insular25

possession, or other location subject to the jurisdiction of26

the United States.27

e. “Remotely located individual” means an individual who is28

not in the physical presence of the notary public who performs29

a notarial act under subsection 3.30

2. A remotely located individual may comply with section31

9B.6 by using communication technology to appear before a32

notary public.33

3. A notary public located in this state may perform a34

notarial act using communication technology for a remotely35

located individual if all of the following applies:1

a. The notary public has any of the following:2

(1) Personal knowledge under section 9B.7, subsection 1, of3

the identity of the individual.4

(2) Satisfactory evidence of the identity of the remotely5

located individual by oath or affirmation from a credible6

witness appearing before the notary public under section 9B.7,7

subsection 2, or this section.8

(3) Obtained satisfactory evidence of the identity of the9

remotely located individual by using at least two different10

types of identity proofing.11

b. The notary public is able reasonably to confirm that a12

record before the notary public is the same record in which the13

remotely located individual made a statement or on which the14

individual executed a signature.15

c. The notary public, or a person acting on behalf of16

the notary public, creates an audio-visual recording of the17

performance of the notarial act.18

d. For a remotely located individual located outside the19

United States, all of the following applies:20

157



Senate File 475, p. 4

(1) The record complies with any of the following:21

(a) Is to be filed with or relates to a matter before a22

public official or court, governmental entity, or other entity23

subject to the jurisdiction of the United States.24

(b) Involves property located in the territorial25

jurisdiction of the United States or involves a transaction26

substantially connected with the United States.27

(2) The act of making the statement or signing the record28

is not prohibited by the foreign state in which the remotely29

located individual is located.30

4. If a notarial act is performed under this section, the31

certificate of notarial act required by section 9B.15 and the32

short-form certificate provided in section 9B.16 must indicate33

that the notarial act was performed using communication34

technology.35

5. A short-form certificate provided in section 9B.16 for a1

notarial act subject to this section is sufficient if any of2

the following applies:3

a. It complies with rules adopted under subsection 8,4

paragraph “a”.5

b. It is in the form provided in section 9B.16 and contains6

a statement substantially as follows: “This notarial act7

involved the use of communication technology”.8

6. A notary public, a guardian, conservator, or agent of9

a notary public, or a personal representative of a deceased10

notary public shall retain the audio-visual recording created11

under subsection 3, paragraph “c”, or cause the recording12

to be retained by a repository designated by or on behalf13

of the person required to retain the recording. Unless a14

different period is required by rule adopted under subsection15

8, paragraph “d”, the recording must be retained for a period of16

at least ten years after the recording is made.17

7. Before a notary public performs the notary public’s18

initial notarial act under this section, the notary public19

must notify the secretary of state that the notary public will20

be performing notarial acts with respect to remotely located21

individuals and identify the technologies the notary public22

intends to use. If the secretary of state has established23

standards under subsection 8 and section 9B.27 for approval24

158



Senate File 475, p. 5

of communication technology or identity proofing, the25

communication technology and identity proofing must conform to26

the standards.27

8. In addition to adopting rules under section 9B.27, the28

secretary of state may adopt rules under this section regarding29

performance of a notarial act. The rules may do all of the30

following:31

a. Prescribe the means and process, including training32

requirements, of performing a notarial act involving a remotely33

located individual using communication technology.34

b. Establish standards for communication technology and35

identity proofing.1

c. Establish requirements or procedures to approve providers2

of communication technology and the process of identity3

proofing.4

d. Establish standards and a period for the retention of an5

audio-visual recording created under subsection 3, paragraph6

“c”.7

9. Before adopting, amending, or repealing a rule governing8

performance of a notarial act with respect to a remotely9

located individual, the secretary of state must consider all10

of the following:11

a. The most recent standards regarding the performance of12

a notarial act with respect to a remotely located individual13

promulgated by national standard-setting organizations and the14

recommendations of the national association of secretaries of15

state.16

b. Standards, practices, and customs of other jurisdictions17

that have laws substantially similar to this section.18

c. The views of governmental officials and entities and19

other interested persons.20

10. By allowing its communication technology or identity21

proofing to facilitate a notarial act for a remotely located22

individual or by providing storage of the audio-visual23

recording created under subsection 3, paragraph “c”, the24

provider of the communication technology, identity proofing,25

or storage appoints the secretary of state as the provider’s26

agent for service of process in any civil action in this state27

related to the notarial act.28

159



Senate File 475, p. 6

10A. A document purporting to convey or encumber real29

property that has been recorded by the county recorder for the30

jurisdiction in which the real property is located, although31

the document may not have been certified according to this32

section, shall give the same notice to third persons and be33

effective from the time of recording as if the document had34

been certified according to this section.35

10B. A notary public who performs a notarial act under this1

section must be duly commissioned under and remain subject to2

the requirements of section 9B.21 and all other applicable3

requirements of this chapter.4

Sec. 7. NEW SECTION. 9B.14B Remote facilitator.5

To be eligible to directly facilitate a notarial act using6

communication technology for a remotely located individual as7

provided in section 9B.14A, a remote facilitator must designate8

and continuously maintain in this state one of the following:9

1. Its usual place of business in this state.10

2. A registered office, which need not be a place of its11

activity in this state, or a registered agent for service of12

process, as required by the secretary of state. In addition,13

the remote facilitator shall file a foreign entity authority14

statement with the secretary of state. The statement shall15

describe the current street and mailing address of the16

registered office or the name and current street and mailing17

address of the remote facilitator’s registered agent.18

Sec. 8. NEW SECTION. 9B.14C Use of information.19

1. a. As used in this section, unless the context20

otherwise requires, “personally identifiable information” means21

information about or pertaining to an individual in a record22

which identifies the individual, and includes information that23

can be used to distinguish or trace an individual’s identity,24

either alone or when combined with other information.25

b. “Personally identifiable information” includes but is26

not limited to a person’s photograph, social security number,27

driver’s license number, name, address, and telephone number.28

2. A notary public or a remote facilitator shall not sell,29

offer for sale, use, or transfer to another person personally30

identifiable information collected in the course of performing31

a notarial act for any purpose other than as follows:32

160



Senate File 475, p. 7

a. As required to perform the notarial act.33

b. As necessary to effect, administer, enforce, service, or34

process the transaction for which the personally identifiable35

information was provided.1

3. Subsection 2 does not apply to the transfer of personally2

identifiable information to another person in any of the3

following circumstances:4

a. Upon written consent of the person for the use or release5

of that person’s personally identifiable information.6

b. In response to a court order, subpoena, or other legal7

process compelling disclosure.8

c. As part of a change in the form of a business entity’s9

organization or a change in the control of a business10

entity, including as a result of an acquisition, merger, or11

consolidation. However, any reorganized or successor business12

entity shall comply with the same requirements as provided in13

subsection 2.14

4. A person who violates this section is guilty of a simple15

misdemeanor.16

Sec. 9. Section 9B.20, Code 2019, is amended by adding the17

following new subsection:18

NEW SUBSECTION. 2A. The office of the recorder of a county19

in which real estate is located may accept for recording20

a tangible copy of an electronic record of an instrument21

affecting real property, if the electronic record is evidenced22

by a certificate of a notarial act pursuant to section 9B.15.23

Sec. 10. RULEMAKING. The secretary of state shall24

prepare a notice of intended action for the adoption of25

rules necessary to administer this Act as provided in section26

9B.27. The notice of intended action shall be submitted to27

the administrative rules coordinator and the administrative28

code editor as soon as possible after July 1, 2020. However,29

nothing in this section authorizes the secretary of state to30

adopt rules under section 17A.4, subsection 3, or section31

17A.5, subsection 2, paragraph “b”.32

Sec. 11. EFFECTIVE DATE.33

1. Except as provided in subsection 2, this Act takes effect34

July 1, 2020.35

161



Senate File 475, p. 8

2. The section of this Act requiring the secretary of state1

to prepare a notice of intended action for the adoption of2

rules necessary to administer this Act shall take effect upon3

enactment.4

______________________________

CHARLES SCHNEIDER

President of the Senate

______________________________

LINDA UPMEYER

Speaker of the House

I hereby certify that this bill originated in the Senate and

is known as Senate File 475, Eighty-eighth General Assembly.

______________________________

W. CHARLES SMITHSON

Secretary of the Senate

Approved _______________, 2019 ______________________________

KIM REYNOLDS

Governor

162



Amendment to Chapter 3 
ESS Policies and Procedures 

Requirements For Groundwater Hazard Statements 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is amended 
inserting a new section to specify the requirements for Groundwater Hazard 
Statements when submitted for recording. 

1. Chapter 3 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to insert the
following new section:

ESS – 3.15 Groundwater Hazard Statements. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3, and Section 558.69) 

3.15 Recording Groundwater Hazard Statements. Section 558.69 requires that for 
each declaration of value document submitted to a County Recorder a 
groundwater hazard statement be prepared. A preparer is further required to 
submit to the County Recorder for recording the groundwater hazard statement in 
conjunction with the submission of the declaration of value if one or more of the 
following conditions exits. 

a. A known private burial site
b. A known well
c. A known disposal site for solid waste
d. A known underground storage tank
e. Known hazardous Waste
f. A known private sewage disposal system

In order to provide for the consistent application of the mandate to record a 
groundwater hazard statement when one of the specified conditions exists, the 
following recording requirements are established. 

3.15(1) Disposition of Groundwater Hazard Statements – No Disclosure. If a 
prepared groundwater hazard statement indicates that none of the conditions as 
specified in Chapter 558.69 of the Iowa Code and this Section are present, then 
the preparer shall so note on the first page of the deed, instrument, or writing for 
which a declaration of value is required under Chapter 428A of the Iowa Code. 
Such notation shall be phrased in the following manner: “No Known GWH 
Disclosure”. 

If there is no disclosure of a condition referenced in this section, then a preparer is 
not required to submit a groundwater hazard statement for recording to 
accompany a deed, instrument, or other writing. 

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

163



If a groundwater hazard statement is submitted to accompany a deed, instrument, 
or writing, and the groundwater hazard statement does not disclose a condition 
referenced in this section, it shall be recorded. A County should not reject a 
document or group of documents when a ground water hazard statement does not 
disclose a condition referenced in this section. 

3.15(2) Disposition of Groundwater Hazard Statements –Disclosure. If a prepared 
groundwater hazard statement indicates that one of the conditions as specified in 
Chapter 558.69 of the Iowa Code and this Section is present, then the preparer 
shall so note on the first page of the deed, instrument, or writing for which a 
declaration of value is required under Chapter 428A of the Iowa Code. Such 
notation shall be phrased in the following manner: “GWH Condition Disclosed”. 

If a groundwater hazard statement is submitted to accompany a deed, instrument, 
or writing, and the groundwater hazard statement discloses a condition referenced 
in this section, it shall be recorded. 

3.15(3) No Groundwater Hazard Statement Recording Fee. As provided in 
Section 558.69, subsection 9, there shall be no fee charged for the recording of a 
groundwater hazard statement. 

3.15(4) Groundwater Hazard Statement Attachments. Attachments to 
groundwater hazard statements which disclose a condition referenced in this 
section shall be limited to the forms approved by the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources including the following forms. 

a. Notice of Waste Disposal Site
b. Time of Transfer Inspection Report (DNR Form 542-0191)
c. Time of Transfer Inspection Worksheet which may include a one-page

letter-sized sketch
d. Time of Transfer Inspection Agreement – Binding Agreement for Future

Inspection (DNR Form 542-0062)
e. Time of Transfer Inspection Waiver for Building Demolition (DNR Form

542-0063)
f. Time of Transfer Inspection Waiver – Binding Agreement for Future

Installation (DNR Form 542-0064)

Any attachments shall be submitted as one-sided, letter-sized documents with a 
portrait orientation. 

The “Instructions For Completing Groundwater Hazard Statement” and the “Time 
of Transfer Septic Inspection Exemptions”, as published by the Iowa Department 
of Natural Resources, shall not be included as an attachment to the groundwater 
hazard statement. Other materials not referenced in this subsection shall not be 
included as an attachment to the groundwater hazard statement. 

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

164



3.15(5) Legal or Location Description Information. Information about the legal 
description or the location description of a property shall be provided in an 
abbreviated format on the first page of the groundwater hazard statement as noted 
on the form published by the DNR. For platted land, the information shall specify 
only the associated lot, block, unit, subdivision and town name. For unplatted 
land, the information shall specify only the section, township, range and county 
name. A full legal description, including information such as the metes and 
bounds of a property, is not required on the ground water hazard statement, and an 
attachment with a full legal description is not required. 

Notwithstanding Section 3.15(4), when necessary, a one-page, letter-sized 
attachment with legal or location description information is allowed. 

2. Chapter 5 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to insert the
following new section:

ESS – 5.8 Groundwater Hazard Statements. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604) 

5.8 Groundwater Hazard Statement – Electronic Document. When a groundwater 
hazard statement is submitted as an Electronic Document through the ILR E-
Submission Service, it shall conform to the formatting requirements as specified 
in sections 3.15 and 5.4 of the Policies and Procedures. A groundwater hazard 
statement submitted as an Electronic Document through the ILR E-Submission 
Service shall not be subject to the Electronic Recording Fee as provided in section 
1.5(2) of the policies and procedures. 

5.8(1) Groundwater Hazard Statement Exemption. If a Submitter is not required 
to submit a groundwater hazard statement, because one of the conditions as 
specified in Chapter 558.69 of the Iowa Code and section 3.15 is not present, then 
the submitter shall specify the appropriate exemption in the applicable ILR E-
Submission Service interface. The exemption selected should correspond with the 
circumstance when no disclosure is required, i.e., there is “No Known GWH 
Disclosure”. 

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

165



provided for in the appropriation. However, the department1

shall not reallocate moneys appropriated to the department2

in this section and moneys appropriated in 2019 Iowa Acts,3

Senate File 615, section 15, if enacted, unless notice of the4

reallocation is given to the legislative services agency and5

the department of management prior to the effective date of the6

reallocation. The notice shall include information regarding7

the rationale for reallocating the moneys. The department8

shall not reallocate moneys appropriated in this section and9

moneys appropriated in 2019 Iowa Acts, Senate File 615, section10

15, if enacted, for the purpose of eliminating any program.11

DIVISION III12

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS13

Sec. 6. Section 2C.18, Code 2019, is amended to read as14

follows:15

2C.18 Report to general assembly.16

The ombudsman shall by April 1 December 31 of each year17

submit an economically designed and reproduced report to the18

general assembly and to the governor concerning the exercise of19

the ombudsman’s functions during the preceding calendar fiscal20

year. In discussing matters with which the ombudsman has been21

concerned, the ombudsman shall not identify specific persons22

if to do so would cause needless hardship. If the annual23

report criticizes a named agency or official, it shall also24

include unedited replies made by the agency or official to the25

criticism, unless excused by the agency or official affected.26

Sec. 7. Section 558.69, Code 2019, is amended by adding the27

following new subsection:28

NEW SUBSECTION. 9. Notwithstanding section 331.604 or any29

other provision of law to the contrary, the county recorder30

shall not charge or collect a fee for the submission or filing31

of a groundwater hazard statement.32

DIVISION IV33

CORRECTIVE PROVISIONS34

Sec. 8. Section 29C.20C, if enacted by 2019 Iowa Acts,35

-3-

SF638.2478 (4) 88

ns/tm 3/19
166



Amendment to Chapter 1 
ESS Policies and Procedures 
Document Retention Policy 

Chapter 1 of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is amended 
to establish a Document Retention/Destruction Policy for the organization. 

1. Chapter 1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by inserting the
following new section.

ESS – 1.12 Document Retention and Destruction. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3(a)) 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that necessary records and documents of 
are adequately protected and maintained and to ensure that records that are no 
longer needed by the Electronic Services System or are of no value are discarded 
at the proper time.  This Policy applies to all physical records generated in the 
course of Electronic Services Sytem’s operation, including both original 
documents and reproductions.  It also applies to electronic documents including 
but not limited to email.  

1.12(1) A record retention schedule is specified in Subsection 1.12(3) concerning 
the maintenance, retention and disposal schedule for physical records and 
electronic documents of the Electronic Services System. An administrator shall be 
designated by the ESS Coordinating Committee to ensure that the record retention 
schedule is followed.  The administrator is authorized to monitor local, state and 
federal laws affecting record retention, annually review record retention and 
destruction policies and processes, and monitor compliance with this policy. 

1.12(2) In the event the Electronic Services System is served with any subpoena 
or request for documents, or if the administrator becomes aware of a 
governmental investigation or audit concerning the Electronic Services System or 
the commencement of any litigation against or concerning the Electronic Services 
System, the administrator shall temporarily suspend processes for destroying 
documents, subject to the review and guidance of legal counsel. 

1.12(3) The Record Retention Schedule is as follows: 

Record Type  Retention Limit 

Electronic financial records maintained within the Right 
Networks File Manager including Bank of America Files: 
Audit Files, BankCardUSA reports, BOA Financial 

7 years 

DRAFT

167



 

Reports, Budget Reports, Committee Packets, Deposits, 
Payment Gateway Reports, IIF Files, Monthly 
Statements, NACHA Files, Reconciliation Reports, Bills‐
Receipts; Fund 255 Files: Committee Packets, Fund 255 
Financial Reports, Budget Reports, State Treasurer 
Statements, Reconciliation Reports; Fund 823 Files: 
Fund 823 Financial Reports 

Depreciation schedules  3 Years After Full 
Depreciation  

Insurance Policies (current)  2 Years 

Insurance Claims History  7 Years 

Tax Returns  7 Years 

Official Audit Reports  Permanently 

Contracts, Integration Agreements and Other Written 
Agreements 

7 Years After 
Expiration or 
Termination 

Contracts including license and maintenance 
agreements (still in effect) 

Contract Period 

Correspondence (general)  1 Year 

Correspondence (legal and important matters)  Permanently 

Correspondence (with customers and vendors)  2 Years 

Personnel Records Including Insurance and 401K 
Information (Aureon/Paychex) 

7 Years 

Meeting Summaries, 28E Agreement  Permanently 

Policies and Procedures  Permanently 

Email correspondence (clris.com and 
iowalandrecords.org); Legal and Important Documents 
to be saved as PDF on the network server 

See Correspondence 
Type Above 

Email Correspondence Archived After 6 months   

System‐Generated and DoNotReply E‐mail Archive  60 Days 

ESS Application Log Files  7 Years 

Marketing, Training and Other Communications 
Materials 

2 Years Following 
Publication 

Real Estate Agreements (if applicable)  7 Years After 
Expiration or 
Termination 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DRAFT

168



 

Background. As the Electronic Services System organization has continued to mature, 
policies governing its internal operations have also been developed. This has 
corresponded with the increased complexity of ESS accounting, human resources and 
technical systems. One area that has been discussed for a number of years is the need for 
a more formal document retention and destruction policy. ESS is now more than a decade 
old, and it would be appropriate to destroy a number of records which no longer have any 
business or historical value. 
 
It is anticipated that as ESS gains experience with the implementation of a document 
retention and destruction policy, various changes will be explored. After initial adoption, 
the ESS Committees can expect to be presented with amendments from time to time. 
 
Approval of a baseline document retention and destruction policy is requested. 

 
 

 
 

DRAFT

169



Amendment to Chapter 3 
ESS Policies and Procedures 

Certified Copies 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System Policies and Procedures is amended 
to establish a uniform policy for processing certified copies of recorded 
documents. 

1. Section 3.1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by inserting the
following new definition.

ESS – 3.1 Definitions. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3) 

As used in this Chapter: 

Certified Copy – A true and exact copy of a recorded document as it exists in the 
archives of an Iowa County. A Certified Copy is unaltered and not redacted, and 
includes a stamp or indicia which verifies that it is certified by the office of the 
County Recorder in the County of recording. 

2. Chapter 3 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by inserting the
following new section.

ESS – 3.16 Certified Copy Fulfillment. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3) 

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the service of preparing and providing 
certified copies of documents to citizens and customers is delivered consistently 
by the counties which participate in the Electronic Services System.  

3.16(1) Unaltered Copy. A Certified Copy of a recorded document shall conform 
to the definition specified in Section 3.1 of the Policies and Procedures. 

3.16(2) Certification Stamp or Indicia. A Certified Copy of a recorded document 
shall include the following information. 

a. The name of the County in which the document was recorded
b. The signature of the County Recorder in office at the time the Certified

Copy is created; the signature may be a digital or electronic signature

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

170



c. The document reference number or instrument number, and/or the book
and page number assigned to the document in the Recorder’s index or
local land records management system

d. The date on which the Certified Copy was created.
e. The completed Certification Text specified in Section 3.16(3)

3.16(3) Certification Text. The text incorporated within the Certification Stamp or 
Indicia shall be as follows. 

“I, [insert County Recorder name], [insert County name] County 
Recorder, hereby certify that this is a true copy of the instrument as the 
same appears of record in my office.” 

3.15(4) County or County Recorder Seal. A Certified Copy of a document may be 
altered by the addition of a seal representing the County or County Recorder, at 
the discretion of the County Recorder. A County or County Recorder Seal is not 
required. A County or County Recorder Seal, if applied, shall be applied 
separately, and shall not be incorporated with the Certification Stamp or Indicia. 

3.15(5) Certified Copy Document Formats. A County or County Recorder may 
provide a Certified Copy of a document as either a tangible copy or an electronic 
copy. A tangible copy is a representation of the document printed on paper, with 
an added Certification Stamp or Indicia and an optional seal. The seal may be 
embossed. 

An electronic copy of a Certified Copy of a document is an image of the 
document provided to the customer in PDF format with an electronic Certification 
Stamp or Indicia and an electronic seal if applicable.  

3.15(6) Certification Fee. There shall be a fee charged for the service of providing 
a Certified Copy of a document. The fee for fulfilling a citizen or customer 
request for a Certified Copy of a document shall be $10.00 per document.  

A County or County Recorder may charge a supplemental copying fee of $0.50 
per page if a tangible copy of the Certified Copy of the document is provided to 
the Customer. 

The method of payment shall be specified by the County or County Recorder. 

3.15(7) Methods of Delivery. A tangible Certified Copy may be delivered to a 
citizen or customer in person, or by traditional mail or commercial courier. 

An electronic Certified Copy may be delivered to a citizen or customer through e-
mail, or made available to a customer through a file transfer protocol (FTP), file 
download, or other interface authorized by the County or County Recorder. 

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

171



3.15(8) Fufillment. A County or County Recorder shall timely respond to a 
request for a Certified Copy of a document. 

3.15(9) Online Orders. Reserved. 

DIS
CUSSIO

N 

DRAFT

172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



ILR FY 2020 Education and Outreach Draft Budget Summary 

ILR Conference  
Facility  

  Facility Rental - $0 
  AV Equipment - $0 
  Catering - $0 
  Supplies/Decorations - $0 

Speaker Expenses  
Speaker Fee - $0 

  Speaker Travel - $0 
  Speaker Lodging - $0 
  Printing - $0 
 
Tradeshow – Meeting Exhibit 
 Exhibit Registration 
  SLSI - $375 
  IMA - $600 
 Exhibit Drawing  
  SLSI - $50 
  IMA - $50 
 Travel  
  SLSI- $50 
  IMA - $200  
 Meals  
  SLSI -$20 
  IMA - $50  
 Lodging  
  IMA -$200 
 
Law School – CLE 
 
 Sponsorship 
  University of Iowa - $0  
  Drake University - $500 
 
 Travel 

University of Iowa - $200 
  Drake University - $0 
 
 Meals  

University of Iowa - $0 
 
 Lodging  

University of Iowa - $0 (hotel cost covered if guest speaker) 
 

District Meetings  
 
 Meeting 1 
  Travel - $200 
  Meals - $75 
 

207



 Meeting 2  
Travel - $200 

 Meals - $75 
 Meeting 3 

Travel - $200 
 Meals - $75 

 
Seminar Series 
 
 Facility Rental - $0 
 AV Equipment - $0 
 Catering - $0 

Travel- $0 
Meals - $0 
Lodging - $0 
Printing - $0 
Postage - $0 

 
Memberships  
  
 PRIA - $600 
 CBI - $750 
 IMA - $250 
 MISMO - $2,500 
 
Conferences  
 PRIA  
  Registration 
   September - $450 and March $450 
  Travel  
   September - $700 and March $700 

  Lodging  
   September - $750 and March $750 
  Meals  
   September - $250 and March $250 
   
MISMO  
  Registration  
   September - $375, January - $0, June- $0 
  Travel 
   September - $550, January - $0, June - $0 
  Lodging  
   September - $500, January - $0, June - $0 
  Meals  
   September - $150, January - $0, June - $0 
ICRA  
  Registration  
   Fall Conference -$0, Legislative Conference - $0, Summer School $300 
 

Travel 
   Fall Conference -$0, Legislative Conference - $0, Summer School $200 

208



 
  Lodging  
   Fall Conference -$0, Legislative Conference - $0, Summer School $300 
  Meals  
   Fall Conference -$200, Legislative Conference - $50, Summer School $0 
  Parking  
   Fall Conference -$40, Legislative Conference - $40, Summer School $0 

 
  
Advertising/Promotion 
 
  CBI Web Ad – 6 months - $0 (not enough traffic generated) 
 
Campaigns  
 
  Printing  
  Cities of Iowa Campaign -$100 
  Surveyors Educational Campaign - $100  
  Leads List Campaign - $100 
  Stakeholder Campaign (Quarterly Newsletter) - $200 
 
  Postage  
  Cities of Iowa Campaign -$150 
  Surveyors Educational Campaign - $150  
  Leads List Campaign - $150 
  Stakeholder Campaign (Quarterly Newsletter) - $440 
  
Online Educational Tools   
 
  Bulk E-Mail Service - $7,800 
  Adobe Connect Subscription - $1,100 
  Survey Monkey Subscription - $350 
  Adobe Creative Cloud - $660 
  Salesforce Subscription - $3,000 
 
Promotion 
Promotional Items - $1,000 
New Exhibit Banners (new branding) - $500 

 

 

209



City Date Time Venue Attendee Count
Calmar Tuesday, March 26 10:00 AM Wilder Business Center at NICC Calmar Campus 16

Dubuque Wednesday, March 27 9:00 AM Dubuque County Emergency Responder Training Facility 14
Davenport Wednesday, April 10 10:00 AM Scott County Administrative Center 17
Cedar Rapids Thursday, April 11 2:00 PM Cedar Rapids Public Library 44
Sioux City Wednesday, April 24 9:00 AM Stoney Creek Hotel 25

Council Bluffs Thursday, April 25 10:30 AM Council Bluffs Public Library 27
Burlington Wednesday, May 1 10:00 AM Pzazz (Huckleberry Hall) 20
Mason City Wednesday, May 15 1:00 PM Charles H. MacNider Art Museum 16
West Des Moines Wednesday, May 22 1:00 PM West Des MoinesPublic Library 50
Ames Thursday, May 23 1:00 PM Ames Public Library 24

2019
Seminar Series

Professional Development 
Hours Offered 

Continuing Legal Education 
Hours Offered 

210



Tr
ad

es
ho

w
s

W
eb

in
ar

s
So

ci
al

 M
ed

ia
N

ew
sl

et
te

rs
 

211



20
19

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

Ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 

20
19

 - 
N

ew
 C

us
to

m
er

s

20
18

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t 

Approximately 20 new customers as a result of the campaign. 

Leads list developed will serve as a great start for future  
campaigns directed at banks and Law Firms. 

Comments from Counties helped our team determine most 
viable leads to add to the CRM for future follow up. 

• Hand out for County Day at the 
Capitol. 

• Provided to Recorders during the 
Spring Legislative Conference.

• Recorders encouraged to share 
infromation with their supervisors 
and with legislative  
representatives. 

• Can be downloaded from the ICRA 
Members Section. 

January - 23

February - 12

March - 16

April - 17

Total = 68 

 

212



213



214



215



216



217


	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda050919-updated
	ESS Meeting Summary_020719
	Fund 255 FY 2019 3rd Quarter Report
	5 MAY FINANCE PACKET255
	Fund 255 Profit & Loss Qtr
	Fund 255 Balance Sheet


	BOA 2019 1st Quarter and YTD Report
	5 MAY FINANCE PACKETBOA
	BOA Profit & Loss Quarter
	BOA Balance Sheet
	5 MAY FINANCE PACKETBOA.pdf
	Budget vs Actual 1st Qtr



	2018 Compiled Financials - DRAFT
	LETTER
	Balance Sheet 04022019
	Income Stmt Combined 04022019
	Income Stmt General 04022019
	Income Stmt ILR 04022019

	Local Service Provider Maintenance Agreement Renewals
	LLRMS-Template042919-final
	TemplateExhibit D-FY2020-final
	LLRMS LCM Rider041719-final

	External Submitter Agreement Materials
	CSCIntegration Agreement-060119-finalreviseddraft
	SimplifileIntegration Agreement-060119-finalrevised

	BrickGentryLetter to ESS re Representation Agmt 4 1 19

	ProfessionalSolutions-Amendment1-050919-revised
	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	WebSpec BluePrint Contract

	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	FY2020MaintenanceMemo
	Reserve Fund Materials
	Reserve Fund Policy Materials
	Standards Subcommittee_Full Packet_4.16.19

	Chapter 1-Reserve Fund Policy Update041619

	Financial Procedure Materials
	Financial Procedure Materials
	Financial Procedures Policy
	Standards Subcommittee_Full Packet_4.16.19




	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	Financial Procedure Materials
	Financial Procedure Materials
	ExpenseReimbursementPolicyAmendment1.6-041619

	Chapter 1-amendment-AssetDetermination041619

	SF475-enrolled

	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	Groundwater Hazard Materials
	Chapter 3-Groundwater Hazard Statements050319-draft
	StandingsBill-2019-S3237


	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	Document Retention Materials
	Chapter 1-DocumentRetentionPolicy Update041619

	Certified Copy Materials
	Section3.15CertifiedCopyPolicy041619-DRAFT
	Certified Copies Best Practices Materials
	Standards Subcommittee_Full Packet_4.16.19



	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	ESS Coordinating Committee_Preliminary Packet_5.9.19
	Marketing and Communications Update Materials
	ILR FY 2020 Education and Outreach Draft Budget Summary
	2019 Seminar Series Update
	Marketing & Communications Update_5.9.19

	Security Policy Memo041619
	PRIAMEMO042219-final-scan




